
FULL COUNCIL 
  

  
 
 

 

Please note that this Meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the 
Authority’s Internet Site.  

  
The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes 

within the Authority. 
 

All attendees could possibly be in view of the camera and by attending you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the use of those images and sound 

recordings being used as outlined above. 
 

 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
of the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council on Wednesday, 7th October, 2020 at 
5.30 pm being a Meeting for the following purposes. 
 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal responsibility 
to declare any personal and prejudicial interest in 
respect of matters contained in this agenda in 
accordance with the provisions of the Local 
Government and Finance Act 1992 relating to Council 
Tax, the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct 
 
 
 

 



Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must identify 
the item number and subject matter that their 
interest relates to and signify the nature of the 
personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting as a 

consequence of the disclosure of a prejudicial 
interest they must notify the Chair when they 
leave 

 

OPEN SESSION 

Presentation and Report 

3. Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 2019-
2035  

 

 To receive a presentation from James Brown, 
Managing Director, The Urbanists 
 

 

4. Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 2019– 
2035  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

5 - 10 

Minutes 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)   

 To approve as accurate the Minutes of the following 
Meetings: 
 

 

5.a   AGM: 09/09/2020 11 - 14 

5.b   Full Council: 26/02/2020 15 - 18 

5.c   Full Council: 04/03/2020 19 - 22 

5.d   Cabinet: 26/02/2020 23 - 28 

5.e   Cabinet: 04/03/2020 29 - 30 

5.f   Cabinet: 15/07/2020 31 - 34 

5.g   Cabinet: 16/09/2020 35 - 38 



5.h   Licensing Committee: 27/02/2020 39 - 40 

5.i   Licensing Committee: 24/06/2020 41 - 42 

5.j   Audit: 09/03/2020 43 - 46 

5.k   Audit: 03/08/2020 47 - 50 

5.l   Standards: 24/01/2020 51 - 52 

5.m   SACRE: 10/03/2020 53 - 56 

5.n   Scrutiny: Governance, Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate Services: 25/02/2020 

57 - 62 

5.o   Scrutiny: Regeneration and Public Protection: 
03/03/2020 

63 - 66 

5.p   Scrutiny: Social Services: 21/01/2020 67 - 72 

5.q   Scrutiny: Social Services: 10/03/2020 73 - 76 

5.r   Scrutiny: Learning and LGES: 06/01/2020 77 - 80 

5.s   Scrutiny : Learning and LGES: 24/02/2020 81 - 84 

Committee Report(s) 

6. Agile And Home Working Policy   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

85 - 100 

7. The Cyfarthfa Foundation   

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

101 - 104 

8. Gulley Sucker Business Case   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Planning and 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

105 - 136 

9. Merthyr Tydfil Adult Community Learning (MTACL) 
Partnership Future Delivery and Welsh Government 
Funding 2020/21  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

137 - 144 

 
 
 



Information Report(s) 

10. MTCBC Annual Scrutiny Report 2019-2020   

 To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

145 - 162 

11. Consultation Responses - Amendment of Opening 
Times of Day Service Provision  

 

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Social Services 
 

163 - 168 

12. Annual Report on Social Services 2019-2020   

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Social Services 
 

169 - 172 

13. Update on Young People’s Participation:  Merthyr Tydfil 
Borough Wide Youth Forum (MTBWYF) and Office of 
Youth Mayor  

 

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

173 - 178 

Other Items 

14. To deal with any other urgent business or 
correspondence  

 

15. To receive communications from Her/His Worship the 
Mayor  

 

 
 
 

By order of the Mayor 
 

ELLIS COOPER 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 
2019 - 2035 

 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The Placemaking Plan was commissioned by Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Welsh 

Government and Transport for Wales. It provides a plan for Merthyr Tydfil that is 
based on a shared ambition for the town and its role within the Capital City Region. 

  
1.2  Transport is a key consideration for the Town Centre and a series of the projects 

identified in both the Placemaking and Delivery Plans either relate to transport 
enhancements or require adaptations to transport infrastructure to be fully realised.  

 
1.3  This Placemaking Plan is the third iteration of the Tow Centre Masterplans. 
 
1.4  The new masterplan will continue to build on the considerable and consistent project 

delivery over the last 18 years and will support the Town in becoming commercially 
viable and self-sustaining. 

 
1.5  In order to identify the ambition for Merthyr in 2035 key issues and opportunities 

currently facing the Town have been considered.   The process has resulted in the 
identification of 7 core ambitions which will feature within the Placemaking Plan.  

 
1.6  The delivery of two signature projects are essential to the success of the 

Placemaking Plan.  These projects are the most ambitious in terms of impact and 
would serve to transform Merthyr Tydfil and the role that it currently performs in the 
Capital City Region.  These projects are the Glebeland Site (current Bus Station site) 
and the Train Station (Interchange Corridor). 

 

Date Written 3rd August 2020 

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Chris Long  

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non-exempt  

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.7  There are no financial implications on the authority.  The commission of the 
Placemaking Plan was funded through the Welsh Government’s Valleys Taskforce 
Team. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The content of the Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 2019 – 2035 be 

approved.  
 
2.2  The actions identified in Section 5 of the report be approved. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Placemaking Plan was commissioned by Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Welsh 

Government and Transport for Wales. It provides a plan for Merthyr Tydfil that is 
based on a shared ambition for the town and its role within the Capital City Region.  

 
3.2  The Placemaking Plan is one of three documents that will be developed for Merthyr 

Tydfil CBC providing an integrated framework for the strategic redevelopment of 
Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre.  The suite of documents that will be presented once 
finalised includes: 

 
- Placemaking Plan – A strategic document detailing the future vision of the Town with 

high level interpretation of areas of opportunities accompanied by a Baseline Review 
- Supporting Evidence – This will include a WelTAG Review (Welsh Transport 

Appraisal Guidance), Commercial Advice and an Economic Impact Assessment all 
of which have been commissioned to support the creation of the Placemaking Plan  

 
- Delivery and Implementation Plan – A document outlining the recommended 

interventions required to support delivery (confidential to the client team).  This will 
be an evolving document in which projects can be added to / removed as 
appropriate.  

 
3.3  The Placemaking Plan will be informed by the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development 

Plan (2006-2021) drawing on the vision,  strategies and key intervention areas to 
create a series of projects and specific interventions that inform a blueprint towards a 
future, successful Merthyr Town Centre.  

 
3.4  Transport is a key consideration for the Town Centre and a series of the projects 

identified in both the Placemaking and Delivery Plans either relate to transport 
enhancements or require adaptations to transport infrastructure to be fully realised.  

 
3.5  This Placemaking Plan is the third iteration of the Town Centre Masterplan.  
 
3.6  Firstly, the Big Heart of Merthyr Tydfil Masterplan was produced in 2002 and at the 

time represented a major shift in the commitment to the way that the Town Centre 
was managed and improved.  This laid the basis for the café quarter and the 
extensive improvements to the spaces between the buildings and the public realm.  

 

Page 6



3.7  Secondly, the Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan was developed in 2008 and 
gave rise to the creation of Penderyn Square, the Learning Quarter and the major 
transformation of Avenue de Clichy.  

 
3.8  The new masterplan will continue to build on the considerable and consistent project 

delivery over the last 18 years and will support the Town in becoming commercially 
viable and self-sustaining.  

 
3.9  The relocation of the Bus Station is one of the final projects from the 2008 review to 

be implemented and it is fitting that this forms the foundation for the next generation 
of strategic interventions in the Town Centre.  

 
3.10  The Placemaking Plan is part of a ‘family’ of policies and strategies which will shape 

decision making in Merthyr Tydfil over the next 15 years including the Local 
Development Plan, The Cyfarthfa Plan and the Merthyr Tydfil CBC Economic 
Recovery Plan.  

 

4.0 MERTHYR TYDFIL PLACEMAKING PLAN  
 
4.1 In order to identify the ambition for Merthyr in 2035 key issues and opportunities 

currently facing the Town have been considered.   The process has resulted in the 
identification of 7 core ambitions which will feature within the Placemaking Plan: 

 
- The tourism capital of the Valleys and Beacons (centre for adventure tourism to the 

Heads of the Valley and the Brecon Beacons and as well as an internationally 
renowned destination for industrial and cultural heritage).  

- A low carbon Town (which is designed for the 21st century’s needs of low energy 
use, renewable energy, low environmental impact and adaptability) 

- A destination for services (the focus for high quality public services for the 
communities of the Borough) 

- A better waterside Town (which makes full use of its location on the banks of the 
River Taff) 

- A smart Town (a digitally fluent Town that businesses, public services and citizens 
can capture the benefits of technology and the application of data) 

- An inclusive and engaging public realm (with inviting streets, squares and routes 
where people feel safe, welcomed and uplifted) 

- A resilient Town (with a wide variety of activities and occupiers so that the Town is 
resilient to change and able to adapt to a rapidly changing world) 

 
4.2  The vision for the Placemaking Plan is ambitious and long-term.  It will be a plan for 

the next 15 years, a plan that has the potential to transform Merthyr Tydfil and the 
role that it performs for the Capital City Region and the people that it serves.  

 
4.3  The vision for Merthyr Tydfil is achievable partly because of the things that are 

changing around the Town Centre.  Leisure, Tourism and destination lead 
developments are already happening, and the future of the Town can be confidently 
based around this as a theme.  

 
4.4  There is a feeling that greater connectivity through the Metro will amplify the interest 

in Merthyr Tydfil as a visitor destination as well as an attractive residential location 

Page 7



where citizens can have the ‘best of both worlds’ e.g. access to city life in Cardiff and 
access to the outdoor opportunities on Merthyr’s green and wild doorstep.  

 
4.5  It is anticipated that the delivery of the key projects that will be delivered over the 

next 15 years will: 
 

- Deliver large-scale mixed-use developments on the riverfront kick-starting the 
riverside regeneration 

- Establish better gateways into the Town  
- Deliver improved regeneration between public transport modes 
- Convert traditional buildings with new active uses  
- Consolidate the high street retail offer around Tesco and St. Tydfil’s Shopping 

Centre  
- Revive the town’s traditional townscape, with specific focus on prominent Listed 

Buildings of social, historic or architectural merit (e.g, the YMCA, Miners Hall, 
Synagogue, etc)  

- Exploit any opportunity to create new recreational spaces, uses and connections to 
the river to enhance the relationship between the town centre and the river  

- Provide better pedestrian routes and spaces 
- Create spaces for social and cultural events  
- Develop a stronger digital presence and brand  
- Bolster private sector sentiment towards Merthyr Tydfil so that conversion / 

development becomes viable without any public sector intervention 
 
4.6  The delivery of two signature projects are essential to the success of the 

Placemaking Plan.  These projects are the most ambitious in terms of impact and 
would serve to transform Merthyr Tydfil and the role that it currently performs in the 
Capital City Region.  These projects are the Glebeland Site (current Bus Station site) 
and the Train Station (Interchange Corridor).  

 
4.7  Due to its strategic location, Glebeland Site acts as the catalyst project to reshape 

the Town Centre while accelerating the regeneration of the riverside.  The proposal 
consists of the development of the current Bus Station site and the adjoining green 
land into a mixed-use scheme that delivers high quality homes and office spaces, 
while ensuring riverside activation through unique food and retail offer.  

 
4.8  Merthyr Train Station is located close to the Town Centre.  The present configuration 

doesn’t allow for a clear sense of arrival and direction, hindering the reshaping of 
Merthyr Tydfil into a tourist destination.  The scheme consists of creating an 
improved strategic site allowing for greater connectivity and permeability.    

 

5.0 NEXT STEPS  
 
5.1  Once the Placemaking Plan has been endorsed by full Council, Merthyr Tydfil CBC 

will establish a working group meeting with Welsh Government officials to discuss 
policy direction and potential funding programmes that can be accessed in the future 
to deliver key projects identified within the Delivery Plan.  

 

Page 8



5.2 A detailed consultation will be held with key stakeholders one the plan has been 
endorsed.  This will include Elected Members, Town Centre Partnership and local 
businesses.  

 
5.3  Review and identify actions for the two key identified projects namely Glebeland Site 

and Train Station in order to progress with the development stages of both projects.  
 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no financial implications on the authority.  The commission of the 

Placemaking Plan was funded through the Welsh Government’s Valleys Taskforce 
Team.  

 
 

7.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the development of the Masterplan will support Well-
being Objectives and Sustainable Development Principles through targeting economic 
growth, with a focus on the long-term sustainability of the Town Centre.  The project will 
have a positive effect on the economy, socially and on heritage.    
 
No negative impacts have been identified. 

 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

Page 9



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 10



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 
 

WEDNESDAY, 9TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors: M Colbran (Vice-Chair, in the Chair) 
                      
 

 Councillors: A Barry, C J Barry, B Carter, D Chaplin, C Davies, 
L Davies, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, D Hughes, D Isaac, S Jago, 
C T Jones, D Jones, H R Jones, M Jones, G Lewis, L Mytton, 
K O'Neill, G Richards, D Roberts, T Rogers, D Sammon, 
T Skinner, W R Smith, J Thomas, G Thomas, I Thomas, C Tovey 
and S Thomas 
 

 Officers: 
C Kennedy (Head of Legal and Governance Services - 
Monitoring Officer), E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), 
C Dinham (Communications, Consultation and Engagement 
Manager), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), 
S Jones (Head of Finance), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), 
F Donnelly (H R Manager), J Jones (Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services), G Morgan (Solicitor), Z Thomas 
(European & External Funding Support Officer), M Price 
(Revenue Officer) and Stephens (Cabinet Policy Officer) 
 
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer), M Edmunds 
(Democratic Services Officer), M Phillips (Democratic Services 
Officer) and A Taylor (Head of Democratic Services) 

 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

TEAMS Meeting 
 

The Chair welcomed Members and Officers to the first Full Council Meeting held via TEAMS. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



 
 
 
 
   

 

1   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from The Mayor 
Councillor H Barrett, Councillor J Amos and Councillor J 
Davies. 

2   Declarations of Interest Councillor M Colbran, Councillor C Davies, Councillor D 
Hughes, Councillor D Jones, Councillor G Richards, 
Councillor T Skinner, Councillor G Thomas and Councillor 
C Tovey Declared their Interest in Item Six – Non Domestic 
Rates – Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief in 
Wales 2020-21. 

3   Cleansing of Gullies Councillor G Lewis referred the Members in detail to the 
Notice of Motion in relation to Cleansing of Gullies and 
proposed an improvement to the Gully Sucking 
Maintenance Programme. 
 
In response to the Motion a Member advised that a full 
Business Case was being prepared and would be 
presented to the Full Council Meeting in October 2020. 
 
After further consideration and debate by the Members it 
was 
 
Resolved that: 
 
By the scheduled November 2020 Meeting of Full Council, 
a full Business Case be presented to Full Council that 
outlines the feasibility of Cleansing all 10,500 Gullies in the 
County Borough as and when necessary and at a minimum 
an annual basis.  This Business Case should also include 
the cost to the Local Authority of purchasing or leasing 
Gully Sucking Vehicle(s).  Full Council will then be in a 
position to make a decision on implementing improvements 
to the Gully Cleaning Maintenance Programme. 

4   Committee Cycle 
2020-2021 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The Committee Cycle for the remainder of the 
originally anticipated 2020/2021 Municipal year be 
approved 

(b) The provisional Committee Cycle for the 2021-2022 
Municipal year be agreed, with final approval to be 
brought to the next Annual General Meeting in 2021 

5   Appointment to 
Committees and 
Representatives of 
Other Bodies 2020-
2021 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The position of Mayor and Deputy Mayor remain 
with the current Councillors until Annual General 
Meeting in May 2021 

(b) Appointments to Committees for the balance of the 
originally anticipated 2020-2021 Municipal year 
remain the same as 2019-2020 

(c) Representation on Outside Bodies and Champion 
Posts for the balance of the originally anticipated 
2020-2021 Municipal year remain the same as 
2019-2020 

Page 12



 
 
 
 
   

(d) Delegated authority be granted to the Political 
Leaders in the event of a vacancy to nominate 
representative(s) and to supply such agreed 
nomination to the Chief Executive 

6   Non Domestic Rates - 
Retail, Leisure and 
Hospitality Rates Relief 
in Wales 2020-21 

Chair 
 
Councillor M Colbran having Declared his Interest in this 
item vacated the Chair. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised the Councillors who had 
Declared their Interest in this item to turn off their Cameras 
and Microphones thereby removing themselves from the 
Meeting. 
 
The Monitoring Officer then referred the Members to the 
report. 
 
Resolved that: 
 

(a) The implementation of the Non Domestic Rates – 
Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief scheme 
in accordance with the rules described in this report 
be approved 

(b) Sections 47(1)(a) and S47(3) (discretionary relief) 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 shall 
apply as regards the hereditaments described 
above in accordance with the rules described in 
relation to those hereditaments.  It is reasonable for 
the Council to make this decision having regard to 
the interests of persons liable to pay Council Tax 
set by the Council 

7   Cyfarthfa Heritage 
Area Special Purpose 
Vehicle 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The new Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) be named 
‘The Cyfarthfa Foundation’ 

(b) The SPV’s Memorandum and Articles of 
Association to enable the new SPV to be 
established and the Charitable Registration process 
to commence be approved 

(c) A bank account be opened for the new SPV and 
£5,000 be deposited in the bank account by the 
Council 

(d) The first Director(s) be appointed 

8   Reconfiguration of 
Peripatetic Social 
Workers Posts to 
Peripatetic Support 
Workers - Children's 
Services 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The contents of the report be noted 
(b) The recruitment of 3 full time Peripatetic Support 

Workers to Children’s Services for a 24 month 
period be approved 

(c) In 12 months an update to Council sharing the 
learning from the recruitment of the posts and new 
way of working be provided 

9   Anti-Bullying Statutory 
Guidance for Schools 

Resolved that: 
 

Page 13



 
 
 
 
   

(a) The contents of the report be noted and Councillors 
agree to promote the Guidance 

(b) An update be provided in a year’s time detailing the 
impact of the marketing of this Guidance 

10   Delegated Decisions 
Made During Covid-19 
Lockdown 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

11   Work Experience 
Scheme First Year 
Evaluation Report 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

12   To deal with any other 
urgent business or 
correspondence 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

13   To receive 
communications 
received by Her/His 
Worship the Mayor 

No Communication were received. 

14   Exempt Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 12 and 13 under Part 4 of Schedule 
12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 

15   Extension to the 
Appointment of the 
Interim Head of Paid 
Service (Chief 
Executive) and the 
Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The extension of the appointment of Ellis Cooper as 
the Interim Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) 
Designate with effect from the 12 September 2019 
until the 12 September 2021 be approved 

(b) The appointment of Alyn Owen as the Interim 
Deputy Chief Executive on a secondment fixed 
term with effect from the 24 October 2019 be 
extended until the 24 October 2021 be approved 

 
 

 

Page 14



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

FULL COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 26TH FEBRUARY, 2020 
 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   H Barrett (Chair) 
                      M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors   A Barry, C J Barry, B Carter, D Chaplin, C Davies, 
L Davies, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, D Hughes, D Isaac, S Jago, 
C T Jones, D Jones, H R Jones, M Jones, G Lewis, L Mytton, 
K O'Neill, G Richards, D Roberts, T Rogers, D Sammon, 
T Skinner, W R Smith, J Thomas, G Thomas, I Thomas, 
S Thomas and C Tovey 

  
 Officers: 

E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), S Jones (Head 
of Finance), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), 
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), A Owen (Interim Deputy 
Chief Executive), F Donnelly (H R Manager), C Dinham 
(Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager), 
P Lewis (Trading Standards and Licensing Manager), P Williams 
(Principal Human Resources Advisor) and A Davies (Human 
Resources) 

  
 M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

731   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J 
Amos and Councillor J Davies. 

732   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

733   Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s) 

Council approves as accurate (subject to any amendments) 
the Minutes of the following Meetings: 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5b



 
 
 
 

 

   

733a   Full Council: 
29/01/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Full Council Meeting held 29 January 
2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

733b   Cabinet: 29/01/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held 29 January 2020 
be accepted as a correct record. 

733c   Audit: 29/01/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Audit Committee held 29 January 2020 
be accepted as a correct record. 

733d   Scrutiny : Joint 
Committee: 
29/01/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Joint Scrutiny Committee held 29 
January 2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

733e   Planning, Regulatory 
and Licensing: 
05/02/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Planning, Regulatory and Licensing 
Committee held 5 February 2020 be accepted as a correct 
record. 

733f   Licensing Committee: 
12/02/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held 12 February 
2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

733g   Scrutiny : Learning and 
LGES: 25/11/2019 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee 
held 25 November 2019 be accepted as a correct record. 

733h   Scrutiny : 
Neighbourhood 
Services, Planning and 
Countryside: 
14/10/2019 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Neighbourhood Services, Planning and 
Countryside Scrutiny Committee held 14 October 2019 be 
accepted as a correct record. 

733i   Scrutiny : 
Neighbourhood 
Services, Planning and 
Countryside: 
16/09/2019 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Neighbourhood Services, Planning and 
Countryside Scrutiny Committee held 16 September 2019 
be accepted as a correct record. 

734   Pathway to Work 
Project 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The report be noted 
(b) The proposed Policy that can be found at Appendix 

1 of the report be approved 

735   Peripatetic Social 
Workers – Children’s 
Services 

Councillor C Davies referred the Council to the ‘Peripatetic 
Social Workers – Children’s Services’ report and the 
recommendations as contained within the report. 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 

 

   

A Member then proposed an amendment to 
recommendation 2.2 that it include the phrase ‘on fixed term 
Contracts for 24 months’ and this amendment was 
accepted. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 

(a) The contents of the report be noted 
(b) The proposal that Children’s Services recruit 2 full 

time Peripatetic Social Workers on fixed term 
Contracts for 24 months be supported 

 
 
Councillor L Davies entered the Meeting at 5.55 pm. 

736   Report of Standards 
Committee 
Determination 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

737   Petition Received by 
the Authority 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

738   Supporting People 
Local Commissioning 
Plan Annual Update 
2020-21 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

739   Exempt Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 12, 13 and 14 under Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 

740   Occupational Health - 
Service Change 

Resolved that: 
 
The recommendation as contained within the report be 
accepted. 

741   CCTV Sustainability 
Workstream 

Carys Kennedy referred the Council to the ‘CCTV – 
Sustainability Workstream’ report and gave advice in 
relation to the recommendation as contained within the 
report. 
 
Alyn Owen then advised the Council of the amended 
recommendation. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The amended recommendation be approved.  

742   Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council Local 
Authority Hardship 
Scheme (additional 
report) 

The Mayor advised that this report would be considered as 
an urgent item. 
 
Resolved that: 
 

Page 17



 
 
 
 

 

   

The Actions to alleviate hardship of Merthyr Tydfil residents 
taken by the Interim Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Section 151 Officer and Group Leaders / Deputy Leaders of 
all Parties be ratified 

743   To deal with any other 
urgent business or 
correspondence 

Coronavirus 
 
Councillor L Mytton referred to recent media attention in 
relation to School Children and Teachers returning from 
half-term leave and the Countries that had been visited and 
wished to reassure Colleagues that the Chief Education 
Officer had sent a letter to all Pupils, Carers and Governing 
Bodies in relation to the Public Health information around 
the Coronavirus.  In relation to Pupils due to travel the 
situation would be evaluated as the days went on and 
would not put any pupils at risk and would take on Public 
Health information. 

744   To receive 
communications from 
Her/His  Worship the 
Mayor 

No Communications were received from His Worship the 
Mayor. 

 
 

 

Page 18



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

FULL COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 4TH MARCH, 2020 
 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   H Barrett (Chair) 
                     M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 
 

 

 Councillors   J Amos, A Barry, C J Barry, B Carter, C Davies, 
J Davies, L Davies, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, D Hughes, D Isaac, 
C T Jones, D Jones, H R Jones, M Jones, G Lewis, L Mytton, 
K O'Neill, G Richards, D Roberts, T Rogers, D Sammon, 
T Skinner, W R Smith, J Thomas, G Thomas, I Thomas, 
S Thomas and C Tovey 

 

   
 Officers: 

E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), S Jones (Head 
of Finance), J Jones (Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services), 
C Dinham (Communications, Consultation and Engagement 
Manager), A Lewis (Chief Accountant), R Barnett (Parks and 
Open Spaces Manager), A Lewis (Head of School Planning 
Performance and Resource), A Lloyd (Head of Children's 
Services), C Long (Economic Development & Strategic Tourism 
Manager) and C Morris (Highways & Engineering) 

 

   
 M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)  
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

764   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D 
Chaplin and Councillor S Jago. 

765   Declarations of Interest Councillor I Thomas Declared his Interest in Item Four – 
Council Tax Resolution 2020/21 as he is a Member of the 
Bedlinog and Trelewis Community Council and has 
Dispensation to Speak and Vote. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5c



 
 
 
 

 

   

766   Budget Requirement 
and Council Tax 
2020/21 - State of the 
Council Debate 

Carys Kennedy advised that there was need for further 
discussion on the two agenda items and therefore the 
Meeting would be adjourned for one hour. 
 
The Meeting was then adjourned until 6.00 pm. 
 
Upon resumption of the Meeting: 
 
Councillor K O’Neill Leader of the Council referred to the 
Budget Requirement and Council Tax 2020/21 – State of 
the Council Debate’ report and addressed the Council 
reviewing and summarising some of the key achievements 
of the Authority and its Officers. 
 
Councillor K O‘Neill also thanked all Members, Officers and 
Staff of the Authority for their continued support, particularly 
in such difficult times of decreasing finance and for 
delivering high performing services for the Citizens of 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough. 
 
Councillor K O’Neill then moved the recommendations as 
contained within the report. 
 
Considerable debate then ensued on the report with the 
questions raised by Members being responded to in detail 
by the Officers. 
 
The Council were also advised of  typographical errors in 
Appendix G – Ref 41- Corporate Costs as it should read 
‘2019’ not ‘2009’ and Appendix K – Ref 22 – Ysgol Y Graig 
Infrastructure should read ‘2021’ not ‘2020’. 
 
After consideration by the Members it was 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 

(a) The Council Tax increase of 4.99% for 2020/21 
(‘Band D’ of £1,669.71) for the County Borough 
Council be approved 

(b) The Budget Requirement of £127.533 million for 
2020/21 (net revenue budget) be approved 

(c) The core funded Capital Programme of £46.331 
million for the period 2020/21 to 2023/24 be 
approved 

(d) The Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 
2023/24 (including the Capital Strategy Report 
2020/21 and Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2020/21) be approved 

(e) The Prudential Indicators contained within the 
Medium Term Financial Plan be approved with 
authorisation for managing and monitoring the 
authorised limit and operational boundary 
delegated to the Chief Finance Officer 

(f) The Minimum Revenue Provision Statement for 
2020/21 as detailed in Paragraph 8.4 of the report 
be approved 

(g) The Chief Finance Officer’s comments relating to 
the robustness of the estimates and adequacy of 
reserves be noted 

Page 20



 
 
 
 

 

   

767   Council Tax Resolution 
2020/21 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The formal Statutory Council Tax resolutions 
2020/21 as outlined in Appendix 1 of the report and 
summarised in Paragraph 5.1 of the report be noted 
and approved 

(b) The Police and Crime Commissioner for South 
Wales approved precept for 2020/21 of £5,018,102 
for the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council area 
be noted 

(c) The Bedlinog and Trelewis Community Council 
approved precept for 2020/21 of £23,250 for the 
Community Council area be noted 

(d) The Welsh Government 2020/21 Non Domestic 
Rate for Wales of 53.5 pence in the pound be noted 

768   To deal with any other 
urgent business or 
correspondence 

The Mayor advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

769   To receive 
communications from 
Her/His  Worship the 
Mayor 

No Communications were received from His Worship the 
Mayor. 

 
 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 26TH FEBRUARY, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors    K O'Neill (Chair) 
                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
 

 Councillors   A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and G Thomas 
  

Officers 
E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), A Owen (Interim 
Deputy Chief Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), F Donnelly 
(H R Manager), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), 
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), A Mogford (Head of 
Corporate Services), A Edevane (Head of Adult Services), 
P Lewis (Trading Standards and Licensing Manager), A Lloyd 
(Head of Children's Services), J Sellwood (Leisure, Culture and 
Sports Development Manager) and J Baber (Licensing Officer) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
A Cope (Regional Fostering Manager) 

  
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

715   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

716   Declarations of Interest Councillor A Barry Declared a Prejudicial Interest in Item 
Five – Proposal to Increase Hackney Carriage Fare Tariffs.  

717   Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2019/20 – 
Quarter 3 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The third Revenue Budget Monitoring report for the 
2019/20 financial year based on 3rd Quarter 
projections be accepted 

(b) Budget Virements outlined in Appendix 2 of the 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5d



 
 
 
 
   

report be approved 
(c) The transfer of £483,000 of the projected surplus to 

General Reserves be approved 
(d) The transfer of £1,218,000 of the projected surplus 

to the Budget Reserve be approved 
(e) Managers to urgently address projected budget 

deficits within their respective service areas, 
identifying all possible remedial measures to offset 
projected deficits be approved 

(f) Managers to continue to monitor all revenue 
budgets and immediately notify the Chief Finance 
Officer of potential difficulties be approved 

718   Capital Monitoring 
Report 2019/20 – 
Quarter 3 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The Capital Monitoring Report for the third quarter 
of 2019/20 be noted 

(b) The budget amendments for core-funded projects 
as outlined in Paragraph 4.1 of the report be 
approved 

(c) Variances to the revised budgets as per 
Paragraphs 4.2 and 5.3 of the report be noted 

(d) The requirements for Officers to continue to 
rigorously monitor budgets to ensure that 
expenditure remains within approved budgets be 
noted 

719   Proposal to Increase 
Hackney Carriage Fare 
Tariffs 

Councillor A Barry having Declared his Interest in this item 
left the Chamber for the consideration of this item. 
 
An amended Appendix D was also tabled for the 
consideration of the Committee. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The increase in tariff fares as proposed by members of the 
Licensed Trade be approved. 

720   Appointment Of 
Environmental Health 
Officers As Proper 
Officers To Provide 
Power Of Entry Under 
Communicable 
Disease Control 
Legislation 

Resolved that: 
 
The appointment of Officers of Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council as set out in Appendix One of the report 
(entitled Officer Appointments and Delegated Powers Under 
The Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984) as Proper 
Officers under Section 112 of Local Government Act 1972 
for the purposes of Communicable Disease Control be 
approved. 

721   Appointment Of Proper 
Officers For 
Communicable 
Disease Control 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The Authority formally authorises and appoints the 
following named Consultants in Communicable 
Disease Control (CCDC) and Consultants in Health 
Protection (CHP) as Proper Officers as detailed in 
Table 1 be approved: 

  
TABLE 1  
Dr Behrooz Behbod Consultant Epidemiologist 

Page 24



 
 
 
 
   

 
(b)The following named Consultants in 
Communicable Disease Control (CCDC) and 
Consultants in Health Protection (CHP) as Proper 
Officers as detailed in Table 2 are no longer 
Authorised by the Authority be approved: 

 
 TABLE 2  
  Mrs Heather Lewis Consultant in Health 
 Protection 
  Dr Meirion Evans Consultant Epidemiologist 
 

(C)The following named Consultants in 
Communicable Disease Control (CCDC) and 
Consultants in Health Protection (CHP) remain as 
Proper Officers for the Authority as detailed in 
Table 3 be approved: 

   
TABLE 3  
Dr Gwen Lowe  Consultant in Communicable 

 Disease Control 
Dr Rhianwen Stiff Consultant in 

 Communicable Disease Control 
Dr Graham Brown Consultant in 

 Communicable Disease Control 
Mr Siôn Lingard Consultant in Health Protection  
Dr Christopher Johnson Consultant in Health 

 Protection  
Dr Brendan Mason Consultant in 

 Communicable Disease Control 
Dr Giri Shankar Professional Lead Consultant for 

 Health Protection 
Dr Christopher Williams Consultant Epidemiologist 

722   Policy Framework: 
Council Tax Incentive 
Payment for Local 
Authority Foster Carers 
Fostering for Merthyr 
Tydfil 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The information contained within the Policy 
Framework be noted and the proposal that the 
Policy be implemented and become operational 
from 1 April 2020 be approved 

(b) The use of the Policy to support offering Foster 
Carers who meet the eligibility criteria and Council 
Tax incentive payment of 50% be approved. 

723   Inspection Report - 
Prevention and 
Promotion of 
Independence for 
Older Adults 

Resolved that: 
 
The contents of the report and the accompanying inspection 
report and action plan be noted 

724   LMS Fair Funding 
Scheme of Delegation: 
Nursery Education - 
Funding the Summer 
Term (April) Intake 

Resolved that: 
 
The proposal to introduce a Summer Term count date for 
Nursery pupils from April 2020 be approved.  

725   Proposed Media 
Campaign Support 

Resolved that: 
 

Page 25



 
 
 
 
   

The report for Information be received. 

726   Petition from Residents 
of Alexander Road, 
Penydarren 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

727   Draft Parenting 
Partnership Plan 
(2020-23) 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 
 

Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

728   Capital Programme 
2020/21 to 2023/24 

Councillor A Barry referred to the ‘Capital Programme 
2020/21 to 2023/24’ report and proposed a further 
recommendation that: 
 
Notwithstanding the expectation for emergency Welsh 
Government Funding as a result of the damage caused by 
Storm Dennis to the Council’s infrastructure and the 
anticipated significant cost of repair, an assessment of the 
Capital Programme to determine the potential for 
acceptable delays to project commencement and the 
potential release and re-allocation of Capital Resources be 
approved 
 
Resolved subject to the forgoing that: 
 

(a) The Capital Programme for 2020/21 to 2023/24 be 
accepted and recommended to Council for approval 

(b)  Notwithstanding the expectation for emergency 
Welsh Government Funding as a result of the 
damage caused by Storm Dennis to the Council’s 
infrastructure and the anticipated significant cost of 
repair, an assessment of the Capital Programme to 
determine the potential for acceptable delays to 
project commencement and the potential release 
and re-allocation of Capital Resources be approved 

729   Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust Pricing Increase 

Councillor G Thomas referred the Committee to the 
‘Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust Pricing Increase’ report and the 
recommendations as contained within the report. 
 
A Member then proposed that recommended 2.2 be 
amended to include ‘in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member’. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 

Page 26



 
 
 
 
   

 
(a) The content of the report be approved 
(b) That delegated powers be granted to the Head of 

Regeneration and Housing and the Leisure, Culture 
and Sports Development Manager in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member to approve future price 
increases proposals from the Leisure Trust be 
approved. 

 

RE-OPENED SESSION 
 

730   Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 4TH MARCH, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors    K O'Neill (Chair) 
                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
 

 Councillors   A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and G Thomas 
  

Officers 
E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), C Dinham 
(Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager), 
C Kennedy (Head of Legal and Governance Services - 
Monitoring Officer), S Jones (Head of Finance), A Owen (Interim 
Deputy Chief Executive), J Jones (Chief Officer Neighbourhood 
Services), A Lewis (Head of School Planning Performance and 
Resource), P Lewis (Trading Standards and Licensing Manager) 
and A Lloyd (Head of Children's Services), V Robst (Corporate 
Communication Officer), S Lewis (Licensing Officer)   

  
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

758   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

759   Declarations of Interest Councillor A Barry Declared his Interest in Item Five – 
Subsidised Transport – Pontsticill as he is in the Taxi 
Industry. 

760   Council Priorities and 
Budget Consultation 
2020/21 

Councillor A Barry referred the Committee to the ‘Council 
Priorities and Budget Consultation 2020/21’ report and 
proposed the recommendation as contained within the 
report. 
 
A Member then referred to Paragraph 4.10 and the 
Committee were advised that there was a typographical 
error in the table as Adult Social Care had been included 
twice.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 5e



 
 
 
 
   

 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The results of the Council Priorities, Budget Consultation 
and Council Tax exercise be received and considered. 

761   Budget 2020/21, 
Council Tax 2020/21 
and Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2020/21 
to 2023/24 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) A Council Tax increase of 4.99% for 2020/21 be 
recommended to Council for approval 

(b) A Budget Requirement of £127.533 million for 
2020/21 be recommended to Council for approval 

(c) The Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 
2023/24 be recommended to Council for approval 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 
 

Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

762   Subsidised Transport - 
Pontsticill 

Councillor A Barry having Declared his Interest in this item 
left the Chamber for the consideration of this item. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The recommendation as contained within the report be 
accepted. 

 

RE-OPENED SESSION 
 

763   Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 30



 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 15TH JULY, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors     K O'Neill (Chair) 
                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
 

 Councillors   A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and G Thomas 
  

Officers 
 
E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), A Owen (Interim 
Deputy Chief Executive), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social 
Services)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), S Jones (Head of 
Finance), F Donnelly (H R Manager) and C Dinham 
(Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager), 
D Jones (Adult Learning), and A Stephens (Cabinet Policy 
Officer). 
 
Outside Bodies: 
Ian Phillips (Wales Audit Office) 

  
A Taylor (Head of Democratic Services), M Phillips (Democratic 
Services Officer) and M Edmunds (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Decisions made will come into force 5 working days after publication, unless it 
is subject to a call-in by a Scrutiny Committee 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

806   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

807   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were received. 

808   Provisional Capital 
Outturn  2019/20 

Resolved that: 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5f



 
 
 
 
   

a) The Provisional Capital Outturn Report for 2019/20 
be noted. 
 

b) The budget amendments for core-funded projects 
as outlined in 4.1 below be approved. 

 
c) Variances to the revised budgets as per paragraphs 

4.2 and 5.3 be noted. 
 

d) The amendments to the proposed 2020/21 budget 
following the 2019/20 carry forward 
requirements as per paragraph 4.3 be 
approved. 

809   Revenue Budget 
Outturn 2019/20 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The Provisional Revenue Outturn position for the 
2019/20 financial year be noted. 
 

b) The non-utilisation of the budgeted contribution of 
£483,000 from General Reserves for 2019/20 be 
approved. 

 
c) The non-utilisation of the budgeted contribution of 

£1.295 million from the Budget Reserve for 2019/20 
be approved. 

 
d) The transfer of £1.113 million to the Budget 

Reserve be approved, subject to an agreed 
proportion be made available to support value for 
money investment opportunities. 

 
 

810   Renting Homes (Fees 
etc) (Wales) Act 2019 

Resolved that: 
 

a) Delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief 
Executive and to the Council’s Environmental 
Health Officers to enforce the provisions of the 
Renting Homes (Fees etc) (Wales) Act 2019 and 
that the Council’s constitution be updated 
accordingly. 
 

b) Authorisation be given to Rent Smart Wales under 
the auspices of Cardiff City Council, as the Single 
Licensing Authority for Wales to exercise any 
function of an enforcement authority, in relation to 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s area, for 
the purposes of the Act, including taking 
enforcement activity and bringing criminal 
proceedings pursuant to section 19 of that Act. 

 
 

811   Adult Services: 
COVID-19 

Resolved that: 
 
The Report for Information be received. 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
   

812   Waiving Of Pitch Fees 
2019/2020 Season 

Resolved that: 
 
The Report for Information be received. 

813   Estyn Inspection of 
Merthyr Tydfil Adult 
Community Learning 
(MTACL) Partnership 

Resolved that: 
 
The Report for Information be received. 

814   Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised there was an additional item 
(Authorisation of Officers in Relation to the Health 
Protection (Coronavirus Restrictions) (No. 2) (Wales) 
Regulations 2020) that would be discussed under Any 
Other Business. 

814a   Additional Item - 
Authorisation of 
Officers in Relation to 
the Health Protection 
(Coronavirus 
Restrictions) (No. 2) 
(Wales) Regulations 
2020 

Resolved that: 
 

a) Delegated authority be given to Public Health 
Officers, Trading Standards Officers and Licensing 
Officers to designate them as authorised officers to 
carry out the provisions of the Health Protection 
(Coronavirus Restrictions) (No. 2) (Wales) 
Regulations 2020. 

815   Exempt Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A 
Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

816   Award of Temporary 
Agency Worker 
Contract 

Resolved that: 
 
The Recommendation as contained within the Report be 
accepted. 

 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 16TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 
 

 

PRESENT:  
 

Councillors     K O'Neill (Chair) 
                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
 

 Councillors   A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and G Thomas 
  

Officers 
E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), A Owen (Interim Deputy 
Chief Executive), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), 
L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), J Jones (Chief 
Officer Neighbourhood Services), G Morgan (Solicitor - 
Monitoring Officer), S Jones (Head of Finance), F Donnelly (H R 
Manager), C Dinham (Communications, Consultation and 
Engagement Manager), C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing) 
and A Stephens (Cabinet Policy Officer) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
I Phillips (Audit Wales) 

  
A Taylor (Head of Democratic Services), M Phillips (Democratic 
Services Officer) and M Edmunds (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Decisions made will come into force 5 working days after publication, unless it 
is subject to a call-in by a Scrutiny Committee 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

817   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

818   Declarations of Interest Councillor A Barry declared an interest in Item 9 - Local 
Transport Fund 2020/21. 

819   Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2020/21 – 
Quarter 1 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The Revenue Budget Monitoring report for the 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5g



 
 
 
 
   

2020/21 financial year based on 1st Quarter 
projections be accepted.  

  
b) Budget Virements outlined in Appendix 2 be 

approved.  
  

c) Managers to urgently address projected budget 
deficits within their respective service areas, 
identifying all possible remedial measures to offset 
projected deficits, be approved.   

  
d) Managers to continue to monitor all revenue 

budgets and immediately notify the Chief Finance 
Officer of potential financial difficulties, be 
approved. 

 

820   Capital Budget 
Monitoring  2020/21 – 
Quarter 1 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The Quarter 1 Capital Monitoring Report for 
2020/21 be noted.  

  
b) The budget amendments for core-funded projects 

as outlined in 4.1 below be approved.  
  

c) Variances to the budgets as per paragraphs 4.2 be 
noted. 

821   Highlight Report for 
Corporate Risk 
Register 2019-2020 

Resolved that: 
 

a) Progress on the management of the Council’s 
Corporate Risks for 2019-Due to the impact of 
Covid 19, and subject to funding being available to 
undertake a wider partnership review and full 
partnership commissioning approach, the current 
contracts across Families First be extended to 
2022.   2020 and the Highlight Report for the 
Corporate Risk Register for 2019-2020 (as at 31st 
March 2020) be approved.  

  
b) The progress made in monitoring and mitigating 

Corporate Risks up to the 28th August 2020, be 
noted.  

  
c) An additional Corporate Risk relating to the 

Coronavirus pandemic (The Risk: ‘Pandemic 
(COVID-19) - The Coronavirus pandemic will have 
an adverse health and economic impact on Merthyr 
Tydfil, in turn affecting all functions of the Council 
and the ability to provide public services across the 
Country Borough’) be approved. 
 

Following an observation made by a Committee Member, 
the Chair requested that officers put ‘Public Transport 
Network’ on the next agenda of the Risk Register. 
 
 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
   

822   Welsh Language 
Annual Report 2020 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The Council’s Welsh Language Annual Monitoring 
Report for 2019-2020 be approved.  

  

823   Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Covid-19 Prevention & 
Response Plan 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The endorsing of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg COVID-
19 Prevention & Response Plan be approved; and  

  
b) The Deputy Chief Executive regularly reviews and 

updates the Covid-19 Prevention & Response Plan 
to include changes in Welsh Government guidance 
and to incorporate the lessons learnt in responding 
to the virus, locally, nationally and internationally, 
be approved.  

  

824   Cyfarthfa 64 Byway 
Open To All Traffic 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The necessary consultations with any persons or 
organisations likely to be affected by the order and 
with all statutory consultees be undertaken.  

  
b) Following the consultation process that an Order be 

made under section 1 Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 to prevent the use of the Byway Open to All 
Traffic by mechanically propelled vehicles and the 
necessary statutory procedures to make that order 
be followed. 

 

825   Local Transport Fund 
2020/21 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The award of funding identified within the report be 
approved.  

  

826   Town Centre 
Regeneration Grants – 
COVID-19 Response 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The award of funding for both Welsh Government 
Funded Programmes be approved.   
 

827   Inspection Report - 
Prevention & 
Promotion of 
Independence for 
Older Adults 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The contents of this report be noted. 

828   Parenting Partnership 
Plan 2020-2023 
Consultation 
Outcomes 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The proposed amendments to the draft Parenting 
Partnership Plan 2020-2023 as a result of the 
consultation are noted and the plan be approved.  

  

Page 37



 
 
 
 
   

829   Prevention and 
Performance of Young 
People Not in 
Education, 
Employment or 
Training (NEET) 

Resolved that: 
 

a) Further work is undertaken across the Learning 
Department to review the increase in EOTAS 
numbers and how the impact on the work of the 
Learning Department and partners can be 
mitigated.   

  
b) A multi-agency task and finish group to review and 

agree new, early identification toolkits for both Key 
Stage 2 and Key Stages 3 & 4, due to data 
changes or availability, be established.  

  

830   Families First 
Performance 

Resolved that: 
 

a) Due to the impact of Covid 19, and subject to 
funding being available to undertake a wider 
partnership review and full partnership 
commissioning approach, the current contracts 
across Families First be extended to 2022. 

831   MTCBC Change and 
Wellbeing Programme 
- Quarters 3 & 4 
Progress 2019-2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Report for Information be received. 

832   Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised there was no other business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 38



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 
THURSDAY, 27TH FEBRUARY, 2020 

 
 

PRESENT:  
 

Councillor   C Tovey (Chair) 

 Councillors M Colbran and S Thomas 
  
 Officers: 

S Jones (Senior Solicitor), J Baber (Licensing Officer) and 
A Hughes (Licensing Officer) 
 

 Police Representative:   
Sergeant M Poole 

  
 M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

745   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

746   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Exempt 
 

Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 12 and 13 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5h



 
 
 
 
   

747   Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle Licences 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences (TK) 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences in respect of (TK) 
be revoked. 

748   Any other business 
deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 40



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY, 24TH JUNE, 2020 

 
 

PRESENT:  
 

Councillor   C Tovey (Chair) 

 Councillors M Colbran and S Thomas 
  
 Officers: 

S Jones (Senior Solicitor) and J Baber (Licensing Officer) 
 

 Police Representative:   
A Jenkins (South Wales Police) 

  
 M Edmunds (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

802   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

803   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Exempt 
 

Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 12 and 13 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5i



 
 
 
 
   

804   Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle Licences 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence (RW) 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence in 
respect of (RW) be granted. 

805   Any other business 
deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 42



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

AUDIT MEETING 
 

MONDAY, 9TH MARCH, 2020 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors      C T Jones (Chair) 
                        D Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors:      J Davies, G Lewis, D Sammon and J Thomas 
 
Lay Member: 
R Williams (Lay Member) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
A Barry (Cabinet Member) 
 

 Officers: 
M Thomas (Head of Regional Audit Service), G Evans (Audit 
Manager), H Harbord (Senior Auditor), P H Davies (Purchasing 
Manager) and D Chaffe (Highways and Fleet Manager) 
 
Outside Bodies:  
H Goddard and I Phillips (Wales Audit Office) 
 
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

770   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C 
Tovey. 

771   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

772   Strategic Procurement Gary Evans referred to the ‘Strategic Procurement’ report 
and together with Paul Davies and Helen Harbord 
responded to the following questions raised by the 
Committee: 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 5j



 
 
 
 
   

 Paragraph 6.0 Conclusion - Further explanation 
requested on why a grade of ‘C’ – Satisfactory had 
been awarded 

 Appendix C – Update requested on the follow 
through by Audit staff 

 Appendix C – Key 3 – Explanation requested in 
relation to the monitoring of Contracts under 
£5,000. 

 
Resolved that: 
 
The report be received. 

773   Strategic Procurement 
Action Plan Update 

Paul Davies referred the Committee to the ‘Strategic 
Procurement Audit Progress report’ and updated the 
Committee on the progress on the recommendations. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to by the Officers: 
 

 Timescale for the recommendations 

 Procurement Policy – Are Local Business taken into 
consideration – How are Local Business able to 
apply for Council Contracts – Will there be another 
event similar to an event held previously 

 What is the time implication in relation to leaving 
the EU – Further information requested in relation 
to EU Procurement Rules 

 Paragraph 6.0 – Priority 2 – Staff levels 

 Priority 4 – Information requested on checks to 
ensure standards are met 

 
Resolved that: 
 
The progress to date be noted. 

774   Fleet Management Gary Evans referred the Committee to the ‘Fleet 
Management’ report. 
 

775   Fleet Management 
Action Plan Update 

Darren Chaffe referred the Committee to the ‘Fleet 
Management Action Plan Update’ report and advised that 
the report had been prepared prior to his appointment as 
Highways / Fleet Manager and gave details of staff 
numbers. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers: 
 

 Recommendation 3 – When will this be completed 

 Explanation of Priority 2 requested  

 Explanation requested on the ’Gateway Process’  
 
A Committee Member then suggested that this item be 
deferred for an up to date report to be presented to the next 
Committee Meeting and this was agreed by the Committee. 
 
Resolved that: 

Page 44



 
 
 
 
   

 
This item be deferred. 

776   Certification of Grants 
and Returns 2018 - 19 

Helen Goddard referred the Committee to the ‘Certification 
of Grants and Returns 2018-19 Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council’ report and responded in detail to the 
following questions raised by the Committee: 
 

 Bus Service free travel – How is data recorded on 
buses where there is no smart reader 

 Explanation requested on the service covered by 
the Local Transport Fund 

 
The Chair then thanked Helen Goddard for the update to 
the Committee. 
  

777   Annual Audit Letter 
2018 - 19 

Ian Phillips referred the Committee to the ‘Annual Audit 
Letter Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 2018-19’ and 
together with Helen Goddard responded to the following 
questions raised by the Committee: 
 

 Arrangements in place to secure Economy, 
Efficiency and Effectiveness – External Advisors – 
Is the view being reserved until completion 

 Will there be an interim communication - Timescale 
for when information is available – When can the 
judgement be revisited 

 Is there anything to impede progress – Can short 
term planning proceed 

 
The Chair then thanked the Wales Audit Officers for the 
update to the Committee.  

778   2020 Audit Plan Helen Goddard and Ian Phillips referred the Committee to 
the ‘2020 Audit Plan – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council’ report and responded in detail to the following 
questions raised by the Committee: 
 

 Exhibit 1 – Early submission of accounts – How did 
other Local Authorities do 

 Pressure on the Accounts Section due to earlier 
deadlines 

 
The Chair then thanked the Wales Audit Officers for the 
update to the Committee. 

779   Information Reports The Committee received the Internal Audit report for: 
 

 Bridge Maintenance Systems and Procedures 

780   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the items that 
had been discussed at the Meeting. 

781   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 

Page 45



 
 
 
 
   

 

 

 
 

Page 46



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

AUDIT MEETING 
 

MONDAY, 3RD AUGUST, 2020 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors      C T Jones (Chair) 
                        D Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors:      J Davies, D Sammon, C Tovey and J Thomas 
 
Lay Member: 
R Williams (Lay Member) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
A Barry (Cabinet Member) 
 

 Officers: 
S Jones (Head of Finance), M Thomas (Head of Regional Audit 
Service), C Kennedy (Head of Legal and Governance Services - 
Monitoring Officer), A Owen (Interim Deputy Chief Executive) 
and A Lewis (Chief Accountant) 
 
Outside Bodies:  
H Goddard, N Hollis and I Phillips (Audit Wales) 
 
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer), M Phillips (Democratic 
Services Officer) and M Edmunds (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

817   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor G 
Lewis and Councillor T Rogers. 

818   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

819   Audit Enquiries to 
those Charged with 
Governance and 
Management 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Audit Enquiries to 
those Charged with Governance and Management’ report. 
 
Steve Jones then led the Committee in detail through the 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5k



 
 
 
 
   

report and Appendices.  
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Council’s response to the Wales Audit Office’s request 
for information in respect of Management and Governance 
as set out in Appendices 1 to 3 of the report be noted. 

820   Draft Statement of 
Accounts 2019/2020 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Statement of 
Accounts 2019-20’ report. 
 
Steve Jones then led the Committee in detail through the 
report and the Statement of Accounts for year ended 31 
March 2020 and advised of a typographic error in 
Paragraph 7.2 Capital Outturn as it should read 2019/20 
and not 2018/19. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
on the report and were responded to in detail by the 
Officers: 
 

 Were the costs of Storm Denis included in the net 
surplus 

 What was the claim threshold 

 Paragraph 7.1.2 –  

 Children Looked After – Are there any Residential 
Placements outside the County Borough – What 
are the costs for placements outside the area – Are 
the costs higher 

 Independent External Care Provision –  

 Will this continue into this financial year 

 Independent External Care Provision – 

 Is the surplus a one off or will there be savings from 
now on 

 Supported and Accommodation Services – 

 Is the loss of income likely to continue into this 
financial year 

 Paragraph 16.0 – Financial Instruments 

 Further details requested in relation to the Gellideg 
Co-operative loan 

 Paragraph 33.0 – Related Party Transactions 

 Further details requested in relation to Merthyr 
Valleys Homes 

 
The Chair then thanked all the staff involved in the 
preparation of the report. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Provisional Statement of Accounts 2019/20 be noted. 

821   Annual Internal Audit 
Report for Financial 
Year 2019/2020 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Annual Internal 
Audit Report 2019/20’. 
 
Mark Thomas then led the Committee in detail through the 
report and outlined his reasons for his Opinion as contained 
in the report. 
 

Page 48



 
 
 
 
   

A Member then referred to Paragraph 1.5 of the report and 
the unsatisfactory Opinion and requested evidence on how 
the overall Opinion could be Unsatisfactory. 
 
Mark Thomas then responded giving a detailed explanation 
for his Opinion.  
 
A Member then proposed that the recommendation be 
amended in that further evidence be brought forward to see 
how the Opinion was reached as he did not agree with the 
Unsatisfactory Opinion. 
 
Carys Kennedy then advised that the report could be 
deferred pending further information and evidence. 
 
Mark Thomas advised that this was his Opinion and that he 
had no further evidence to add. 
 
The Committee then considered the recommendation and 
advised that they had given due consideration to the 
Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit and had expressed 
their feelings on the Unsatisfactory Opinion to the Officer.  
 
Resolved that: 
 
Members give due consideration to the Annual Internal 
Audit Report for the Financial Year 2019/20 including the 
Head of Audit’s Annual Opinion on the Council’s Control 
Environment in relation to Governance, Risk Management 
and Internal Control. 
   

822   Draft Annual 
Governance Statement 
for Financial Year 
2019/2020 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Draft Annual 
Governance Statement 2019/20’ report. 
 
Mark Thomas then led the Committee in detail through the 
report. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The draft Annual Governance Statement for 2019/2020 be 
recommended for adoption by the Leader and Chief 
Executive.  

823   Internal Audit Charter The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Regional Internal 
Audit Shared Service Charter 2020/21’ report. 
 
Mark Thomas then led the Committee in detail through the 
report. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Regional Audit Shared Services Charter for 2020/21 be 
approved. 

824   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair reflected on the items that had been considered 
at the Meeting and as this had been the first Audit 
Committee held via Teams he referred to technical issues 

Page 49



 
 
 
 
   

that had been experienced by some Committee Members 
that would be addressed. 

825   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair thanked all the Committee Members and Officers 
that had been involved in the Meeting. 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 50



 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

STANDARDS MEETING 
FRIDAY, 24TH JANUARY, 2020 

 
PRESENT:  
 

J Morgan (In the Chair) 
I Cathrew (Vice Chair) 
 

 Councillors:  
G Richards and C Tovey 
 
Independent Members: 
D McCarthy, A L Morgan and M Veale 

  
Community Council Representative: 
(none) 
 

 Officers: 
S Jones (Senior Solicitor) 
 
K Reddy (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

643   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Councillor Julian 
Amos and Helen Thomas (Bedlinog Community Council 
Representative).  

644   Declarations of Interest No declarations of interest were made. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 
 

Resolved that: 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 12 and 13 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5l



 
 
 
 
   

645   Standards Committee 
Hearing 

In attendance: The complainant 
  The respondent  
  The respondent’s supporter  
 
The Chair welcomed the complainant and respondent to the 
meeting.  
 
Simon Jones, the Council’s Senior Solicitor, referred 
members to the complaint before them today and advised 
that this complaint will be dealt with as a local resolution in 
accordance with the Local Dispute Policy and Procedures.   
 
He took members through Stage 3 of the procedures of the 
Local Dispute Policy together with the statements received 
from the complainant and respondent. 
 
The complainant and respondent then addressed the 
Committee on their statements and were given the 
opportunity to question each other. 
 
The Committee members questioned both the complainant 
and respondent and clarified details outlined in their 
statements. 
 
The complainant and respondent then left the meeting.  
 
Following consideration of the evidence and statements: 
 

 The members agreed the appropriate decision 
which would be conveyed to both the complainant 
and respondent separately after the meeting had 
closed.    

 

 An information report be scheduled for Full Council 
for the 26th February 2020 outlining details and the 
outcome of this Standards Committee’s decision.  

 

RE-OPENED SESSION 
 

646   Confirmation of date of 
next meeting 

It was agreed that the date of the next scheduled meeting 
will be Friday, 27th March 2020 at 2.00 pm. 

647   Any other item deemed 
urgent by the Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 52



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SACRE MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 10TH MARCH, 2020 
 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:    E Galsworthy (Chair)                        
 

 Councillors:     M Jones and I Thomas 
  
 Professional Associations: 

S Bernard Henderson and J Jones 
 
Faith Communities: 
A Star 

  
Officers: 
S Bowen (Inclusion and Wellbeing Manager) 
A Hill (Consultant for Merthyr SACRE) 
 

 M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

791   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D 
Hughes, D O’Keefe, Rev M Prevett and A Pitt.  

792   Declaration of Interests No Declarations of Interest were made. 

793   Minutes of previous 
meeting held on 26th 
November 2019 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the SCARE Meeting held 26 November 
2019 be accepted as a correct record. 

794   Matters Arising There were no Matters Arising. 

795   Constitution/Membersh
ip Update 

Angela Hill reminded the Committee of the Central South 
Consortium advert and the newsletter outlining what is 
SACRE and the invitation to apply to be on a SACRE.  
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 5m



 
 
 
 
   

Any responses to this advert would then be brought to the 
SACRE Committee to consider if the Committee wished to 
accept the application.  

796   WASACRE Updates: The Committee received the Minutes of the WASACRE 
Meeting held 21 November 2019. 
 
Angela Hill referred the Committee to the WASACRE 
Spring Meeting that was being held on 17 March 2020 at 
the Civic Centre, Merthyr Tydfil and advised that SACRE 
Members were invited to attend this Meeting. 
 
It was also agreed that the agenda for this Meeting would 
be circulated to the SACRE Members.  
 
S Bernard Henderson entered the Meeting at 3.52 pm. 

797   Curriculum updates: Press Release – Education Minister Kirsty Williams - 
Children in Wales will have universal access to the full 
curriculum   
 
The Chair referred to the Press Release from the Education 
Minister and stated that he felt there was need for more 
than careful and sensitive implementation. 
 
Angela Hill advised that the comments of the SACRE could 
be raised at the WASACRE Meeting and to also seek 
further clarification on how the Minister intended to 
implement changes and what training would be available to 
Teachers.   
 
Committee Members then shared their views on the 
removal of the right of parents to withdraw their children 
from Religious Education lessons.  
 
The Committee also indicated their support to the change of 
name of Religious Education to Religion, Values and Ethics. 
 
Draft Framework for Religious Education 
 
Angela Hill referred the Committee to the Welsh 
Government Curriculum for Wales Guidance Document and 
advised that more information would be available after the 
WASACRE Meeting.  She also advised that it may be 
necessary to convene a Special SACRE Meeting to discuss 
matters in relation to this Document. 
 
The Committee also agreed that this matter be agendered 
for the next Committee Meeting. 

798   Update on cross 
SACRE working 

Angela Hill circulated to the Committee a Questionnaire on 
Cross SACRE Working for their consideration and invited 
the opinion of the Committee. 
 
Suggestions were then made for questions on the 
Questionnaire such as: 
 

 Timing of Meetings 

Page 54



 
 
 
 
   

 
Questions were also raised in relation to: 
 

 Standing agenda item to receive information from 
other SACRE’s to gain an overview of what is 
happening elsewhere 

 Quorum for this Joint SACRE 

 The Local Authorities involved 
 
Resolved that: 
 

(a) The Cross SACRE Working Questionnaire be 
circulated  to the four other Local Authorities 

(b) Angela Hill translate the Questionnaire prior to 
circulation  

(c) Angela Hill arrange a suitable date for a Cross 
SACRE Working Meeting   

799   Nominations for 
WASACRE Executives 

Angela Hill referred the Committee to the letter from 
WASACRE inviting the Committee to make nominations for 
new Members of the WASACRE Executive Committee. 
 
No nominations had been received from the Committee for 
the positions. 
 
The Committee then agreed that the nomination papers be 
recirculated to the SACRE Members inviting nominations. 

800   Dates and venues for 
future meetings 

The Committee considered the date and venue for the next 
Committee with the possibility of going out to schools as 
Meeting venues being considered. 
 
Due to logistical issues the Committee agreed that 
Meetings in Schools should be held from the Autumn Term 
onwards. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The next SACRE Meeting be held on Tuesday 16 June 
2020 at the Civic Centre, Merthyr Tydfil commencing at 
3.45 pm. 
 
Councillor I Thomas entered the Meeting at 4.25 pm having 
been in attendance at a Social Services Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting. 

801   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS 
CHANGE AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 25TH FEBRUARY, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:   T Skinner (Chair)                       
 

 Councillors: D Sammon, W R Smith and C T Jones 
  
 Cooptees: 

J Beard (Public) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
A Barry (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
F Donnelly (H R Manager), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), 
H Brown (Human Resources), P Williams (Principal Human 
Resources Advisor) and M Purnell (Performance and Scrutiny 
Officer) 
 
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

707   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor G 
Lewis, Councillor J Amos and Councillor H R Jones. 

708   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5n



 
 
 
 
   

declarations) 

709   Human Resources 
Report 

The Chair welcomed Councillor A Barry, Fran Donnelly, 
Hannah Brown and Paul Williams to the Meeting. 
 
Fran Donnelly referred the Committee to the ‘Human 
Resources’ Report and together with Councillor Barry and 
the Officers responded in detail to the following questions 
that were raised by the Committee: 
 
Single Points of Dependency (SPOD’s) 
 

 Clarification sought on the Legal SPOD 

 Explanation sought on the different issues under 
SPOD’s and Capacity 

 Succession planning 
 
 
Staff Capability 
 

 Is this from the bottom to the top of the 
Organisation – Is it more for Management level- 
Skill set if from a different Organisation 

 Do Managers have time to produce Capability 
reports and procedures to effectively manage staff 

 Part of staff capability is the ability to log small 
details – Do Managers have the information to 
determine if the Policy works – Do Managers have 
time to do this 

 Request made for capability figures for the last 
three years 

 How many times has a capability process been 
seen through to the end 

 Accuracy of the data on capability 

 Suggestion – That an ICT information gathering 
system be used to save time and to give the 
Committee the exact information that is out there 

 May be improvements with new software but not if 
an issue of culture  

 Problems with identifying who has been placed on 
capability – The pressure on people under 
capability and the link to stress and sickness 

 The need to get the information onto an ICT system 
as soon as possible 

 Are all Managers trained – Are all Managers 
dealing in the same way – Are all Managers fully 
trained up 

 Are 1:1’s a matter of course with all staff – 
Frequency of 1:1’s – Managers time for these 

 Clarity sought on: The overall picture of Capability – 
How it is being done – The role of HR 

 Less Managers – Multi skilled staff – How is 
capability being checked – Who interviews 
Managers on Capability – Time consuming for 
Managers – Efficiency cuts – What plans are in 
place  

 What are the costs for new ICT Software – Will it be 
costly or affordable in the budget – Timescales for 

Page 58



 
 
 
 
   

implementation 

 What if extra staff are required to implement new 
and extra systems 

 Has this been factored into next years budget 
 
Capacity Exercise 
 

 Paragraph 3.1.1 – Areas identified in the table – 
How many staff is this in total 

 Explanation requested in relation to unallocated 
funds 

 Capacity, Sickness rates and Capability all tied 
together 

 
Work Related Stress and Staff Sickness 
 

 Sickness costs – Details requested on the provision 
of Occupational Health  

 Comparison figures requested for before 2015/16 of 
costs when the  Occupational Health service was in 
house  

 (Paul Williams advised that he would supply this 
data) 

 What is the way forward – Are there sickness 
hotspots – Is there random drug/drink testing  

 
The Redundancy Process 
 

 No questions raised on this 
 
The impact of the VR/VER Process  
 

 Request made for a breakdown for each section on 
the impact VR/VER has had on that section 

 (Fran Donnelly advised that this would be done with 
the service areas that had lost staff in April) 

 Staff Culture Survey - Why was this not used as a 
snapshot of VR/VER – How did the staff feel - 
Concerns need to be known – Should have been 
included in the report 

 (The Chair stated that the Committee would have 
expected to see the results) 

 Could a Wellbeing Survey be undertaken with staff 
to see how staff are feeling individually 

 No staff numbers provided for the posts detailed in 
the table – Explanation of why some posts are not 
in the Medium Term Financial Plan 

 
Agency Workers 
 

 Explanation requested on the length of service for 
some agency staff – Why had these agency staff 
not been appointed – Have these staff been offered 
a permanent position 

 Explanation requested in relation to applying for a 
post and the advertising of posts 

 Cost of agency staff in comparison to permanent 
staff 

Page 59



 
 
 
 
   

 IR 35 – Are the rights the same 

 What is the cost to the Authority in relation to IR 35 
in line with Authority staff 

 Comparison of costs from last year under IR35 
requested 

 (Fran Donnelly advised that she would produce this 
data for the Committee) 

 
 

 Clarity requested on measures – Are KPI’s used 

 The need for evidence and the implications of 
getting H R wrong 

 
Councillor A Barry then addressed the Committee giving 
details of the pressures on the Authority. 
 
A suggestion was then made that the Committee support 
the implementation of the new H R system but was not 
agreed.  A suggestion was also made to investigate if this 
new system could be developed in house. 
 
The Chair then referred to the matters to be followed up 
with the H R Department: 
 

 A copy of the Culture Survey Results for the 
Committee and the actions resulting from this 
survey 

 The impact of VR/VER on Services 

 The cost implications of IR35 in comparison to 
agency staff costs 

 The potential alternative to bought in H R software 
 
Resolved that: 
 

(a) The content of the report and progress made to 
date be noted 

(b) The further information requested at the Meeting be 
circulated to the Committee 

710   Best Start to Life The Chair welcomed Sue Walker to the Meeting. 
 
Sue Walker referred the Committee to the ‘Best Start to 
Life’ report and responded in detail to the following 
questions raised by the Committee: 
 

 Changeover of Advisors – Explanation of the role 
and the work undertaken – Is regular change a 
good thing – Request for examples of good practice 

 Challenge advisors and Governing Bodies 

 Appendix 3 – Foundation Phase – (b) – Explanation 
of paragraph requested 

 Key Stage 2 – (b) – What are the three measures 
that performance has fallen down on 

 Key Stage 3 – (d) (e) – What work is being 
undertaken in schools 

 Reference to the report of the Minister – How long 
does it take to change results 

 Inspection Profile – Utilisation of excellent 

Page 60



 
 
 
 
   

practitioners to share good practice – Is this 
happening  

 How can the Authority work with parents to improve 
attendance  

 Paragraph 6.3 – Raising Standards Raising 
Aspirations (RARS) and Paragraph 6.4 – 21st 
Century Schools - Clarity sought on these 
paragraphs 

 If there is no measure how can progress be 
monitored 

 Update requested on – What is the Authority doing 
in relation to working with the third sector and 
consultation with youth 

 The link to the Corporate Plan – How to fit in with 
plans for extra homes and the Local Development 
Plan – How does 21st Century Schools link back to 
the Corporate Plan and the Local Development 
Plan   

 
The Chair then thanked Sue Walker for the update to the 
Committee  

711   Work Programme 
2019-20 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Work Programme 
2019/20’ report and advised of the necessity to compile a 
programme for the forthcoming year.  The Chair also invited 
any Committee Member to join her in compiling the 
forthcoming Work Programme and welcomed submission of 
topics for consideration.  

Quorum 
 

The remainder of the agenda could not be considered due to the Meeting becoming inquorate.   
 

712   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

 

713   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

 

714   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

 

 
 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION 
AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 

MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 3RD MARCH, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   G Lewis (Vice-Chair, in the Chair) 
                      
 

 Councillors   M Colbran, L Davies, K Gibbs and S Thomas 
  
 Cooptees: 

H Hopkins (Public), H Jackson (Voluntary Sector), H Powell 
(Public) and M Ellis (Youth Forum Representative) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
G Thomas (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
C Long (Economic Development & Strategic Tourism Manager), 
P Lewis (Trading Standards and Licensing Manager), Z Thomas 
(European & External Funding Support Officer) and M Purnell 
(Performance and Scrutiny Officer) 
 
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

749   Apologies for Absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

750   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5o



 
 
 
 
   

751   Town Centre 
Masterplan 

The Chair welcomed Councillor G Thomas, Chris Long, Zoe 
Thomas and Paul Lewis to the Meeting. 
 
Chris Long referred the Committee to the ’Town Centre 
Masterplan’ report and together with Zoe Thomas gave an 
update on the current position. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by Councillor G Thomas 
and the Officers: 
 

 Paragraph 5.2 – Low Carbon Town – Are there any 
plans for electric charging points for vehicles – The 
need to be prepared 

 Paragraph 4.3 – What was undeliverable – Why 
were they undeliverable – What has been learned 

 Three big projects – Funding 

 Electric points for Commercial Vehicles – How far 
away are Coach Companies from being fully 
electric 

 Paragraph 5.1 – Feedback requested on this 

 Update requested on the old Bus Station – What is 
the current situation 

 (Chris Long advised that an update would be made 
to Committee once plans had been consolidated) 

 Explanation requested on the details of the 
Riverside Project 

 Details requested on the relocation of business to 
the new Bus Station 

 Would it be possible to have a Workshop on the 
Masterplan 

 (Chris Long advised that this could be arranged) 

 Possibility of proving Tourism Tours around Merthyr 
Tydfil – The possible involvement of Students in 
this 

 Links with Merthyr College 

 Helpful to Committee Members if a flow chart could 
be included in reports and how proposals fitted in 
with the Local Development Plan 

 Engagement of the public through the use of 
Technology  

 The possibility of Virtual Tours  

 Possibility of Tours utilising Virtual Reality devises 
on key occasions 

 The positive response to the Walking Tours that 
have been provided  

 (Chris Long advised that he would circulate to the 
Committee a 3D tour of the Bus Station Proposal) 

 
Resolved that: 
 
The report be noted. 
 
Councillor S Thomas left the Meeting at 3.10 pm 
 
Councillor L Davies left the Meeting at 3.12 pm and 
returned at 3.13 pm. 

Page 64



 
 
 
 
   

752   Continued 
Development of the 
Town Centre - Evening 
Economy 

Chris Long referred the Committee to the ‘Continued 
Development of the Town Centre – Evening Economy’ 
report and together with Zoe Thomas and Paul Lewis gave 
an overview of the report, the work done, key challenges 
and the ongoing challenges. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by Councillor G Thomas 
and the Officers: 
 

 Further information requested on ‘Purple Flag 
Scheme’ – What has been done so far and what 
needs to be done  

 5.1 – The effect of this 

 The new minimum unit price for alcohol – Will this 
have an impact on local businesses – Will there be 
a positive effect 

 Liaison with independent business and chains  

 Paragraph 5.6 – Has this post been filled 

 What are the level of Grants 

 VVP – Information requested 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The report be noted. 

753   Corporate Self-
Evaluation - Question 
3 (Leadership & 
Management) 

Chris Long and Maria Purnell referred the Committee to the 
‘Corporate Self-Evaluation – Question 3 (Leadership and 
Management)’ report and gave an update on the content of 
the report. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers: 
 

 How many staff are in the Directorate 

 How many are Managers 

 Are Managers less accessible due to a leaner 
Organisation 

 Explanation of the term ‘Demanding’ 

 The key points identified – Were they anonymous  

 Paragraph 3.3 – Leadership and Management – 
How much detail was included 

 (Chris Long advised that this would be picked up as 
an action to quantify)  

 
The Chair then thanked the Officers for attending and the 
update to the Committee. 

754   Work Programme 
2019-20 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Work Programme 
2019/20’ report and it was agreed that the Scrutiny Officer 
liaise with the Chair in relation to the agenda for the next 
Meeting. 
 
H Jackson Co-opted Member left the Meeting at 4.07 pm. 

755   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
Up Actions 

The Chair advised that there was no update on this item. 

Page 65



 
 
 
 
   

756   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the items that 
had been considered at the Meeting. 

757   Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 66



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, 21ST JANUARY, 2020 

 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and I Thomas 
  

Officers: 
L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), S Lyons 
(Performance and Scrutiny Officer), A Lloyd (Head of Children's 
Services), A Edevane (Head of Adult Services) and M Phillips 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

633   Apologies for absence The Chair noted apologies for absence from the Cabinet 
Member for Social Services Councillor C Davies who was 
undertaking other duties as the Children’s and Young 
Persons Champion.  

634   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of interest were received. 

635   Corporate Self-
Evaluation - Question 
2 (Provision and  
Service Delivery) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones introduced the item to the committee and 
explained that it was in relation to Corporate Self Evaluation 
Question Two and highlighted the salient points within the 
report. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5p



 
 
 
 
   

 

 Due to efficiencies and staff leaving the department 
were you able to maintain the same level of 
service as in previous years 
 

 Are there still gaps in staffing within Social Services 
that need to be filled and do you have difficulties 
filling particular vacancies 

 

 Clarity was sought in relation to Social Services 
(Adult Services) relationship with the legal services 
department and whether the situation could be 
improved with training or whether regional working 
would be beneficial 

 

 Clarity was sought in relation to Human Resources 
policies and procedures in relation to recruitment 
of specialist posts within Social Services 

 

 Do you agree that it is always better to advertise 
vacancies internally 

 

 The report highlights issues within Adult Services 
where HR advisors were providing differing 
interpretations of the guidance, what measures are 
in place to resolve these issues in the future 

 

 Concerns was raised in relation to the lack of 
information and detail contained within the Areas 
for Development for both Children’s Services and 
Adult Services 

 

 Concerns were raised in relation to the lack of 
capacity within specific areas and the fact that it 
isn’t highlighted within the Areas of Development 
so therefore doesn’t seem to be a priority 

 

 Is it possible that in future the report could delve a 
little deeper into individual areas within Adult and 
Children’s Services which would provide the 
committee with more opportunity to scrutinise  

 

 Could the feedback from the managers in the 
individual areas within Adult and Children’s 
Services be provided as appendices to allow the 
committee to better understand the process and 
understand how they self-evaluate their service 
area 

 

 Regional Board Meetings – Do you receive 
feedback form the meetings and can the 
information be brought to the committee to show 
what the priorities are 

 

 The Chair raised concerns around the staffing 
issues within Social Services 

 
 

Page 68



 
 
 
 
   

 

 In relation to Housing, is that the Authorities 
Housing Department or do you liaise with 
Registered Social Landlords 

 

 Clarity was sought in relation to grant funding, how 
they work, what grants are available, and the 
length of time the grants are available 

 

 The Chair suggested a workshop to discuss the 
staffing issues and to be able to delve a little 
deeper in to individual service areas 

 

 Under Human Resources – Children’s Services the 
report states that the online application process is 
a barrier to recruitment, can you explain to the 
committee how this is a hindrance 

 
The Chair thanked the offices for the report. 

636   Adult Social Care 
Strategies 

Angela Edevane introduced the item to the committee and 
highlighted the salient points within the report. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
were responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 

 Can you provide the committee with a brief outline 
of the sort of queries you receive from the people 
being supported by the ‘stay well at home’ scheme 
and whether you think that the scheme should be a 
24 hour around the clock service 
 

 Clarity was sought in relation to the repeated use of 
the word ‘Continue’ in the What We Need To Do 
Next section of the report 
 

 How much money was received through the 
Transformational Funding from Welsh Government 
 

The Chair thanked the officers for the report. 

637   Corporate Parenting 
Board Update 

Annabel Lloyd introduced the item to the committee and 
highlighted the salient points within the report. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
were responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 

 Clarity was sought in relation to the figures quoted 
in 5.9 Age Range Profile as at 31.03.18 and at 
31.03.19 and whether the increase in 0-4 age group 
is a developing crisis 
 

 At the end of quarter 2 2019 -2020 what is the 
actual number of looked after children 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



 
 
 
 
   

 

 Clarity was sought in relation to 5.6 of the report 
which stated at quarter 2 end 2019-20 we noted a 
reduced demand for looked after services and the 
rate of which children have become looked after 
has reduced by 50%, as the figures do not reflect 
this 
 

 Can you confirm that there has been a significant 
increase in Merthyr Tydfil Foster Carers during the 
period 31.03.18 to 31.03.19  
 

 Clarity was sought in relation to the figures in 5.10 
and whether the change of placement was 
connected to inexperienced foster carers 
 

 An update was sought in relation to a question that 
was raised when the committee received the first 
annual report for corporate parenting last year in 
relation to what early intervention work has been 
carried out in relation to care leavers to stop the 
perpetuating cycle of poor outcomes for children 
 

 What are the roles and responsibilities of elected 
members as corporate parents given that only six of 
the thirty three members sit on Social Services 
Scrutiny, as officers what do you expect from 
members and what boundaries should members be 
aware of 
 

 Clarity was sought in relation to how many children 
are placed in care homes outside of the County 
Borough 
 

 How many children are currently in Residential 
Care 
 

 As Corporate Parents are Councillors expected to 
carry out visits to these homes 
 

 Clarity was sought in relation to the care home 
which was stated as being ‘Out of the Country’ 
 

The Chair raised concerns in relation to the current figure of 
Children looked after especially the figures in the 0-4 year 
age group which would also mean there are young parents 
who would need support and assistance. 
 

 In relation to the significant increase in the 0-4 year 
olds have you considered looking deeper at the 
profile of these children and mapped where these 
children are within the local authority and overlaid 
the findings with the level of support services 
available to see if the needs are prevalent in 
particular areas within the Borough    

 
The chair thanked the officer for a very informative report. 

 

Page 70



 
 
 
 
   

 
  

 

638   Budget Update for 
Scrutiny Committee 

Lisa Curtis-Jones provided the committee with a budget 
update on the Month 7 position and highlighted the key 
points within the report. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 

 Supported and Accommodation Services for the 
elderly is currently showing a possible overspend 
of £310,000. In many cases the elderly have a 
debt to the authority, when they pass away and 
debt is reclaimed by the authority is that included 
in the figures in the report 
 

The Chair thanked the Officers for the update. 
 

639   Forward Work 
Programme 2019/20 

The Scrutiny Officer updated the committee on the work 
programme and explained that the additional items could be 
slotted in before the end of the municipal year. 

640   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Chair advised the committee that no referrals, feedback 
or follow up actions had been received. 

641   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered. 

642   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

No other business was deemed urgent by the Chair. 

 
 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, 10TH MARCH, 2020 

 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and I Thomas 
  

Other Councillors in Attendance: 
Councillor C Davies (Cabinet Member for Social Service) 
 
 
Officers: 
L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), A Lloyd (Head 
of Children's Services), L Morgan (Principal Manager Adult 
Services) S Jablaoui (Performance Officer) and M Phillips 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
A Harris (Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Adoption Collaborative 
(VVC)) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

782   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received. 

783   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were received. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5q



 
 
 
 
   

784   Vale, Valleys and 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report for 1 
April 2018 to 31 March 
2019 

Annabel Lloyd introduced the item and apologised for the 
delay in the report being brought to the committee due to 
circumstances beyond their control. 
 
Angela Harris then highlighted a number key performance 
data points within the report and briefly highlighted some 
general findings, which were of interest to the committee. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
were responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 
The chair highlighted that the report was very positive and 
different to the Annual Report last year. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Social Services echoed the Chairs 
comments and thanked the officers for all the excellent work 
that is been carried out in adoption services. Councillor 
Davies also highlighted a number of the key headlines from 
Appendix One. 
 

 Can you confirm that the service is now fully staffed 
 

 Clarification was sort in relation to the figures on 
page 15 relating to the number of adoptive 
placements and the number of children waiting who 
had not been placed. 
 

 The report states that 43% of adoption referrals 
were withdrawn, can you explain why they were 
withdrawn and who is responsible for making the 
withdrawal  
 

 The report states that 65% of placements were 
made within the region, 9% elsewhere in Wales and 
26% outside of Wales. Can you explain the reason 
26% of placements were outside of Wales 
 

 Can you explain to the committee why the Merthyr 
Tydfil figures in the graph on Page 28 (children who 
have waited longer than 6 months for SBA to 
Match) are significantly lower than other regions 
 

 The report highlights that on average children are 
placed within 17.1 months, are the reasons for this 
timescale out of the local authorities control 
 

 Can you explain to the committee how you support 
families that are currently waiting to adoption 
 

 Can you explain to the committee what is meant by 
the term “open letterbox cases” 
 

 Do parents of the adopted children have to take 
part in the letterbox scheme 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 
 
 
   

 

 Can you provide more information in relation to the 
new finding family scheme, Adopting Together that 
has been set up by St David’s Adoption Agency 
and Barnardos. The report states that ten referrals 
were made to the scheme and six children have 
been placed on a spot purchase basis. What is 
“spot purchase basis” 
 

 The committee commended the work being carried 
out around Marketing, but raised concern that the 
majority of events were held outside of the County 
Borough of Merthyr Tydfil 
 

 Letterbox Cases – It was stated that a small 
number of children are allowed physical contact 
with close family members, is this something that 
the family would request during the court process 
and is it encouraged by The Vale, Valleys and 
Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC) 
 

 What percentage of Foster Carers go on to adopt 
 

The information requested on the percentage of Foster 
Carers who go on to adopt will be sent out by email to the 
committee members 

 
The Chair thanked the Officers for the report and the 
responses that were provided to the committees questions. 
 

785   Children’s Services 
Strategy 

The Chair addressed the committee in relation to a 
workshop that was scheduled to go ahead last month, 
however; it was postponed due to issues outside of the 
Officers control.  
 
The workshop has now been rescheduled for the week 
commencing 16 March and the Chair requested the 
committee not Scrutinise the report until after the workshop 
as members will gain a better understanding of the services 
after attending the workshop. 
 
The committee agreed for the item to be deferred and 
brought back to the committee after the members have 
attended the workshop. 
 
Annabel Lloyd provided the committee with an update on 
the strategy and covered a number of highlights within the 
report. 
 
The committee did request a response to the following 
question: 
 

 It is clear that the pressure point highlighted in the 
report is capacity, what are the current sickness 
levels within Social Services 

 

Page 75



 
 
 
 
   

786   Adult Services 
Accommodation 
Strategy for Older 
People and Adults with 
a Learning Disability 

Lowri Morgan introduced the report and provided the 
committee with the highlights and the salient points. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
were responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 

 The report states that residential care is the least 
favoured option as there are concerns about quality 
of care and standards, can you confirm if this 
statement is the public’s perception of the service 
 

 There have been many changes of the years, are 
you confident that as an Authority we can achieve 
what we have set out to achieve 
 

 Dementia Day Care Services has it already closed 
and if so will this impact on the plan outlined in the 
report 
 

 Can you confirm what ‘Other’ means in the tables 
on Page 59-61 
 

 Under Key Milestones in the report it states – 2021 
Revise the Older Persons provision at Ty Gurnos to 
provide support for people with dementia. Can you 
explain this to the committee 
 

The Chair thanked the Officer for an excellent report and for 
all the work that is being carried out. 

 

787   Forward Work 
Programme 2019/20 

The Chair advised that the work programme will be updated 
to included Children’s Services Strategy once members 
have attended the planned workshop. 
 

788   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

No Referrals, Feedback or Follow Up Actions were 
received.  

789   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered. 

790   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

Lisa Curtis-Jones addressed the Committee on the Corona 
Virus and the possible impacts within Social Services. 
 
The Chair thanked the members for their attendance and 
closed the meeting. 

 
 

 

Page 76



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LGES MEETING 

 
MONDAY, 6TH JANUARY, 2020 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors  H R Jones (Chair) 
                       S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
Councillors B Carter, D Chaplin and M Jones 

  
 Cooptees: 

C Brown (Parent Governor-Primary), R Lazell (Parent Governor-
Secondary/Special) and K Phelan (Diocesan Representative) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
L Mytton (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), S Jablaoui (Performance 
Officer) and C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
Andrew Williams and Emma Willmott (Central South 
Consortium) 
 
K Reddy (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

583   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Councillor Howard 
Barrett and Kaitlin Sutton (Youth Forum Representative). 

584   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No declarations of interest were made.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 5r



 
 
 
 
   

585   Key Stage 4 
Performance Report 

The Chair welcomed Andrew Williams and Emma Willmott 
from the Central South Consortium to the meeting.  
 
Sue Walker referred to the Key Stage 4 Performance 
Report and gave an update to members on the significant 
changes made to the KS4 performance between reports in 
2018 and 2019.   She advised that new performance 
measures have been introduced that use average points 
scores for interim performance measures of Literacy, 
Numeracy, Science, Capped 9 Points Score and Welsh 
Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate.    
 
Sue Walker, Andrew Williams and Emma Willmott provided 
background information in relation to the following 
questions: 
 

 How does the Authority’s current performance 
relate to the period of time when we were in special 
measures?   If inspected now, is there a risk that 
we would go back into special measures? 

 

 Clarification if this score is representative of all 
schools.   

 

 Should we be considering going to other Authorities 
to look at best practice? 

 

 Are under-performing Schools having additional 
support? 

 

 Clarification on the improvement packages of 
support in place, and are there any improvements 
on progress? 

 

 In relation to the average literacy and numeracy 
points score, should we be doing more work with 
the Headteachers of both Primary and Secondary 
Schools, and what strategies need to be put in 
place to move this forward? 

 

 What is in place to have effective transition 
arrangements within Primary Schools and should 
Secondary Headteachers be part of the process? 

 

 Are the right procedures and individuals in place to 
implement these changes? 

 
Members then received an update on categorisation from 
Andrew Williams and Emma Willmott from the Central 
South Consortium. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
The contents of the report be noted by members. 

586   Raising Aspirations, 
Raising Standards 
Strategy (RARS) 

The Chair advised that members of the Committee feel that, 
at the present time, the Raising Aspirations, Raising 
Standards Strategy update will be treated as an information 

Page 78



 
 
 
 
   

report, and that members will discuss this in detail when the 
final report is presented.   
 
Sue Walker advised that she would welcome comments 
and would be happy to meet with members outside on this 
Committee.    It was agreed that a meeting be arranged with 
Sue Walker and members of the Committee in order to 
discuss this report. 

587   Review of the 
Education Other Than 
At School (EOTAS) 
Provision 

Sue Walker updated members on the Review of the 
Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) Provision and 
advised of the impact of the recent changes to provision for 
EOTAS and attainment for this group of young people.    
 
Sue Walker provided background information in relation to 
the following questions: 
 

 Clarification on the transition arrangements from 
the PRU to mainstream education in relation to Key 
Stage 2, 3, 4 pupils.     

 

 Clarification on the Special Tuition arrangement? 
 

 Are tutors with Equity Solutions qualified teachers?    
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
Members note the contents of the report.  
 
Sue Walker to confirm whether tutors with Equity Solutions 
are qualified teachers. 

588   Work programme 
2019-20 

The Committee considered and agreed the Work 
Programme. 

589   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Chair advised that there was no update on this matter.  

590   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Members reflected in detail on the items 
discussed in the meeting.   

591   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.  

 
 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LGES MEETING 

 
MONDAY, 24TH FEBRUARY, 2020 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors  H R Jones (Chair) 
                       S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
Councillors H Barrett, D Chaplin and M Jones 

  
 Cooptees: 

R Lazell (Parent Governor-Secondary/Special) 
 
Officers: 
C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing), S Bowen (Inclusion and 
Wellbeing Manager) and S Jablaoui (Performance Officer) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
Emma Willmott (Central South Consortium) 
 
K Reddy (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

699   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Councillor Brent 
Carter and Claire Brown, Kath Phelan, Michelle Symonds 
and Karl Jones (Co-optees). 
 
The Chair advised the members that Alan Rees has 
resigned as a Co-optee of this Committee after 16 years.   
On behalf of the Committee the Chair wanted to express his 
appreciation for all his efforts and support over the last 16 
years.    It was agreed that the Scrutiny Officer would send 
a letter of thanks to Alan Rees.    

Page 81

Agenda Item 5s



 
 
 
 
   

700   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No declarations of interest were made.  

 

The Chair agreed that the exempt item (Corporate Self-Evaluation - 
Inspection Area 1)  will be considered at the start of the agenda 
 

701   Attendance and 
Exclusions 

Sarah Bowen referred to the Attendance and Exclusions 
report and took members through the report in detail as 
follows: 
 

 The outcomes for attendance and exclusions in 
2017/18 and 2018/19. 

 Progress against targets. 

 Key areas for improvement.  

 Where we want to be  -  in line with welsh 
averages.  

 Delivering Family Liaison/Attendance and 
Wellbeing Officer training to all Schools and 
relevant LA staff.     

 The utilisation of Fixed Penalty Notices.   

 Role of the Challenge Advisers.  

 Holding two attendance weeks for Schools to have 
attendance as a key focus.  

 
Sarah Bowen provided background information in relation to 
the following questions: 

 

 Clarification on why MTCBC is the only Local 
Authority in Wales that operates an EWS 
financial SLA.   Why has this decision been 
made and can this decision be overturned? 

 

 Why are only 10 of the 20 Schools seen an 
improvement? 

 

 Clarification on reduced timetable 
arrangements for Children. 

 

 Does reduced timetable arrangements affect 
the School’s non-attendance figures? 

 

 Home School Children’s homes being affected 
by recent floods  -  is the Local Authority aware 
of these and, if so, are measures being put in 
place to support these families? 

 

 In relation to the decrease in the overall 
Exclusion of Children from Schools, does this 
mean that behaviour has been improved or are 
the Schools managing the behaviour more in-
house. 

 
 
 
 

Page 82



 
 
 
 
   

 

 With regard to the Nurture provision, are 
Schools being offered training to look at all 
aspects that surround the Child coming into the 
School etc.    

 
RESOLVED that: 
 
The contents of the report be noted by members.  

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 
 

Resolved that: 
 
The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
 

702   Corporate Self-
Evaluation – Inspection 
Area 1 

The members were given an update in relation to Corporate 
Self-Evaluation – Inspection Area 1, and questions were 
asked by members and answered by the appropriate 
Officer.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

 The contents of the report are noted by members.  
 

 Members to provide feedback to officers.  
 

 Members are in agreement with the outcomes 
outlined in the summary statement.   

 

RE-OPENED SESSION 
 

703   Work Programme 
2019/20 

The Committee considered and agreed the Work 
Programme. 

704   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Chair advised that there were no updates on this 
matter.  

705   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the members reflected in detail on the items 
discussed in the meeting.  

706   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 

To:  Mayor, Ladies and 
Gentlemen 

 

AGILE AND HOMEWORKING POLICY 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s approval for the introduction of the 

Agile and Homeworking Policy.   
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) THAT 
 
2.1 The Agile and Homeworking Policy be approved. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 COVID-19 has forced many organisations to utilise working from home in order to 

ensure business continuity/services can continue.  At the outset of the pandemic, the 
Government introduced measures and the recommendation was that the public were 
to stay at home and even though these measures have been relaxed in England the 
Welsh Government’s advice is still if you are able to work from home then this should 
continue. 

 
3.2 For some service areas/departments working from home will be familiar territory and 

staff in these areas will find it easier to adapt to these new working conditions.  For 
other service areas/departments agile and home working will be a completely new 
concept and these departments may struggle, certainly in the initial period, to adapt. 
 
 

Date Written 28 September 2020* 

Report Author Beverley Taylor 

Service Area Human Resources & 
Development 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non-Exempt 

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 85

Agenda Item 6



3.3 Working from home will be the ‘new way of working’ for many organisations as we 
progress through the COVID pandemic and with no current Council policy on agile 
and home working this guidance will give clarity to managers and clearly outline to 
them what they can expect from their staff and equally what staff can expect from 
their manager and the Council.   
 

3.4 It is acknowledged that not all staff will be prepared for agile or home working and 
that workers may not have access to the appropriate IT systems or appropriate 
workstations that they would be usually accustomed to at work. 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 

4.1 It is expected that there may be some financial implications in order to support agile 
or home working (such as providing electronic equipment e.g. laptop, suitable desk 
equipment/chair in order to minimise musculoskeletal injuries). 

 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 Positive 

Impacts 
Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4 1 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

 5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
of 10 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

of 1 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are … to provide clear guidance to both managers and staff.   
Greater flexibility for staff, improving effectiveness and work productivity. 
Reducing travel and resource use, thereby generating savings on utility costs in Council 
Buildings. 
 
The main negative impacts are … employees becoming or feeling isolated as more lone 
working and remote working is undertaken. 
Loss of team spirit or team effectiveness. 
Difficulties in managing performance. 

Page 86



 
 

 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Human Resources Department 

 
 

Agile and Home Working Policy 
 

 

Page 89



2 
 

CONTENTS           PAGE 
 

         AMENDMENT SHEET 3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

             4 

2. SCOPE OF POLICY 
 

4 

3. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 4 
 

4. DEFINITION OF AGILE/HOME WORKING 
 

5 

5. BENEFITS OF AGILE/HOME WORKING 
 

7 

6. CRITERIA TO BE USED FOR AGILE/HOME WORKING   

ARRANGEMENTS 
 

7 

7. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

7 

8. MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

8 

9. RECORDING WORKING TIME WHILST AGILE OR HOME    

WORKING 

 

8 

10.  PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 8 
 

11.  TRAINING AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT 9 
 

12.   HOMEWORKING SELF ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 
 

9 

13.   EQUIPMENT 
 

9 

14.   INFORMATION SECURITY 
 

9 

15.   COMMUNICATION AND SAFETY 
 

10 

16.   INSURANCE 
 

10 

17.   POLICY COMPLIANCE 11 
 

         APPENDIX 1 – HOMEWORKING SELF ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



3 
 

 

Policy – Agile/Home Working Policy 
 

 

Policy 

approved by 

Date 

approved 

Date 

implemented 

Policy Owner Review 

date 
Full Council 
 

7th October 
2020 

7th October 2020 Bev Taylor 7th October 
2021 

 

Prior to contacting Human Resources regarding the content of this policy, it is recommended 
that you refer to the most up to date version on the intranet. 
 
As is the case with all intranet documents, this policy is subject to review due to legislative and 
policy changes.  The latest version of all Human Resources documents can be found on the HR 
Intranet pages. 
 

Version 

No. 

Date approved Approved 

by 

Amendment 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



4 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council recognises the need to develop modern working 
practices that enable employees to maximise their performance whilst maintaining a good work 
life balance.  Agile and Home Working are the terms used to describe how employees can work 
flexibly from any location, whether it is a council building, in the community, from home or any 
combination of these.   
 
The Council is seeking to strike a new balance between employees work commitments, the 
amount of accommodation needed and the faster pace of personal and working lives. 
 
The Council expects both managers and encourages employees to identify opportunities where 
working in a different way can be successfully implemented and maintained either for groups of 
employees or individuals in order to improve organisational and individual performance so that 
services to the public can be enhanced and costs potentially reduced. 
 
This Policy outlines the ways employees can work flexibly from any location whether it is from a 
Council building, in the community, from home or any combination of these to achieve these 
aims. 
 

2.  SCOPE OF POLICY 

 
This Policy applies to all Council employees of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, however 
it is recognised that agile and home working will not be viable in certain service 
areas/departments.  As such any applications in these areas will be subject to management 
approval.  There are local arrangements in place for Elected Members and school based staff 
and are therefore exempt from this policy. 
 
This Policy provides a framework for consistent and fair practice on the issues to be taken into 
account when considering agile and home working arrangements. 
 
The nature of agile and home working will depend on the job undertaken and considerations will 
include the impact on customer access to services. 
 
The Council is committed to ensuring that all policies are reflective of the Equalities Act 2010 
and support all employees regardless of disability, sex, race, religion, sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, and age. These are called ‘protected characteristics’. This Policy should 
therefore be used with a view to ensure that the Council continues to support all employees 
equally and does not disadvantage anyone with a protected characteristic.  
 
If you are in doubt about any aspect of this Policy, please consult with the Human Resources 
Department. 
 

3. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 

 Agile or home working will generally be authorised providing it benefits the Council as 
defined in section 5 below and does not impair service delivery. 

 
 Home workers will be issued with the appropriate equipment and support required for 

them to work efficiently and effectively as detailed in section 12 below.  
  

 “Home” is one specified location, agreed between manager and employee and subject to 
assessment of suitability prior to agreement. 

Page 92



5 
 

 
 The decision about whether an employee or group of employees should be allowed to 

work from home will rest with the line manager and/or Head of Service.   
 

 There must be clear objectives and measurable outputs which are set and regularly 
reviewed between the line manager and employee. 

 
 Individual applications to work from home can be made by employees via the Council’s 

Flexible Working Policy and all applications will be considered in line with this Policy.  It is 
not an employee’s right to work from home. 

 
 An employee cannot be made to work from home unless home working forms part of the 

individual’s terms and conditions of employment. 
 

 During home working hours, the employee must ensure that appropriate arrangements  
are in place for dependants who may be present at the home.  Working from home and 
looking after children at the same time will not be permitted and normal childcare 
provision need to still apply.   

 
 Home working should not be viewed as an alternative to paid dependent leave. 
 
 Agile and home workers will be expected to comply with al l  Council policies and 

procedures. 
 

 Terms and Conditions of Employment are unaffected by agile or home working 
arrangements. 
 

 For administrative purposes, including the claiming of travel expenses, employees 
working in an agile way will retain a designated contractual work base. 
 

 Expenses are not payable for home working, employees may wish to claim a taxable 
benefit from HRMC. 

 
 The provisions within the Council’s flexi leave scheme continue to apply as normal. 

 
 Electronic diaries must be kept up to date and open access granted to line managers 

and team members. 
 

 The usual reporting procedures in the event of sickness absence and accident/incidents 
remain in place. 

 

 Agile and home workers will be expected to attend designated meetings, learning and 
development sessions and appointments,  as necessary to meet the needs of the 
service. 
 

 Any form of alleged misconduct, abuse or non-compliance of the requirements of the 
Agile and Home Working Policy and Procedure will be dealt with under the Council’s 
Disciplinary Policy. 

 
 

4. DEFINITIONS OF AGILE/HOME WORKING 

 
Agile Working 
Agile working allows employees to influence how they carry out their role and promotes varying 
levels of flexibility within the workplace.   

Page 93



6 
 

 
It is based on the concept that ‘work is an activity we do rather than a place we go to.’ 
 
The different ways in which agile working can be undertaken are dependent on the demands 
and needs of the Council. The categories of agile workers are: 
 

 Mobile Worker 
Employees who have a more mobile workstyle are usually able to work from a variety of 
locations. Mobile staff have a designated base (as do flexible workers) but are generally 
working out in the County Borough (i.e. home visits, site visits etc) for approximately 80% of 
their time.  This group of staff have less of a requirement to be at a base and may choose to 
undertake office duties from another building that may be closer to their current location, or 
from home. 

 

 Flexible Worker 
Flexible workers are those who spend most of their time (approximately 60% of their time) 
working in an office environment although may frequently be away from a desk attending 
meetings, working from other Council buildings or working occasionally from home.  
Similarly, employees who tend to spend a lot of time in client’s homes will also be ‘flexible’.  
In this respect, a high proportion of staff will be categorised as flexible and the degree of 
flexibility is to be determined by the member of staff and their line manager.   

 

 Static/Fixed Worker 
Those who fall into the low mobility range are generally at a desk for approximately 90% of 
their time.  They rarely attend meetings or work from alternative locations.  This type of 
working may be fixed in the office or fixed at home, depending on the role. 

 
Home Working 
Home working consists of working based at home rather than at the normal place of work and 
may involve using IT systems to perform work and to remain in contact with managers and 
employees. It is carried out to an agreed work pattern on a permanent, regular, part-time, 
temporary or ad hoc basis. 
 
Not all jobs are suitable for home working, however any job may be considered on its own 
merits. Jobs that involve project work or an identifiable output, or those that provide services 
within the community may particularly lend themselves to this type of work. Jobs that will not be 
suitable are those who provide a direct service to the public at a fixed location e.g. staff on 
reception. 
 
Full Home Working –The employee’s home becomes the main or sole base for work activities.  
This form of working will only be authorised in particular circumstances and in relation to 
specific posts. 
 
Partial Home Working – Where an employee regularly works a percentage of the week from 
home and the rest of their time divided between the office and other designated sites. 
 
Ad-Hoc Home Working – Where an employee irregularly works at home for a specific purpose 
or to meet work deadlines for a set period of time e.g. to complete a report. 
 
Line managers must ensure that any agile or home working arrangements do not have an 
adverse effect on any particular group of employees neither should a refusal to agree home 
working disadvantage any particular group. 
 

 

Page 94



7 
 

5. BENEFITS OF AGILE/HOME WORKING 

 
Agile and home working offer a number of benefits including: 
 

 Improved service delivery. 

 Greater productivity/efficiency. 

 Reduced costs of property costs and other overheads. 

 Retention/Recruitment of employees with caring responsibilities. 

 Retention/Recruitment of disabled people. 

 Reduced travel problems and environmental impact. 
 

6. CRITERIA TO BE USED FOR AGILE/HOME WORKING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The line manager will consider each post individually taking into account any potential impact 
on the service area, including consultation of customer needs and the effect on work 
colleagues. 
 
The line manager will determine which work style the role could fit into based on business 
needs and the identified work styles; the line manager will make a decision on what work style 
is appropriate. The following will be considered: 
 

 The effect on ability to meet customer demand. 

 The ability to organise work among existing employees. 

 The impact on work quality and performance. 

 Planned structural change to departments. 

 The rotas of individual departments. 

 Whether the job can only be carried out in an office environment (hot desking could also 
be considered). 

 Performance related issues (performance must be at least maintained or improved). 

 The wellbeing of the individual. 

 

7. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
Employees should be able to demonstrate that they can: 
 

 Work independently and on their own initiative. 

 Understand and comply with this policy and all supporting policies and guidelines. 

 Motivate themselves. 

 Complete projects within set deadlines. 

 Manage workload effectively and adhere to the working time directive and flexi-time 
guidelines. 

 Consider their own health and safety and be able cope well under any new pressure 
posed by agile or home working. 

 Advise their line manager if their domestic arrangements change or if the agile or home 
work is adversely affecting their role or health. 

 Carry out an annual DSE assessment.  A copy of the user assessment form can be 
found in the Homeworking Self Assessment Checklist in Appendix 1 

 Attend meetings and training as and when required. 

 Maintain appropriate contact with their line manager and colleagues as per normal 
circumstances. 

 Liaise with their insurance company to ensure compliance. 

Page 95



8 
 

 Immediately report any loss or theft of equipment or documents to their line manager 
and the Information Security Officer. 

 Report system defects to the ICT Department. 

 Immediately report a security breach or incident to their line manager and the Information 
Security Officer. 

 Should an employee become aware of any loss of personal data or a breach of the data 
protection legislation they must report the incident to their line manager and the Data 
Protection Officer immediately in accordance with the Data Protection Breach Policy. 

 

8. MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
Line managers are responsible for ensuring that: 
 

 Agile and home workers understand and comply with this policy and all supporting 
policies and guidelines. 

 The employee is fully trained on the equipment and technology provided. 

 They keep in touch with the employee as regularly as they would under normal 
circumstances, as far as reasonably practicable. 

 The employee does not become isolated and arrangements for regular communication 
are in place. 

 Ensure the employee is included in all scheduled team meetings and does not suffer a 
detriment due to the agile or home working arrangements. 

 The working arrangements are reviewed with the employee during supervision and 
appraised meetings and in the event that the status of the working arrangement alters in 
any way (i.e. change in domestic arrangements, moving house, changing jobs). 

 The employee’s wellbeing is not adversely affected. 
 

9.  RECORDING WORKINGTIME WHILST AGILE OR HOME WORKING 
  
Employees who are agile or home workers and are on flexible work patterns (i.e. flexi time) 
must use the HR21 system to record their daily working pattern. This can be done by either 
signing in and out electronically with their clocking card at designated terminals within the 
Council building that they are working from (i.e. agile workers) or by accessing the HR21 portal 
via their PC or laptop (i.e. home workers). Clock-ins must be registered in the morning when 
they arrive at work/sign in to start work and at the end of each day when leaving work/before 
signing off. Employees must also record any breaks that are taken during the working day. 
  
Further information can be found in the Council’s Timekeeping and Attendance Policy. 

 

10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

 
Line managers and employees must agree measurable outcomes and what constitutes 
effectiveness for their service areas. This should cover issues such as productivity, quality of 
work, service standards and timeliness. These will need to be considered and reviewed by the 
line manager at regular periods. Line managers must complete all performance appraisal 
meetings as outlined in Focus On Your Performance, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s 
Performance Management Framework including regular team and one to one meetings with 
staff in order to manage performance. Please refer to the Performance Management guidance 
document for Managers. 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



9 
 

11. TRAINING AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT 

 
An employee’s career development and training opportunities should not be adversely affected 
by their working arrangements. It is the line manager’s responsibility to ensure that employees 
receive the appropriate training. 

 
12. HOMEWORKING SELF ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 

 
Where a position is identified as suitable for home working, it is the employee’s responsibility to 
ensure that their home offers a safe, suitable working environment. The employee will be asked 
to complete a Homeworking Self Assessment Checklist of their proposed home work 
environment, covering areas such as ventilation, temperature, lighting, space and flooring, to 
ensure the space is suitable. The Council is not liable to rectify any issues identified in the home 
through the Homeworking Self Assessment Checklist process. A copy of the Homeworking 
Checklist can be found in Appendix 1. 
 
Both line managers and employees have a responsibility to ensure that conditions are safe and 
suitable for the employee. If home working is authorised the line manager is responsible for 
ensuring that the employee carries out the appropriate homeworking self assessment checks. 

 
Line managers are responsible for assessing work activities being undertaken by the employee 
to identify any potential risks/hazards that may exist. The Council reserves the right to prevent 
home working where it identifies potential risks/hazards (e.g. Data protection concerns, 
inappropriate system/information access). 
 

 13. EQUIPMENT 
  
Line managers will determine the equipment required to enable effective agile or home working 
(e.g. laptop, mobile phone). This equipment must be used in line with the Council’s ICT policies 
and H&S guidance on DSE.   

 
Where an employee requires specialist equipment in the office because of a workplace 
assessment, consideration will need to be given to whether this support can be incorporated into 
the home working environment on a case-by-case basis. Whilst the Council will consider 
providing specialist equipment, it reserves the right to withhold home working agreement if the 
provision of specialist equipment is deemed inappropriate.   

 
All equipment, materials or stationery supplied by the Council will remain the property of 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, used for work purposes only and returned to the 
Council at the end of the home working arrangement. 

 
The line manager will make final decisions on what is needed.  Where equipment is provided 
the employee must: 

 
 Take reasonable care of it. 
 Use it only for official purposes. 
 Use it only in accordance with any operating instructions. 
 Return it to the Council when requested. 
 Use it in accordance with any existing Council policies. 

 

14.  INFORMATION SECURITY 

 
Agile and home workers are responsible for the confidentiality, integrity and availability of 
information assets. Information assets take many forms including, but not limited to, information 
which is: 
 

Page 97



10 
 

 Stored on computers 

 Transmitted across networks 

 Printed out 

 Written on paper 

 Stored on removable media 

 Sent via email 

 Spoken in conversation e.g. by telephone 

 Stored in databases 
 
The Council’s Information Security Policy, Privacy Standards Policy and supporting operational 

policies MUST be adhered to at all times whilst agile/home working. 
 

The Remote Working Policy MUST be adhered to ensure the effective and appropriate use of 
the Council’s ICT equipment when used away from the main offices. The policy applies suitable 
controls to help prevent security breaches or negative consequences. In summary, Agile 
workers must not work on personal ICT equipment or connect unauthorised equipment to their 
Council devices. Nobody else is permitted to use work devices.  
 
It is essential that employees work in a space that is private. It is important that computer 
screens are kept private and if you are having conference calls or video meetings, agile workers 
must be aware of other members of the household that might overhear. Hard copy papers 
taken home must be stored securely e.g. papers should be stored together in a bag or box 
away from other members of a household. ICT equipment and paper documents that are 
transported must be securely stored in the boot of a car – out of sight of an opportunist thief. 
 
Employees must return equipment and documentation to their main office premises as soon as 
they are no longer required for the completion of specific tasks to ensure they can be stored or 
disposed of in accordance with the needs of the service and corporate policy and procedures.  

15. COMMUNICATION AND SAFETY 

 
Regular contact should be maintained between the employee and line manager, who will agree 
between them whether this will be via Microsoft Teams, email or telephone.  Where the role 
necessitates, a work mobile phone will be provided as part of the ICT equipment. 
 
Home workers must not meet clients or representatives at their home nor give their personal 
phone numbers, addresses etc to clients/customers. If an employee needs to meet clients or 
colleagues during working hours, they must arrange for this meeting to take place on council 
property. 
 
 

16. INSURANCE 

 
The Council will be responsible for any necessary insurance of equipment supplied and 
employee liability insurance. 
 
Home working may affect the home and contents insurance policies of the householder.  
Employees are advised to check with their insurance providers if changes need to be made to 
their policies and make any necessary adjustments before undertaking any homeworking.  
Payment of any additional premiums is the employee’s responsibility and will not be 
reimbursed.  The Council will not accept liability for damage caused to the home or its contents, 
or any personal items. 

 

17.     POLICY COMPLIANCE 

Page 98



11 
 

 
Failure to observe the standards set out in this Policy may be regarded as serious and any 
breach may result in disciplinary action, which may include dismissal or removal of the agile or 
home working arrangement. 

Page 99



12 
 

 

APPENDIX 1 – HOMEWORKING SELF ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 
 

Homeworking self 

assessment checklist.pdf
 

Page 100



 
 
Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

The Cyfarthfa Foundation  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 At the Council’s Annual General Meeting in September councillors accepted officers’ 

recommendation that a new special purpose vehicle be established in order to 
deliver the Crucible Project  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 Cllr Geraint Thomas & Cllr Lisa Mytton be appointed as directors and trustees.   
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  In September at the Council’s Annual General Meeting councillors accepted officers’ 

recommendation that a new special purpose vehicle be established to deliver the 
Crucible Project. Councillors also accepted the recommendation that the new special 
purpose vehicle be named “The Cyfarthfa Foundation”.  

 
3.2  Councillors were further informed in September that there would be a series of 

reports placed before them as the establishment of the new special purpose vehicle 
progresses. 

 
3.3  This is the first of those reports. The new special purpose vehicle requires two 

councillors be appointed to the role of director and trustee.  

Date Written 22nd September 2020* 

Report Author Zoe Thomas &  Geraint Morgan  

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Exempt/Non-Exempt Non-Exempt  

Committee Date 7th October 2020  

Page 101

Agenda Item 7



 
3.4 The directors and trustees first duty will be to the new special purpose vehicle. This 

principle is established under Company law and through the principles of charity and 
trust law. The councillors who are appointed are subject to trustee duties under law 
in addition to their duties as directors under company law.  

 
3.5 A council nominated director will not be able to become Chair of the Board of 

Directors.  
 
3.6 The Council nominated Directors are nominated by the Council to serve on the 

Board of Trustees and they can only be removed by the Council. 
 
3.7 Council is requested to appoint two councillors to the position of director and trustee 

of the new special purpose vehicle. 
 
3.8 Council should also note that appointments of directors and trustees from outside the 

Council will also need to be made. One of these first appointments will be Geraint 
Talfan Davies, who has played an integral role in the Crucible project to date. These 
directors need to be appointed in order that the necessary processes can be 
undertaken to register with Companies House, the Charities Commission and to 
appoint further directors to the Board 

  

4.0  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications. 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 

Page 102



The main positive impacts are that the creation of the SPV to deliver the Cyfarthfa 
Heritage Area Masterplan will support Well-being Objectives and Sustainable 
Development Principles through targeting economic growth, the protection of key 
heritage assets and the development of the landscape.  The project will have a positive 
effect on the economy, socially and on heritage.    
 
No negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Gully Cleansing Provision

Date: 8th September 2020

Version: v1.0

Project Title
Gully Machine

Date  (Insert Version Date)
8th September 2020

Lead Officer(s)
Judith Jones/Darren Chaffe

Project Manager
Darren Chaffe

Service Area
Neighbourhood Services - Highways

Version Control

Revision Date Summary of Changes
Previous 

Revision Date 

project.management@merthyr.gov.uk. 

Once you have completed the Business Case please send a copy to the relevant Board. Please note that you should have discussed the 

Business Case with your Chief Officer or Head of Service prior to sending it to the relevant Board. 

For further advice, support and guidance please see the Project Management Framework guidance notes or email your query to 

Page 105

Agenda Item 8

mailto:project.management@merthyr.gov.uk.


Classification: PROTECT

Gully Cleansing Provision

Project Overview

O

In the sections below, please give the reasons identified for this project to take place, addressing the Corporate/Directorate Strategies (SOAPS) and 

what has encouraged the development of this business case?  Consider what approach has taken place against the 5 Ways of Working e.g. - take an 

integrated approach when setting and taking steps to meet our Wellbeing Objectives; work with others in a collaborative way to find shared 

sustainable solutions; involve people in the decisions that affect them, reflecting the diversity of our communities.  Please build on Project Concept.

The gully cleansing service is managed by the Highways service of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. There are currently between 10,500 & 

12,000 gullies within Merthyr Tydfil that require routine maintenance to ensure they and the drainage system function effectively. Other items that 

require regular cleansing are cattle grids, beany blocks, and aco drainage systems. Also the number of gullies increase every year due to new housing 

developments being built and adopted. 

In 2018, as part of a budget efficiency saving,  it was agreed at Council that the Gully Cleansing Service, would be sub-contracted out, instead of it 

being provided by MTCBC Highways Section.  The gullies and their immediate pipe connections are cleansed and emptied as part of a bi-annual 

proactive maintenance programme. All gullies within the County Borough are cleansed every 2 years, which is the same frequency as when the service 

was carried out in-house. Unexpected drainage issues, such as, blocked gullies or pipes are identified and prioritised on a risk-based basis, works are 

costed and planned for repair. 

Due to the adverse storms that hit Merthyr earlier in the year and the sunsequent flooding the MTCBC elected members have requested a detailed 

business case to be compiled to look at reintroducing the Gully Cleansing Service back in-house.

The following requirements would be needed for MTCBC To have an efficient Gully Cleansing Service in place:

1. Purchase a gully machine

2. Employ 2 FTE operatives 

3. Agreed a timescale schedule of how often the gullies are cleansed, which can be done on a cyclic basis or a risk basis.

Dealing with problem issues as the gully machine normally only removes approximately 50% of blockages

4. Hire a Vactor, which is a larger specialised gully machine to investigate those problematic gully blockages. This machine can sometimes resolve 

blockages.

5. A camera survey's will need to be carried out on those more resistant blocked gullies to identify the problem.  A solution is then put in place and the 

blockage will be risk assessed and prioristed and works planned within the Highways budget.

Business Need / Case for Change

The decision to review and assess the case for change has arisen following the storm in February 2020 that led to many properties being flooded, this was 

predominantly in the Troedyrhiw area of the County Borough. Since 2018, Merthyr Tydfil CBC ceased to have its own gully sucker and operatives. The decision was 

made to allow the VER of the 2 operatives and remove the vehicle from the service. Decision was made on the basis that a neighbouring authority would undertake 

the function under a contract. 

Following the storm in February 2020 the elected members have requested for a business case for reinstating the Gully Cleansing Service back into within Merthyr 

CBC.

Involvement, Engagement & Communications

Involvement & Engagement

Involvement & Engagement with all stakeholders

Communication

Communicate to all relevant stakeholders

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) - Summary

HR, Procurement and Legal Implications

To reinstate the function in-house would require:

2 additional staff members to man the gully sucker (1x grade 3 and 1 x grade 4)

currently employed staff to be trained so that the service can operate when one of the operatives are on leave or sickness

Prourement of the gully sucker, approx lead time is 8 months - there is a specification already written. 

Legal implication will be termination of current contract with neighbouring authority, financial penalty which coudl be the remaining months of the contract and 

also the 1 year termination notice period

Classification: PROTECT Page 106



Classification: PROTECT

Negative Impacts Not Applicable N/A

of 4 1of 4

of 5 of 5

of 10 10 of 10

of 1 1 of 1

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Corporate Fit and Project Drivers

No negative impacts have been identified as part of this business case

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) of 10

4. Biodiversity

Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) - Summary (if required)

The main positive impacts improving the surroundings of the Borough making people feel secure in their property, them knowing that MTCBC have reacted and 

responded to the Storm Dennis flooding. 

Positive Impacts

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 3 of 4

2. Sustainable Development Principles - How have you considered the five ways of working:

• Long term

• Prevention

• Integration

• Collaboration

• Involvement

of 5

of 1

Summary:

Other (please state):

Please explain the Corporate Fit and Project Drivers below:

The project driver will be that the long term benefit of having an in-house service is that it can respond more quicklyto any potential danger area, and give peace of 

mind to residents that the service can be more responsive. By having the service within the Council we can identify where the service needs to go, by reponding 

reactively where blockages have been identified. The resilience to respond and undertake the service will be of benefit to the Council and residents, it will reduce 

the negative comments and reputation of the Council and show positive action.

Please indicate where the project meets our Wellbeing objectives and/or service objectives.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Social Services & Well-being (Wales) Act 2014

Driven by External Funding Opportunity

Driven by Service Benefits / Resilience

Driven by Savings Opportunities

Classification: PROTECT Page 107



Gully Cleansing Provision Developing Options

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 Option 5

Scope
What will be covered by the Project?

Remain as is subcontracted to CCBC

Limited response to emergencies

To reinstate the service into Merthyr CBC 

Highways Department 

Purchase New Gully Machine

2 new staff members

Softwear system for monitoring gullies

Bayard Key

Fuel

Tyres

Maintenance

Damaged

budget for waste

To cleanse all highways drainage within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

To reinstate the service into Merthyr CBC 

Highways Department 

New Lease Hired Gully Machine

2 new staff members

Softwear system for monitoring gullies

Bayard Key

Fuel

Tyres

Maintenance

Damaged

budget for waste

To cleanse all highways drainage within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

Permanent Drainage Contractor based at 

Abercynon Depot 52 weeks:

To cleanse all highways drainage within the 

county borough such as;

Softwear system for monioring gullies

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

A reserve vehicle to be available when the 

primary vehicle is off the road for servicing 

or damage, maintenance etc. 

Response time to emergencies etc

Number of gullies to be cleansed identifed 

and monitoired

To reinstate the service into Merthyr CBC 

Highways Department 

Purchase Second Hand Gully Machine

2 new staff members

Softwear system for monitoring gullies

Bayard Key

Fuel

Tyres

Maintenance

Damaged

budget for waste

To cleanse all highways drainage within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

Delivery
Who will be responsible for providing it?

Darren Chaffe Darren Chaffe Darren Chaffe Darren Chaffe Darren Chaffe

Solution
How will it be provided?

Sub Contracted In-house In-house The contractor will be subject to contract 

management. 

In-house

Implementation
When will it be delivered?

ongoing 8 to 12 months due to the lead on 

procuring a gully machine, and also the 

recruitment of 2 additional staff members

8 to 12 months due to the lead on 

procuring a gully machine, and also the 

recruitment of 2 additional staff members

As soon as contract is agreed Lead tme on procuring a gully machine will 

depend on what is availble from the auctions

Rcruitment of 2 additional staff members 

with relevant training

When developing your options please consider the table below and Wellbeing Objectives.The table requires you to look at the project options for Scope, Delivery, Solution and Implementation in order to identify the 

optimum decision going forward.

P
age 108



Gully Cleansing Provision Benefits & Consequences

Option Description Benefits (Advantages) Consequences (Disadvantages)

Option 1 - (Remain As Is)

Remain as is ongoing rotuine cyclic

Staff replaced at no cost for holidays and 

sickness 

no damage costs

No fuel cost

No tyre Cost

only extra over costs for waste

Not full control of CCBC

Potential reputional damage should the 

alternative supplier not meet the standards

The provider may not be as  responsive as 

the inhouse provision

Option 2 - In-house New Gully Machine (purchase)

Buy new Gully Machine

2 new staff members

Bayard Key

Fuel

Tyres

Maintenance

Damaged

budget for waste

To cleanse all highways draiange within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

Total control over in-house team

Service can be responsive

upskilled current staff to provide cover

residents will have peace of mind that the 

gullies are being cleansed

Staff to be available to cover sickness and 

leave however this will cause other 

operational issues as another gang will have 

to step down. eg. pothole & patching.

Cost of training current staff

Potential lack of available persons within the 

labour and skills market for qualified staff

Ongoing revenue cost of lease, and 

maintenance of gully sucker

Loss of 2 drivers for 2 days when vehicle has 

to go to garage for routine servicing

Increase in waste cost for disposal if 

machine operational 5 days per week. 

Option 3 - In-house Gully Machine (Lease)

New Lease Hired Gully Machine

2 new staff members

Bayard Key

Fuel

Tyres

Maintenance

Damaged

budget for waste

To cleanse all highways draiange within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

Total control over in-house team

Service can be responsive

upskilled current staff to provide cover

residents will have peace of mind that the 

gullies are being cleansed

Staff to be available to cover sickness and 

leave however this will cause other 

operational issues as another gang will have 

to step down. eg. pothole & patching.

Cost of training current staff

Potential lack of available persons within the 

labour and skills market for qualified staff

Ongoing revenue cost of lease, and 

maintenance of gully sucker

Loss of 2 drivers for 2 days when vehicle has 

to go to garage for routine servicing

Increase in waste cost for disposal if 

machine operational 5 days per week. 

Option 4 - Sub Contracted working as part of the operational team 52weeks 

Permanent Drainage Contractor based at 

Abercynon Depot 52 weeks:

To cleanse all highways drainage within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

Total Control of Sub Contractor Team

Staff replaced at no cost for holidays and 

sickness 

No damage costs

No fuel cost

No tyre Cost

Only extra over costs for waste

Contractor to provide substitute vehicle if 

primary vehicle unavailable

Onus on contractor

NA

Option 2 - In-house Second Hand Gully Machine (purchase)

Buy Second Hand Gully Machine

2 new staff members

Bayard Key

Fuel

Tyres

Maintenance

Damaged

budget for waste

To cleanse all highways draiange within the 

county borough such as;

Highways Gullies

Cattle Grids

Aco Drains

Beany Blocks

Total control over in-house team

Service can be responsive

upskilled current staff to provide cover

residents will have peace of mind that the 

gullies are being cleansed

Staff to be available to cover sickness and 

leave however this will cause other 

operational issues as another gang will have 

to step down. eg. pothole & patching.

Cost of training current staff

Potential lack of available persons within the 

labour and skills market for qualified staff

Extra cost for maintenance of gully machine 

due to its age

Loss of 2 drivers for 2 days when vehicle has 

to go to garage for routine servicing

Increase in waste cost for disposal if 

machine operational 5 days per week. 

The table below lists the Benefits and Consequences for each option.

Page 109



Classification: PROTECT

SWOT Analysis - Gully Cleansing Provision

Strengths Weaknesses Strengths
Continuing Cyclic Work pre planned work Full ownership of service

No Staff or training costs Potential reputional damage should the 

alternative supplier not meet the standards

Increase reputation positively

No Bayard key costs The provider may not be as  responsive as 

the inhouse provision

Residents of recently affected area visiable 

service

No Vehicle damage cost

No Fuel Costs

Opportunities Threats Opportunities
lack of first call on the machine Look for external works - potential income

In cab Software system to collect gully data 

information; e.g. KOREC - Kgully

Training opportunity to upskill staff

Option 1 - (Remain As Is) Option 2 - In-house New Gully Machine (purchase)

Classification: PROTECT

P
age 110



Classification: PROTECT

Strengths Weaknesses Strengths
Machine based inhouse Cost of in cab Software system to collect 

gully data information

Full ownership of service

No cost - vehicle -damage-fuel -tyres-

maintenance

Increase reputation positively

No staff cover Residents of recently affected area visiable 

service

No training cost

Specalist operatives

Opportunities Threats Opportunities
Look for external works - potential income That a further storm like Dennis will still 

cause flooding even if the business case is 

approved

In cab Software system to collect gully data 

information; e.g. KOREC - Kgully

In cab Software system to collect gully data 

information; e.g. KOREC - Kgully

Training opportunity to upskill staff

Option 3 - In-house Gully Machine (Lease) Option 4 - Sub Contracted working as part of the operational team 

Classification: PROTECT

P
age 111



Classification: PROTECT

Strengths Weaknesses
Full ownership of service Requirement for increased revenue budget 

for - staff,  Maintenance, Tyres etc.. 

Increase waste cost

Increase reputation positively Small team Staff to be available to cover 

sickness and leave however this will cause 

other operational issues as another gang 

will have to step down. eg. pothole & 

patching.

Residents of recently affected area visiable 

service

Limited finance to train staff

Cost of in cab Software system to collect 

gully data information

Procuring of Gully Machine

Opportunities Threats
Look for external works - potential income That a further storm like Dennis will still 

cause flooding even if the business case is 

approved

In cab Software system to collect gully data 

information; e.g. KOREC - Kgully

Training opportunity to upskill staff

Option 5 In-house Second Hand Gully Machine (Purchase)

Classification: PROTECT

P
age 112



Classification: PROTECT

Weaknesses
Requirement for increased revenue budget 

for - staff,  Maintenance, Tyres etc.. 

Increase waste cost
Small team Staff to be available to cover 

sickness and leave however this will cause 

other operational issues as another gang 

will have to step down. eg. pothole & Limited finance to train staff

Cost of in cab Software system to collect 

gully data informationProcuring of Gully Machine

Threats
That a further storm like Dennis will still 

cause flooding even if the business case is 

approved

Option 2 - In-house New Gully Machine (purchase)

Classification: PROTECT

P
age 113



Classification: PROTECT

Weaknesses
Requirement for increased revenue budget 

for - staff,  Maintenance, Tyres etc.. 

Increase waste cost

Small team Staff to be available to cover 

sickness and leave however this will cause 

other operational issues as another gang 

will have to step down. eg. pothole & 

patching.

Limited finance to train staff

Cost of in cab Software system to collect 

gully data information

Procuring of Gully Machine

Threats

Option 4 - Sub Contracted working as part of the operational team 

Classification: PROTECT

P
age 114



Title of Project / Report:

Officer completing Impact Assessment:

Lead Officer/Project Manager:

Service:

Impact Assessment completion date:

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal:

To have an effective gully cleansing service for MTCBC there needs to be a;

1. An agreed schedule of how often the gullies are cleansed. This can be done on a cyclic basis or a risk basis. 

2. When gullies are cleansed they also identify a number of blocked gullies. The gully machine get about half of the gullies they identifed working. 

3. For the gullies that they are unable to get to work an investigation is carried out with a vactor (a larger gully machine) this will again get a number of blocked gullies working.

4. As for the gullies that are left the blocked gullies require a camera survey to identify the problem and also a solution.

5. The blockage is then risk assessed and prioristed and works planned within the highways budget.

The Gully emptying service  fits with the following Wellbeing Goals – A Prosperous Wales, A Healthier Wales, A Globally Responsible Wa

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Integrated Impact Assessment

(includes Equalities,Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity)

Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background information. 

An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for:

1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business).

2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision.

3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change.

Darren Chaffe

Judith Jones/ Darren Chaffe

Neighbourhood Services - Highways

Gully Cleansing Provision

P
age 115



Positive Negative N/A

Best Start to Life 

Children and young people get the best start to life and are 

equipped with the skills they need to be successful leaners 

and confident individuals

x The service does not impact on the education of children

Working Life

People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet 

the needs of businesses with a developing, safe 

infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil an attractive 

destination.

X

Highways have trained Parks, Cleansing, Cemeteries and Waste Departments 

drivers to utilise them for precautionary gritting and white-out weather. 

Highways also share plant with other services, for example, JCB’s with 

cemeteries when graves need to be excavated or using the Hiab lorry when 

fly tipping needs to be picked up. In addition, Highways uses the Parks 

Department to cut back and remove any dangerous trees that impinge on the 

highways. All Neighbourhood Service drivers have been trained to drive waste 

and recycling vehicles, which provides them extra capacity for when they are 

short of drivers.  Shared services and joint working has helped to align 

resources across all areas, to provide efficient services, and to meet 

Corporate objectives. There will be the increased infrastructure in the roads 

will be passable, the large puddles will be removed from kerbside allowing 

pedestrians to walk safely without the risk of being soaked by passing 

vehicles.

Environmental Well-being

Communities protect, enhance and promote our 

environment and countryside.
X

Enhanced environment as gullies will be cleaner, the roads will drain more 

efficently, the blockages will be removed, reduce any negative reputation, 

increase visitors into the countryside

Living Well 

People are empowered to live independently within their 

communities, where they feel safe and enjoy good physical 

and mental health.

x

By cleansing the gullies this will lead to improved drainage and reduce the 

puddles on the road, and walkways. This will allow individuals to enjoy their 

surroundings.

Sources of evidence to support the above: 

Training records

1. Well-being Objectives

Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below?

Well Being Objective

Does your proposal have a positive or negative impact on the 

Council’s Well-being Objectives? Please place an X in the 

relevant box

Why have you come to this decision? Please provide an explanation What actions have been/will be 

taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 

any negative impacts?

P
age 116



Five Ways of Working

Long Term - Thinking and planning for the long term.

Prevention - Preventing problems before they happen.

Integration - Integrating with other strategies.

Collaboration - Collaborating with others.

Involvement - Involving people and communities.

The option of having an in-house provider to carry out the service 

will provide the Council with the long term benefit of planning 

the service and agreeing the outcomes
long term MTCBC will have the service at its disposal the reaction and response times can be minimised, 

providing peace of mind and a visible service to the residents recently affected

Total control of over inhouse helping to prevent problems before 

they occur
By having the service MTCBC can identify potential issues before they arise, preventing unnessary flooding or 

other rain/storm damage

Intergrating with the departments SOAP's

Collaborate and communicate to all stakeholders, to have the 

discussion regarding areas where events could occur, work with 

the engineers and companies that are undertaking the work 

currently identifiedInvolve and communicate to all stakeholders
involvement of elected members and residents will provide the dialogue for discussion on areas on the Borough 

where people feel the potential for flooding etc could occur

Sources of evidence to support the above:

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working)

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principle (five ways of working)?

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the five 

ways of working?

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate 

any negative impacts?

P
age 117



Positive Negative N/A

Age N/A

Disability N/A

Gender Reassignment N/A

Marriage and Civil Partnership N/A

Pregnancy and Maternity N/A

Race N/A

Religion or Belief N/A

Sex (Gender) N/A

Sexual Orientation N/A

Welsh Language N/A

Sources of evidence to support the above:

N/A

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language)

Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups and Welsh language as identified below?

Protected Characteristics 

Does your proposal have a positive or negative impact on 

service users, employees and/or the wider community, including 

the nine protected characteristic groups and Welsh language? 

Please place an X in the relevant box

Why have you come to this decision? Please provide an explanation What actions have been/will be 

taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 

any negative impacts?

P
age 118



Positive Negative N/A

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and ecosystem 

resilience
X

4. Biodiversity

Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity?

Biodiversity

Does your proposal have a positive or negative impact on 

Biodiversity?

Please place an X in the relevant box

Why have you come to this decision? Please provide an explanation What actions have been/will be 

taken to better contribute to 

positive impacts and/or mitigate 

any negative impacts?

Sources of evidence to support the above:

N/A

P
age 119



Negative Impacts Not Applicable N/A

of 4 1 of 4

of 5 of 5

of 10 10 of 10

of 1 1 of 1

What are you going to do 
Who will be 

responsible?
Timelines/Milestones e.g. 6 months/over a year, etc.

Progress

4. Biodiversity of 1

Summary:

The main positive impacts improving the surroundings of the Borough making people feel secure in their property, them knowing that MTCBC have reacted and responded to the Storm Dennis flooding. 

No negative impacts have been identifed

6. Actions 

Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify 

any further actions you will need to undertake to better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts.

Estimated completion date

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 3 of 4

2. Sustainable Development Principles - How have you considered the five ways 

of working:

• Long term

• Prevention

• Integration

• Collaboration

• Involvement

of 5

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language) of 10

Positive Impacts

5. Summary 

As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet report.

Please see the example provided in the guidance document. 

P
age 120



Version No. Date considered

Approved by:

Job Title:

Approval Date:

Decision making stage Brief description of any amendments made following consideration

8. Sign off section 

7. Version Control 

The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision making process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate 

how we have considered and built in the five ways of working where possible.

P
age 121



Gully Cleansing Provision - Objectives and Critical Success Factors

Project Objective Please state objective (SMART) below: Option 1 - 

(Remain As Is)

Option 2 - In-

house New Gully 

Machine 

(purchase)

Option 3 - In-

house Gully 

Machine (Lease)

Option 4 - Sub 

Contracted 

working as part of 

the operational 

team 52weeks 

Project Objective 1

Project Objective 2

Project Objective 3

Project Objective 4

Project Objective 5

Outcomes Please describe the outcomes below (these should include 

the criteria for success, i.e. what will you see? ):

Option 1 - 

(Remain As Is)

Option 2 - In-

house New Gully 

Option 3 - In-

house Gully 

Option 4 - Sub 

Contracted 

Outcome 1

Outcome 2

Outcome 3

Outcome 4

Outcome 5

Critical Success Factors Description Option 1 - 

(Remain As Is)

Option 2 - In-

house New Gully 

Option 3 - In-

house Gully 

Option 4 - Sub 

Contracted 

Long term - Rational
The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to 

safeguard the ability to also meet long-term needs
Y YY YY Y

Preventative
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may 

help public bodies meet their objectives
YY YY YY YY

Integration

Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may 

impact upon each of the Wellbeing goals, on their other 

objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies
? ? ? ?

The tables below identifies whether each option will meet the project objectives, critical success factors, wellbeing objectives and project outcomes.  Each option has then been scored to identify the number 

of objectives and critical success factors the option meets. The objectives and outcomes will need to be SMART (Specific; Measurable; Achievable; Realistic; Time-bound).

P
age 122



Involvement

The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving 

the Wellbeing goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the 

diversity of the area which the body serves y y y y

Collaboration Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts 

of the body itself) that could help the body to meet its Wellbeing 
y y y y

Attractive To the community y y y y
Attractive To MTCBC ? y y ?

Achievable
MTCBC has the ability, skills and capacity to deliver the option 

within project constraints
y n n y

Achievable
There will be minimal service disruption to the service(s) at 

MTCBC
y y y y

Commercial
The option will generate a competitive market of suppliers with 

the capacity and capability to deliver
? ? ? y

Affordable The project will deliver value for money y ? ? ?

Affordable
The development and on-going operational costs of the option 

can be met
y ? ? y

Sub total Score 10 8 8 10

Wellbeing Objectives Components Option 1 - 

(Remain As Is)

Option 2 - In-

house New Gully 

Machine 

(purchase)

Option 3 - In-

house Gully 

Machine (Lease)

Option 4 - Sub 

Contracted 

working as part of 

the operational 

team 52weeks 

Best start in life

Children get the best start in life

• Children having a nurturing and stimulating home 

environment

• Children having access to high quality pre-school and school 

education

• Helping mothers to have good maternal health

• Helping parents and carers with literacy and numeracy to 

enhance their ability to support their children’s learning

n n n n

Best start in life

Children and young people are equipped with the 

skills they need to be successful learners and 

confident individuals

• Schools equipping pupils with high levels of literacy, numeracy 

and ICT skills

• Schools equipping pupils with social and emotional skills

• Schools supporting physical activity of pupils

• Youth services involving young people and enhancing their 

knowledge and skills

n n n n

P
age 123



Working life

Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: Developing the 

workforce of the future

• People having employment opportunities

• People having the basic skills to access learning and training 

programmes

• People having the skills and qualifications that are suitable for 

employers' changing needs
n y y ?

Working life

Developing the environment and infrastructure for 

business to flourish

• People having access to flexible, integrated and sustainable 

transport options

• Parents and carers having flexible childcare options

• Suitable previously developed land that delivers a diverse 

supply of housing

• Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low 

carbon energy

• Strengthening and diversifying the town and rural economies

n n n n

Environmental Wellbeing

Communities protect, enhance and promote our 

natural environment and countryside

• Integration of landscape protection, management and 

planning

• Minimise environmental damage through prevention of 

pollution

• Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of 

the waste hierarchy

• Developing good quality and connected green infrastructure 

and open spaces

n n n n

Environmental Wellbeing

Communities protect, develop and promote our 

heritage and cultural assets

• Supporting existing community facilities and community led 

developments

• Supporting suitable tourism, leisure and recreation 

developments

• Promoting cultural and social activities within our communities

• Promoting the use of the Welsh language

y y y y

Living Well • Safeguarding vulnerable children and adults who are at risk of 

harm
n n n n

Living Well • Promoting healthy behaviours from a young age

• Tackling adverse childhood experiences
n n n n

Living Well • Clearly and accessibly communicate sources of advice, 

assistance and support
n n n n

Sub total Score -7 -5 -5 -6

Key Definition Score

YY Yes, definitely 2

Y Yes, more than likely 1

? Maybe 0

N No, probably not -1

P
age 124



Impact

Score Description

1.

5 Catastrophic

2.

4 Critical

3.

3 High

4.

2 Medium

Moderate negative impact on the well-being of our communities and future 

generations

Significant reduction in mandatory service/Unsatisfactory mandatory service 

performance

Failure to provide an adequate discretionary service/poor discretionary service 

performance

Permanent injuries; long term sickness for an individual

Mandatory service disruption 3-5 days, or discretionary service disruption 5+ 

days

 Adverse national publicity or significant adverse local publicity 

Litigation to be expected 

Financial loss/overspend between £50,000 and £250,000

Breaches of law punishable by fines only

Medium term major public health/environmental incident (months up to 1 year)

Minor negative impact on the well-being of our communities and future 

generations

Marginal reduction in mandatory service/satisfactory mandatory service 

performance

Significant reduction in discretionary service/unsatisfactory discretionary 

service performance

Medical treatment required – long term injury

Mandatory service disruption 1-2 days, or discretionary service disruption 3-5 

days

Minor adverse local publicity

 High potential for complaint, litigation possible

Financial loss/overspend under £50,000

Breaches of regulations/standards 

Short term public health/environmental incident (weeks)

SOCIAL (INCLUDING CULTURAL)

•   Social and cultural risks that could impact on the well-being of 

    our communities and future generations.

•   Effects of changes in demographic, residential and/or socio-

    economic trends. 

•   Failing to meet the current and changing needs and 

    expectations of customers and citizens.

•   Capacity, recruitment and retention, health, safety and welfare

    of people, sickness rates and personal development.

•   Consideration of risks in relation to tourism, culture, heritage, 

    arts, sport and historic environment.

•   Impact on the Welsh Language (we have to treat English and 

    Welsh languages on the basis of equality).

•   Impacts on the 9 Protected Characteristics (Race; Sex; 

    Disability; Age; Religion or Belief; Sexual Orientation; Gender 

    Reassignment; Marriage and Civil Partnership; Pregnancy and

    Maternity).
TECHNOLOGICAL

•   Risk of cyber-attacks (consider 10 Steps to Cyber Security e.g.

    user education and awareness; secure configuration; network

    security; etc).

•   Capacity of the organisation to deal with the pace/scale of 

    technological change and/or its ability to use technology to 

    address changing demands.

•   Consequences of technology failures.

•   Failure and/or unavailability of hardware/software.

•   Failing to ensure that Data Privacy Impact Assessments are 

    completed.

•   ICT/Information Security Incidents.

RISK MANAGEMENT GUIDANCE 

In order to identify risks the checklist below must be used. This is designed to ensure that as far as possible all potential risks are identified that could impact on:

• Delivering the Council’s Well-being Objectives and wider Council priorities.

• The well-being of our communities and future generations.

• The organisation.

The checklist is based on the widely used PESTLE model (Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Legal and Environmental). This will help to ensure that all potential categories of risk are considered in a structured way 

rather than just the initial risks that come to mind.

The Checklist will also help to develop plans to manage the risks where consideration must be given to the five ways of working (the Sustainable Development Principle), which are:

• Long Term - Looking to the long term so that we do not compromise the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

• Integration - Taking an integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-being goals in deciding on their well-being objectives.

• Involvement - Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them.

• Collaboration - Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions.

• Prevention - Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from occurring.

MEASURES OF IMPACT

Example Detail Description

Failure to provide an adequate mandatory service, resulting in the Council 

becoming a failing Authority leading to potential intervention; or resulting in a 

death

Significant negative impact on the well-being of our communities and future 

generations

Failure to provide an adequate mandatory service/poor mandatory service 

performance

Permanent injuries; long term sickness for a number of individuals

Failure to deliver the Council's Well-being Objectives

Failure to address the Council's Corporate Risks

Emergency service disruption 1+ day, or mandatory service disruption 5+ 

days

Significant adverse national publicity 

 Litigation almost certain and difficult to defend 

Financial loss/overspend in excess of £250,000

 Breaches of law punishable by imprisonment 

Long term major public health/environmental incident (1 year +)

RISK CATEGORY CHECKLIST

POLITICAL

•   Failing to set a balanced budget.

•   Failing to deliver:

          o UK, Welsh Government and/or Local Government Policy.

          o The administration's manifesto commitments.

          o The Council’s Well-being Objectives.

          o The Council’s aspirations: Top performing, Sustainable 

             and Reputation.

          o Projects on time, to cost and to the right quality.

•   Failing to properly communicate with the community, 

    stakeholders, customers and employees the appropriate and

    timely information relating to projects.

•   Failing to properly engage and consult with the community, 

    stakeholders, customers and employees.

•   Failing to protect and maintain the organisation’s reputation.

•   The public perception of the organisation’s efficiency and 

    effectiveness.

•   Sustainability of projects.

•   BREXIT.
ECONOMIC

•   Economic risks that could impact on the well-being of our 

    communities and future generations.

•   Financial planning and being able to make adequate savings

    in

    order to set a balanced budget, meet financial challenges and

    manage increasing pressures on public spending.

•   The organisation’s ability to meet its financial commitments

    (financial sustainability).

•   The risks relating  to project overspends and sufficient finance

    to deliver proposed projects, internal budgetary pressures, 

    adequate financial controls, the failure to purchase adequate 

    insurance cover/inability to obtain insurance cover, external 

    macro level economic changes, consequences of proposed

    investment decisions.

•   Handover / legacy of projects e.g. maintenance and repairs.

•   Risk of fraud and corruption.

•   Quality of the outcomes/outputs from a project.

•   Competitiveness of the service (in terms of cost and/or quality)

    and/or its ability to deliver value for money.

•   Failure of contractors to deliver services or products to the 

    agreed cost and specification.

•   In relation to procurement, consideration of, for example, 

    discontinuity in the supply of essential goods or services, 

    supplier relationships, misaligned procurement outcomes and

    negative impact on reputation in the marketplace.

Page 125



Impact

Score Description

MEASURES OF IMPACT

Example Detail DescriptionRISK CATEGORY CHECKLIST

5.

1 Low

6.

Catastrophic 5 5 10 15 20 25 Likelihood score Description
Probability of 

occurring

Critical 4 4 8 12 16 20 5
Certain/ Almost 

Certain
90% - 100%

High 3 3 6 9 12 15 4 Probable 60% - 90%

Medium 2 2 4 6 8 10 3 Possible 40% - 60%

Low 1 1 2 3 4 5 2 Unlikely 10% - 40%

1 2 3 4 5 1 Very Low/ Rare 0% - 10%

Very Low

Rare
Unlikely Posiible Probable

Certain/

Almost 

certain

Colour/Score 12-16 8-10 4-6 1-3

Risk Critical High Medium Low

No impact on the well-being of our communities and future generations

No reduction in mandatory service/good mandatory service performance

Marginal reduction in discretionary service/satisfactory discretionary service 

performance

No injuries beyond "first aid” level

No significant disruption to mandatory service, or discretionary service 

disruption 1-2 days

Unlikely to cause any adverse publicity

  Unlikely to cause complaint/litigation

Breaches of local procedures/standards

Environmental incident with no lasting detrimental effect e.g. noise, fumes

Im
p

a
c
t

LEGAL

•   Changes/new legislation and regulations e.g. Enactment of 

    significant legislation which materially impacts the way that the

    Council operates.

•   Breaches of legislation and/or regulations. 

•   Legal challenge/judicial review.

•   Corporate governance failure(s).

•   Risks associated with the particular nature of each profession

    e.g. social service concerns over children at risk, failure to meet

    professional requirements such as accounting, legal or 

    educational standards, etc.

•   In relation to partnerships, consideration  of, for example,  the 

    impact of working with private and/or public sector 

    organisations, accountability frameworks and partnership 

    boundaries, large-scale projects with joint ventures, 

    outsourced services, relationship management, change 

    control/exit 

    strategies, business continuity and contractual liabilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL

•   Environmental risks that could impact on the well-being of our

    communities and future generations.

•   Fire, security, accident prevention, health and safety, business

    continuity and disaster recovery e.g. hazards/risks associated 

    with buildings, vehicles, plant and equipment, etc.

•   Terrorism/disasters/emergencies/incidents.

•   Climate change.

•   Environmental consequences of progressing or not 

    progressing a project e.g. in terms of energy efficiency, 

    pollution, recycling, landfill requirements, emissions, etc.

•   Pollution, noise and/or energy efficiency of ongoing service

    operation.

MEASURES OF LIKELIHOOD

Example Detail Description

Certain to occur/ Almost certain to 

occur

Very likely but not certain to occur

May or may not occur

unlikely to occur

Very unlikely to occur but not 

impossible

Catatrophic

20-25

Risk Matrix

Likelihood

Page 126



Classification: PROTECT

Gully Cleansing Provision - Risk Assessment

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

That further budget reductions will reduce the operational hours of 

vehicle
0 3 2 6 3 2 6 0

Response time and productivity do not meet expectations 3 2 6 0 0 3 2 6

By agreeing to implement business case it still doesn't prevent any 

flooding if another Storm Dennis occurs
0 4 4 16 4 4 16 0

that a knock on effect will mean another service is at detriment
0 3 3 9 3 3 9 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Modal risk score 0 0 0 0

Maximum risk score 6 16 16 6

Minimum risk score 0 0 0 0

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Impact

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Likelihood 

(1 to 5)

Low    High

Risk Score

(Impact x Likelihood)

Lack of finance to procure vehicle and staff 0 3 4 12 3 4 12 0

Elected members not agreeing to the business case 0 3 3 9 3 3 9 3 3 9

financial penalty of ending current contract early 0 3 3 9 3 3 9 3 3 9

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Modal risk score 0 0 0 0

Maximum risk score 0 12 12 9

Minimum risk score 0 0 0 0

Summary

Modal risk score 0 0 0 0

Maximum risk score 6 16 16 9

Minimum risk score 0 0 0 0

Action(s) to Mitigate Risk(s)

Potential barriers of implementing each option
Option 1 - (Remain As Is) Option 2 - In-house New Gully Machine (purchase) Option 3 - In-house Gully Machine (Lease)

Potential barriers of implementing each option

Option 4 - Sub Contracted working as part of the operational team 

52weeks 

Potential risks of implementing each option

Potential risks of implementing each  option
Option 1 - (Remain As Is) Option 2 - In-house New Gully Machine (purchase) Option 3 - In-house Gully Machine (Lease)

Action(s) to Mitigate Risk(s)

Option 4 - Sub Contracted working as part of the operational team 

52weeks 

Classification: PROTECT

P
age 127



Gully Cleansing Provision - Project timescales overview

Key Tasks Sep-20 Apr-21 Oct-21 Sep-20 Apr-21 Oct-21 Sep-20 Apr-21 Oct-21 Sep-17 Apr-18 Oct-18

Procure gully machine y y

Recruit staff

train current staff to cover

agree increase in budget

terminate current contract

Please give an estimated timeline for the delivery of the key tasks against each option to achieve the objectives and indicate how long after the completion of the objectives the outcomes and benefits will be 

Option 1 - (Remain As Is)

Option 2 - In-house New Gully 

Machine (purchase) Option 3 - In-house Gully Machine (Lease)Option 4 - Sub Contracted working as part of the operational team 52weeks 

P
age 128



Gully Machine - Financial Case to buy (useful life 6 years) to lease

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total

Capital Cost(£)
Capital Cost 0 150000 150000 0 0

Capital Grant 0 0 0 0

Net Capital Spend 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150000 0 150000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue Costs (£)

Staff costs

Post 1 - @ grade 3 0 n/a n/a 30,505 30,505 n/a n/a 30,505 30,505 0

Post 2 - @ grade 4 0 n/a n/a 35,246 35,246 n/a n/a 35,246 35,246 0

Post 3 0 0 0 0

stand-by 0 320 320 320 320 0

call out 0 1,036 1,036 1,036 1,036 0

Total Staff cost (£) 0 0 0 0 0 0 67,107 67,107 0 0 67,107 67,107 0 0 0 0

Premise Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transport Costs 0 17,343 17,343 44,343 44,343 0

Supplies & Services 57839 57839 115,005 115,005 115,005 115,005 278,990 278,990

Annual cost of Capital 0 29,215 29,215 0 0

Total Revenue Costs (£) 0 0 57839 57839 0 0 228,670 228,670 0 0 226,455 226,455 0 0 278,990 278,990

Income (£)

Fees and Charges 0 0 0 0

Grant income 0 0 0 0

Total Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Reveune Surplus/(Deficit) 0 0 -57839 0 -57839 0 0 -228670 0 -228670 0 0 -226455 0 -226455 0 0 -278990 0 -278990

Cumulative Net Reveune 

Surplus/(Deficit) 0 0 -57839 -57839 -57839 0 0 -228670 -228670 -228670 0 0 -226455 -226455 -226455 0 0 -278990 -278990 -278990

Assumptions

Option 3 - Option 4 - Option 1 - (Remain As Is) Option 2 - 

P
age 129



Gully Cleansing Provision - Summary and Rationale

Option 1 - (Remain As Is)

Option 2 - In-house New Gully 

Machine (purchase)

Option 3 - In-house Gully Machine 

(Lease)

Option 4 - Sub Contracted 

working as part of the 

operational team 52weeks 

0 0 0 0

6 16 16 9

0 0 0 0

2019/20 0 0 0 0

2020/21 0 0 0 0

2021/22 0 150,000 0 0

2022/23 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 150,000 0 0

2019/20 0 0 0 0

2020/21 0 0 0 0

2021/22 57,839 228,670 226,455 278,990

2022/23 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 57,839 228,670 226,455 278,990

2019/20 0 0 0 0

2020/21 0 0 0 0

2021/22 0 0 0 0

2022/23 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0

2019/20 0 0 0 0

2020/21 0 0 0 0

2021/22 -57,839 -228,670 -226,455 -278,990

2022/23 0 0 0 0

TOTAL -57,839 -228,670 -226,455 -278,990

2019/20 0 0 0 0

2020/21 0 0 0 0

2021/22 -57,839 -228,670 -226,455 -278,990

2022/23 -57,839 -228,670 -226,455 -278,990

TOTAL -57,839 -228,670 -226,455 -278,990

3 3 3 4

Shortlist Shortlist Shortlist ShortlistRationale

Modal risk score

Total Revenue Costs (£)

Project Objectives/Critical Success Factors/Wellbeing 

Objectives

Maximum risk score

Minimum risk score

Net Capital Spend

Total Income

Total Revenue Costs (£)

Cumulative Net Reveune 

Surplus/(Deficit)

P
age 130



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Merthyr Tydfil Adult Community Learning Partnership 
Future Delivery and Welsh Government Funding 2020/21 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides an update to Cabinet on the challenges facing the Merthyr Tydfil 

Adult Community Learning Partnership (MTACL) due to the restructuring of the 
national Adult Community Learning Grant. 

 
1.2 Continuation of the partnership with The College Merthyr Tydfil (TCMT) has been 

agreed alongside the restructuring of provision across the authority to enable the 
drawing down of the full ACL grant by the local authority and hence the management 
fee.  This however still means a reduction in the ability of the service to offset 
management and coordination costs which have been possible in previous years. 
Therefore, there will be budgetary implications for the Council.  In addition, there will 
be implications for partners that utilise this service area to process accredited 
outcomes and a charge will have to be applied in future to cover these costs.  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) that 
 
2.1 The delivery framework Appendix B be approved. 
  
2.2 The financial implications are noted and the increase in the Net budget to reflect the 

uncontrollable growth caused through grant changes by Welsh Government, be 
approved. 

 
2.3 A full cost recovery approach for supporting and processing accredited outcomes on 

behalf of partners/services be implemented.  
 

Date Written 10th July 2020 * 

Report Author Chris Hole /Diane Jones 

Service Area Community Wellbeing  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 131

Agenda Item 9



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Post 16 learning is governed by the Inspection of Adult Learning under Section 77 of 

the Learning and Skills Act 2000.  
 
3.2 As members will be aware, from the previous report in July 2020, Merthyr Tydfil Adult 

Community Learning Partnership has recently been inspected by Estyn and overall, 
the outcome of the inspection was Good but with one area to be improved.  The key 
focus of the improvements being coordinated approaches across partners which was 
not surprising given the reduction in capacity across the service area which has 
impacted upon the time available to develop these partnership approaches.   

 
3.3 In addition to this, members will be aware from the same report that Welsh 

Government have introduced a revised funding model based on population density 
economic and educational disadvantage.  The second stage of the review is far from 
complete and is set to consider a potential national strategic body for Adult Learning.   

 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR MERTHYR TYDFIL  
 
4.1 For MTCBC Adult Education the community learning grant allocation for 2019-20 

was £45,327.  In 2020/21 this figure increases to a potential figure of (£80,218.00) 
however the allocation has far more controls on how it can be drawn down and its 
use than in previous years. These are: 

 A set funding formula for each type of course delivered which varies depending 
upon the level and type of learning being delivered and the number of individuals 
that achieve accredited outcomes through these courses  

 A set of key priority areas to focus delivery on national priorities e.g. literacy, 
numeracy, digital literacy, ESOL (English as Second or Other Language)  

 A restriction on any management/coordination charges across the grant capped 
at 3% of the total grant (£2,406) which will mean increasing costs to the core 
budget during 2020/21. 

 
4.2 The current programme of delivery (Appendix A) within the grant would not allow the 

local authority to draw down the full grant.  If the service were to remain as currently 
provided, then this would only draw down an estimated £17k (21%) of the grant.  
Some aspects of current delivery whilst seen as good practice by Estyn e.g. Family 
programmes would not be eligible within the structure of the new grant or allow for 
some of the costs these programmes incur.  

 
4.3 In previous years ACL has been able to process accreditation for partners without 

any financial implications as the grant was able to meet this direct cost.  The grant 
will no longer be able to absorb these costs (ineligible) as these courses are not 
delivered through the ACL grant. 

 
4.4 Additionally, an Accreditation Officer post was previously funded through the core 

budget which could be utilised to undertake these processes.  However, within the 
last round of efficiencies an early retirement request from the Accreditation Officer 
was accepted corporately, whilst having been refused by the department. 
Subsequently the post was removed from the ACL structure, leaving the department 
with no dedicated support for processing of accreditation or quality assurance of 
learner portfolios.   

Page 132



4.5 There is currently a match funding agreement in place between ACL and the MTCBC 
Working Skills for Adults 2 project, whereby the Adult Education Coordinator is the 
named quality nominee.  If this agreement is not maintained, there would be an 
negative impact on the grant funding model.  

 

5.0 RESTRUCTURING DELIVERY – WAY FORWARD 
 

5.1 In order to examine the potential options for restructuring of the delivery and 
ensuring full use of the grant in line with eligibility, it is necessary to consider the 
implications for the remaining aspects of the service and these include:  

 Priorities and Eligibility within the Welsh Government Grant  

 Franchise agreement with The College Merthyr Tydfil (£33k) 

 Partnership delivery The College Merthyr Tydfil (staff in Kind) 

 Management Coordination and Accreditation from the core budget. A net core 
budget which has reduced from £63,413 (2019/20) to £39,471(2020 /2021) 

 Outcomes of the Estyn Inspection 2020 
 
5.2 Further to a meeting with The College Merthyr Tydfil, which was later ratified by their 

Board, it has been agreed that Appendix B be progressed as this will: 

 enable full draw down of the grant for MTCBC; 

 provide the outcomes The College Merthyr Tydfil require in line with a new 
contract to the value of 33k with MTCBC (standstill position); 

 enable the continuation of Family Programmes – identified as good practice by 
Estyn which continues to support the education priorities; 

 streamline delivery of ESOL within two partners – recruitment difficulties across 
three different organisations offering this service at present and an area for 
development identified by Estyn; and 

 enable MTCBC to draw down the full WG 3% management allocation. 
 
5.3 Due to staff changes seen recently there will be no redundancies of Tutors to 

accommodate these changes within delivery.  It is recognised however that a 
significant amount of training is required across the Tutor team to improve digital 
skills across all delivery but especially now given the different learning approaches 
required due to Covid 19.  

 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
6.1 Due to the changes within the grant and the Welsh Government drive to ensure the 

grant is focused on delivery of learning, the authority will not be able to offset core to 
the extent achieved in previous years.  The 3% management charge will contribute 
towards the budget deficit in management and coordination which based upon 
2020/21 projections will mean a financial implication of circa £19,274.  It should be 
noted that if full delivery is not achieved then both the drawing down of the grant and 
the management charges reduce, negatively impacting on these budget projections.   

 
6.2 All accreditation processed through the department on behalf of any internal 

departments or external partners will incur a charge from April 2020/21 based upon a 
full cost recovery basis.   

Page 133



7.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 

Objectives 

  

4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 

Principles - How have you 

considered the five ways of 

working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

 

 5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 

Welsh Language) 

 

10 of 10 0 of 10 0 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 

 
1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-being Objectives, the Sustainable 
Development Principles and Biodiversity. The main positive impacts are;  

 Wellbeing  objectives- the proposal outlines and provides evidence  that learners wellbeing 
is important and supported, there are good learning and training opportunities for citizen aged 
16yrs plus. The skills and accredited learning provide the citizens of Merthyr Tydfil to gain 
employment and reach father educational goals such as further and higher education- 
increasing aspirations.  

 Sustainable Development Principles the proposal outlines and provides evidence that 
safeguard the long-term educational needs of children, young people and adults to maximize 
their capabilities and have control over their lives. ACL has been developed within community 
groups and delivered working in partnership with key stakeholders in the County Borough. 

 Protected Characteristics and Welsh language are that the proposal will provide access to 
arts and culture and will promote the use of the Welsh language and encourage people to 
use their Welsh skills when using Council services. 

 Biodiversity the provision encourages awareness raising and understanding about the 
global world, impact of not recycling and diversity of plants and animals as part of its 
educational provision. 

 
 
 

Page 134



 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER LEARNING 
  

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR LIFELONG 

LEARNING 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Cabinet Report - Estyn 
Inspection of MTACL 
Partnership 
 

15th July 2020 Intranet - Cabinet Meeting 15th July 
2020 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



 
Appendix A; current ACL programme of delivery 

 
  

 MTCBC ACL Delivery Structure   

MTCBC Adult Education MTCBC Adult Education and The College Merthyr Tydfil (TCMT) 

 Franchise Delivery 
 

Structure  Delivery format Family Programmes  Franchise Delivery  

Programme and 
Delivery 
Structure 

1 Coordinator 
 
1 PT 
Administration 
Officer 
 
6 Community 
Tutors 
 
 

Targeting Welsh Government 
Grant priorities of; Literacy, 
Numeracy, ESOL Digital Literacy. 
 
2 MTCBC employed tutors 
deliver the programmes; 

 4 ESOL classes per week 

 Spanish, part cost 
recovery 

Partnership approach with The College Merthyr 
Tydfil (TCMT) since 1997. Delivering literacy 
and numeracy courses on a rolling programme 
to parents/carers in 10 local schools annually 
 
3 TCMT employed tutors deliver the 
programme 
 
MTCBC ACL cover the coordination and 
delivery costs 
 

Historic partnership 
agreement and annual 
contract with The College 
 
3 MTCBC employed tutors 
deliver the programmes; 

 9 skills clubs 

 1 ECDL 

 Rolling programme 
of online computer 
basics courses 

Target 
breakdown (over 
an academic 
year) 

 ESOL: 
4 classes per week. Target 32 
learners 
Spanish: 2 classes per week. 
Target 16 learners 
 

5 schools per semester, September- January, 
February-July. 
 
 
 

Skills Clubs: Target 72 
learners 
ECDL: Target 8 learners 
Online Basics; Target 12 
learners 

Annual Learner 
Target  

NA 48 learners 100 learners 92 learners 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 136



Appendix B: proposed ACL delivery format for 2020/21 
 

The current franchise delivery is shared between The College Merthyr Tydfil (TCMT) and MTCBC Adult Education, with MTCBC Adult Education 
concentrating on the delivery of Skill clubs (literacy and numeracy) and IT courses.  Delivery of ESOL for the Merthyr Tydfil ACL Partnership will remain 
with The College Merthyr Tydfil and Adult Learning Wales, thus reducing duplication. 
 

 MTCBC Adult Education MTCBC Adult Education and The College Merthyr Tydfil (TCMT) 
 Franchise Delivery  

 Structure  Delivery format Structure  Delivery format  

Structure and 
Delivery Details 

1 Coordinator 
 
1 PT Administration 
Officer 
 
1 Accreditation 
officer 
 
6 Community Tutors 
 
 

ECDL & Online 
basics  
Target 20 
learners 
 
Skills clubs x 7 
classes  
Target 56 
learners   
 

3 tutors in kind contribution to remain in place for 
the delivery of Family Programme 
  
 

The franchise grant (£33k) to cover delivery costs 
of both the Family Programmes and 2 Skills Clubs  
 

Family Programmes x 10  courses  
Target 100 learners  
 
2 x Skills clubs classes -delivered 
by MTCBC employed tutors  
Target 16 learners   
 

Target    Target total; 76 
learners 

Target total; 116 learners 

 

P
age 137



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
FULL COUNCIL - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mayor, Ladies and 
Gentlemen 

Annual Scrutiny Report 2019 / 2020 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Scrutiny is a function of Councils in England and Wales and was introduced by the 

Local Government Act 2000 creating separate Executive and Scrutiny functions in 
Councils.  The role of scrutiny was strengthened with the passing of the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 

 
1.2 The role of Scrutiny includes monitoring performance; challenging the Council’s 

spending proposals; reviewing services; contributing to policy development; 
examining the work of other local public service providers and promoting public 
engagement in the democratic process. 
 

1.3 The scrutiny function at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) is 
performed by six scrutiny committees.  These committees are made up of Elected 
Members (or Councillors) who are not part of the Council’s Executive (Cabinet); 
along with co-opted representatives. 

 
1.4 The purpose of this report is to apprise Council and other interested parties of the 

role of the scrutiny committees, and their work during the 2019/20 municipal year. 
 

 
 
 

Date Written 11th September 2020* 

Report Author Maria Purnell / Sian Lyons / Saeif 
Jablaoui 

Service Area Performance and Scrutiny 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 139

Agenda Item 10



2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to apprise Council and other interested parties in the 

role of scrutiny committees, and their work during the 2019/20 municipal year. 
 

2.2 Overview and Scrutiny (often just referred to as “scrutiny”) is a function of Councils in 
England and Wales introduced by the Local Government Act 2000 which created 
separate Executive (Cabinet) and Scrutiny functions.  In Wales the scrutiny function 
was extended in the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 
 

2.3 Broadly speaking, local government scrutiny committees operate in a manner similar 
to the select committees supporting the UK Parliament.  They are composed of non-
executive councillors of all political groups (in proportion to the Council’s overall 
political balance), and meet both in public and in private to:  
 

  Help the Administration develop and review policies;  

  Test the Council’s performance and offer advice for improvement;  

  Provide pre-decision scrutiny of decisions that the administration is about to 
make;  

 Periodically call in for examination decisions that the administration has recently 
made;  

  Offer a platform for citizens and citizen groups to represent their concerns or 
ideas for improvement.  

 
Further information can be found the MTCBC website. 

 
2.4 The Centre for Public Scrutiny outlines that scrutiny has four ‘cornerstones’, namely:  

 

  Led by ‘independent minded governors who own the scrutiny role;  

  Acts as a ‘critical friend’ of the executive, holding decision makers to account; 

  Represents the views and concerns of the citizen; 

  Leads to the improvement of public services.  
 

2.5 The Scrutiny function at MTCBC is supported by the Democratic Services and 
Performance and Scrutiny teams.  Working closely, the support team ensures the 
scrutiny function is delivered in line with statutory requirements.  Scrutiny is 
comprised of Elected Members, co-opted members and young people; all these play 
a valuable role in the meetings, each bringing a different perspective.  Work is 
ongoing to promote the work of the scrutiny committees. 
 

2.6 Elected Members will recall the report ‘Appointment to Committees 2020-2021’ 
presented to Council on the 9th September 2020, the Council’s annual general 
meeting (AGM).  This report details the appointments to committees and the cycle of 
meetings.   

 
 
 

Page 140



3.0 UPDATE ON ACTIONS 
 
3.1 Audit Wales (formerly the Wales Audit Office (WAO)) report ‘Overview and Scrutiny: 

Fit for the Future? – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’ outlined 6 
recommendations (in addition to 2 recommendations from a related WAO report).  
Following this, changes have been made to the Scrutiny function at MTCBC.  These 
changes include (but are not contained to):  
 

 Greater ownership of the forward work programme and meeting agendas has 
been taken by the committee members;  

 Cabinet Members attend Scrutiny committee meetings relating to accountability; 

 We are continuing to review the type and level of scrutiny required;  

 Work is being done to consider effectiveness (e.g. section 13 of this report); and  

 A Cabinet Forward Work Plan was developed for 2019/2020; with the 2020/2021 
version currently under development. 

 
3.2 Table 1 (below) offers a brief overview of some of the ‘headlines’ linked to the 

delivery of the scrutiny function (excluding joint overview and scrutiny committee 
meetings) over the 2019/2020 municipal year.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 &

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 L

G
E

S
 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 &

 

P
u

b
li
c

 P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
1
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

2
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

T
o

ta
l 

Percentage of scheduled 
meetings completed 

100% 
(7/7) 

100% 
(7/7) 

86% 
(6/7) 

100% 
(7/7) 

75% 
(5/7) 

92% 
(32/35) 

Number of reports considered 
by Committee 

16 20 18 20 11 85 

Number of Cabinet decisions 
debated under ‘call in’ 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Number of external partner 
representatives attending a 
scrutiny meeting 

1 2 2 3 0 8 

Number of task and finish 
groups established in 
2019/2020 

1 1 0 0 1 3 

Number of reports task and 
finish group reports completed 
and submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration 

0 0 1 0 2 3 

 

                                            
1  Meeting cancelled due to Election activity  
2  One meeting cancelled due to requirement to respond to flooding caused by storms Ellen and Jorge 

Table 1:  Key outcomes recorded through delivery of the Council’s scrutiny function 
 

Page 141

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/merthyr_tydfil_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/merthyr_tydfil_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf


3.3 This will form the basis of further analysis to measure the effectiveness of the 
scrutiny function at MTCBC in meeting the Audit Wales areas for improvement 
outlined above.   

 

4.0 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: GOVERNANCE, PERFORMANCE, 
BUSINESS CHANGE AND CORPORATE SERVICES  

 
4.1  The Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services 

Committee consists of seven Councillors plus four Co-opted Members (1 voluntary 
sector member, 1 Merthyr Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum member and 2 public, 
non-voting members). 

 
4.2  Chairpersons comments 
 

The unprecedented challenges of this year namely, Storm Dennis and the 

Coronavirus have meant that we haven’t been able to cover all areas of our work 

programme and events of this magnitude will no doubt be felt for many more months 

or years to come.  

 

This year we were able to continue work on the ‘Working Life’ and 

‘Best Start’ objectives. Following on from the work the committee 

carried out in scrutinising the draft copy of the ‘Tackling Poverty 

Strategy’ this year we were able to bring it back to scrutiny to 

review progress.   

 

Areas for improvement outlined by Audit Wales around ‘Council 

support for the Third Sector’ also saw substantial progress this 

year with a small working group formed and the potential for a pilot 

project to take place being developed.  

 

Work began in further engaging Committee Members to play an active role in shaping 

the Work Programme for this year. As Chair, I arranged and lead a workshop-style 

meeting for the committee at the start of the year. This enabled us to shape and 

determine a collaborative work programme.  

 

Although we have continued to make progress on the overview function of the 

committee; further work is required in this area and will need to be considered as part of 

the comprehensive scrutiny function review within the Local Authority. 

 

I remain hopeful that we can become part of any public consultation events in the future 

in order to increase awareness and promote the importance of scrutiny.  I feel it is 

important that we offer an alternative method for members of the public to bring items to 

our attention.  I think being out in the community could be a positive step change in the 

way we deliver this function in the future. 

 
4.3 Work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee for the 2019/2020 municipal year 

 
 

Chair:   
Cllr. Tanya Skinner 

Page 142



 
The role and remit of the Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate 
Services Committee is wide and varied.  Over the municipal year, the Committee has 
received reports on a variety of topics which were reviewed and scrutinised.  A 
selection of these are listed below: 

 

 The Council’s DRAFT Annual Governance Statement; 

 Welsh Public Library standards  

 Thematic performance report reflecting the progress made against the Council’s 
Living Well wellbeing objective as outlined in Focus on the Future: wellbeing in 
our community; 

 The Council’s Change Programme; 

 The Council’s DRAFT Annual Performance Report for 2018/19; 

 The Council’s Tackling Poverty Strategy; 

 Thematic performance report reflecting the progress made against the Council’s 
Best Start wellbeing objective as outlined in Focus on the Future: wellbeing in our 
community; 

 Recommendations made by external regulators (WAO, CSIW, ESTYN, Welsh 
Government etc.); 

 Thematic performance report reflecting the progress made against the Council’s 
Working Life wellbeing objective as outlined in Focus on the Future: wellbeing in 
our community; and 

 Human resources 
 

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank my scrutiny colleagues, officers and 
partners who have all contributed to the work of the Committee during 2019/20, 
particularly given the significant challenges and tragic losses we endured this year. 
 

4.4 Additional work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee during to 2019/2020  
municipal year 

 
The task and finish group established continues to develop the work looking at the 
current status regarding ‘Council Support to the Third Sector’.  This work will create a 
repeatable process that MTCBC can use to consider value for money and a ‘fit for 
the future’ model of third sector spend against outcomes. 
 

4.5 Looking forward to 2020 / 2021 
 

This year, the Committee’s Work Programme will offer the opportunity to scrutinise a 
cross section of topics to meet identified organisational needs and requirements (e.g. 
scrutiny of thematic updates linked to the objectives laid down in the Corporate Well-
being Plan and considering the impact of recent events to identify lessons learned 
which will provide clarity on how the Council needs to change how it works, together 
with once again be scrutinising performance). 

 
Due to current circumstances and the transformative events that have taken place 
this year, it is prudent to adjust our requirements for scrutiny. Events such as the 
pandemic and community lockdowns will inevitably affect the future landscape; 
scrutiny needs to demonstrate support and flexibility to accurately reflect this. We are 

Page 143



living in very uncertain times and hopefully we can use the scrutiny process to reflect 
on how we have had to change as an organisation; to aid our recovery.  Now more 
than ever be the ‘critical friend’ that is needed. 
 

5.0  SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:  LEARNING AND LAESCYP  
 
5.1  The Learning & LAESCYP Committee consists seven Councillors plus eight co-
 opted  members (1 voluntary sector member, 1 Merthyr Tydfil  Borough Wide Youth 
 Forum Member, 2 public, non-voting Members, 1 Association of School Governors 
 Member, 1 Parent Governor (primary) Member, 1 Parent Governor (secondary) 
 Member and 1 Diocesan Member). 
 
5.2 Chairpersons comments 
 

The Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee continues to give high priority to 
Education. Members have worked effectively to ensure a strong focus on improving 
education outcomes for all our learners. Through reports to the Scrutiny Committee, 
members continue to have a good overview of the Education Services, in order to 

challenge these services effectively and make well informed 
decisions. Scrutiny members have also held managers to account 
for the services and outcomes that they are responsible for. 
 
 
The key role of the Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee is 
to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to the 
Learning & LAESCYP department. The Committee also determines 
if a specific policy is fit for purpose. It must also satisfy itself that the 
Council is working well with its partners in tackling major issues. The 
Committee also gathers the views of specific stakeholders and 

explores possible solutions to identified issues, as part of a scrutiny review / 
investigation. An important issue for the Scrutiny Committee members each year, is 
to assess and comment upon the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the Council.  
 
An essential document, which members of the Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny 
Committee frequent refer to, is the Annual Scrutiny Work Programme. This 
document identifies the topics and issues that the Scrutiny Committee will consider 
throughout the year. By reviewing and prioritising these topics and issues, members 
are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. The 
Work Programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of the 
Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee; to ensure its contents are still relevant 
and will add value to what the Council and its partners are doing. At each meeting, 
the Committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting. 

 
A necessary inclusion within the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2018/19 was the 
Annual Performance Report. This provided Scrutiny Members with the opportunity to 
give detailed consideration to the Performance of Merthyr Tydfil schools during 
2018/19. 

 

 
 

Chair:   
Cllr. Harvey Jones 

Page 144



I am pleased to report that at Foundation Phase, progress from Reception entry 
baseline shows that most pupils made at least expected progress in all core areas of 
learning, with between 54% and 87% of pupils making more than expected progress.         

            
At Key Stage 2, performance at the expected level was good, with the percentage of 
pupils achieving the expected level being above the national average for the majority 
of key indicators.  

 
At Key Stage 3, performance at the expected level was good and above the national 
average for the majority of key indicators. 

 
In February of this year the Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee considered 
the important topic of Attendance in order to determine what progress if any, had 
been made during the academic year 2018/19. Whereas attendance within our 
Primary Schools suffered a very slight decrease of 0.11% compared with that of 
2017/18, attendance across our secondary schools increased by 0.41% over the 
same period. This increase is encouraging, as the attendance gap between that of 
Merthyr Tydfil’s secondary schools and the national average, has continued to close 
since 2016/17 and our rate of improvement was the third best in Wales in 2018/19. 

 
Unfortunately, restriction on the length of this report, meant that inclusion of most of 
the other items scrutinised by the Committee during 2018/19 was just not possible.  
However, to end my commentary, I wish to make a brief mention of two items 
included in the 2018/19 Work Programme that were considered by members of the 
Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee. I refer briefly to these two items 
because of their importance to education within Merthyr Tydfil. These two items are: 

 

 Impact of Flying Start and Registered Education Providers on outcomes in 

maintained schools 

This involved Committee members scrutinising a report on the work within early 
years to support the improvement of outcomes for pupils once they change to 
primary school. 

 

 Impact against identified priorities for improvement (Business Improvement Plan) 

This involved Committee members scrutinising the Learning Department’s identified 
priorities for improvement, through the Department’s self – evaluation process. The 
Committee members took the opportunity to scrutinise the evidence used, to provide 
judgements on the progress of impact. 

 
It has indeed been a privilege to chair the Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny 
Committee. I would like to thank all members of the committee, the Cabinet member 
for Learning and all Officers, who have contributed to the work of the Committee 
over the past twelve months. 

 
 
 
 

Page 145



6.0 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, PLANNING 
AND COUNTRYSIDE  

 
6.1 The Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside consists seven Councillors 

plus four co-opted members (1 voluntary sector Member; 1 Merthyr Tydfil Borough 
Wide Youth Forum Member; 2 public, non-voting Members). 

 
6.2 Chairpersons comments 
 

Due to unforeseen circumstances, three of the last four Committee 
meetings have been cancelled but up until this time, Members have 
had a good overview of the Neighbourhood Services, Planning and 
Countryside portfolio and were able to challenge the managers on 
the services they are responsible for whilst also being able to make 
recommendations through Task and Finish Groups. 
 
Some of the topics looked at by this Committee have included 
missed collections for household waste and recycling, highways 
resurfacing and potholes, street cleaning and the Nature Recovery 
Report. 

 
We finished our first Task & Finish Group which looked at major capital overspends 
on two important projects within the borough and we were able to make 
recommendations that more robust and stringent procedures be implemented which 
may help save the Council money in the future when it undertakes other important 
projects. 

 
We have recently finished another Task & Finish Group looking at Pitch Fees and 
the Decreasing Rates of Participation in Team Sports in Merthyr Tydfil. The 
Committee will monitor the impacts of decisions made by the Cabinet, which will 
hopefully make a positive impact on participation rates in future years. We intend to 
continue creating Task & Finish Groups in order that important issues can not only 
be looked at in detail but also so that we can follow up by giving recommendations if 
we believe they may of help to residents and the Council. 

 
I believe that this Committee has worked very well together again this year and also 
with both the Cabinet and officers, by being a critical friend in order that we try to 
positively shape the future of Merthyr Tydfil for future generations. 

 
I’d like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning and Countryside Committee for their support and questioning skills 
throughout the last year, and also the officers and the Cabinet for their contributions. 

 
I would like to pay special thanks to all members of the Performance & Scrutiny 
Team and the Democratic Services Team for their invaluable support and guidance, 
not just last year but over the past three years, in ensuring that this Committee 
continues to run smoothly and that its members have all the information they need to 
perform their scrutiny role. 

 
 

 
 

Chair:   

Cllr. Declan Sammon 

Page 146



6.3 Work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee during the 2019/2020 Municipal Year 
 

The Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Committee has scrutinised 
a number of topics over the 2019-20 period; a sample of the topics reviewed is listed 
below: 

 

 Fly-tipping Enforcement Camera Facilities. 

 Maintenance Schedule of Vehicles. 

 Missed Collections for Household waste and Recycling. 

 Carbon Management. 

 Highways Resurfacing and Potholes. 

 Street Cleaning. 

 Traffic Phase of the Air Quality Management Scheme. 

 Nature Recovery Report. 

 Corporate Self-Evaluation Re: Environmental Wellbeing 
 

6.4 Additional work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee during the 2019/2020 
Municipal Year 

 
A task and finish group was set up to look at Pitch Fees And the Decreasing 
Participation in Team Sports in Merthyr Tydfil which would look to analyse the factors 
contributing to the drop in participation and explore possible options to stop this 
decline. The Task and Finish Group reported back to the Committee on the work 
they had undertaken and following discussion with the Full Committee; the report 
was then submitted to Cabinet for consideration in May 2019. 

 
Another Task and Finish Group was set up later that year looking at Recycling Rates 
and the Increased Reporting of Rats via Non Official Channels. The Task and Finish 
Group has reported back to Committee on the work undertaken and following 
discussion with the Full Committee, it was agreed that the report be submitted to 
Cabinet which will happen in the near future. 
 

6.5 Looking forward to 2020 / 2021 
 

A number of topics have been identified for review and scrutiny and these will be 
called before the Committee in 2020-2021.   Some of the topics due to be explored 
and scrutinised by Committee Members include Weed Spraying, Fly Tipping, 
Responsible Dog Ownership, Recycling Rates and the Nature Recovery Action Plan.    
On topic with the recent floods and coronavirus pandemic, we have also asked for a 
report on how some of the departments within Neighbourhood Services coped with 
working during emergencies, which will delve into the difficulties faced by front-line 
service teams during recent events. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 147



7.0 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

 
7.1 The Regeneration and Public Protection Committee consists of six elected Members 

and four co-opted Committee Members: (1 voluntary sector Member; 1 Merthyr Tydfil 
Borough Wide Youth Forum Member; 2 public, non-voting Members). 

 
7.2 Chairpersons comments 
 

During the year the Regeneration Scrutiny Committee received 
reports and updates on a variety of matters relating to the 
Regeneration and Public Protection Departments.  

 
The Committee were impressed with the regular reports it 
received on its Corporate Self-Evaluation and how it was 
meeting objectives set. On a number of occasions the 
committee congratulated the Chief Officer and his staff for 
setting themselves challenging objectives and continuing to 
monitor their ongoing performance. 

 
Reports were presented to the Committee on the use of CCTV in the County 
Borough. CCTV is one of the tools used in efforts to deal with instances of anti-social 
behaviour (ASB). The committee also received a detailed report on ASB which 
contained the somewhat heartening news that out of the whole Northern Division 
(Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda, Cynon and Taff) Merthyr Tydfil had lowest percentage 
of reported ASB at (21%) and that there had been an overall reduction in ASB 
across Northern Division of 6% when compared to the previous year. 
 
Reports were received on exciting ongoing projects designed to regenerate the 
County Borough. The press and media are quick to portray Merthyr Tydfil in a bad 
light. Frequently the Committee praised the work of the Department in attracting new 
enterprise to the County Borough; most notably: 
 

 The Cyfarthfa Heritage Area; 

 Rock UK Summit Centre; 

 Bike Park Wales; 

 The Merthyr–Abernant Tunnel Development; and 

 The Merthyr Tydfil Bus Station Development. 
 

The Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee formed 
a Task and Finish Group to investigate one of the biggest complaints councillors 
receive – rat infestation. The same Task and Finish Group considered recycling 
rates. The draft report was presented to the Regeneration Scrutiny Committee for 
comment by Councillor D Sammon, Chair of the Neighbourhood Services, Planning 
and Countryside Scrutiny Committee.  Councillor D Sammon advised that a lot of the 
subject matter was in the remit of the Regeneration & Public Protection Committee 
and welcomed input from this group prior to presentation of the report to Cabinet. 
The Committee endorsed the recommendations in the report of the Task and Finish 
Group. 

 
 

Chair:   

Cllr. Julian Amos 
May 2019 – Feb 2020 

 

Page 148



 
All councillors, like many residents of the County Borough are all too aware of the 
level of homelessness. The committee heard that the increases in homelessness 
were due to a variety of factors such as rental levels in the private rented sector, a 
significant lack of one bed accommodation in the social housing sector, the 
Westminster Government’s Austerity policy and Welfare Reform. In 2014 the Welsh 
Government attributed the high level of impact of Welfare Reform in Merthyr Tydfil to 
the fact that nearly 25% of the population aged 16-64 claim working age benefits. 
The loss of income is not distributed evenly across the Borough, Merthyr Tydfil has 
the fifth highest in Wales of its citizens in prison.   
 
The duties of a local authority owed to the homeless in Wales is contained in Part 2 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014 (the “Act”). Between October 2018 and October 2019 the 
council were only able to meet 7% of one bed need. This is equivalent to only 49 
households. To provide context over the same period Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council had a statutory Section 75 of the “Act” duty to 31 single people. This left just 
18 properties to satisfy our Section 73 duties where 261 single people were owed 
this duty. It is worrying that through no fault of the local authority and its staff it is 
falling short of meeting its statutory duties under the Housing (Wales) Act 2014. This 
is clearly unsustainable. 
 
The Committee were presented with a Homelessness Strategy Action Plan. The 
Action Plan setting out how the Department planned to improve the situation. The 
objectives were, to increase awareness of homelessness and support available, 
improve prevention and early intervention activity to prevent homelessness, ensure 
there is appropriate accommodation for people who are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness, ensure there’s appropriate support available for people who are 
homeless or at risk of homelessness, maintain and develop partnership working and 
strategic direction.  The Committee’s young person’s representative took a key role 
in this group’s work; bringing a fresh perspective to discussion. 
 
The Regeneration Department has a very broad remit and throughout the year 
presented other reports to the Committee. Those above are the “headline” reports! 
Its remit extends from Economic and Environmental Regeneration and the fruits of 
its success are there for all to see, to addressing the great social problems that the 
County Borough faces. The Department deals effectively with all its challenges and 
has excellent staff which I would like to express my gratitude for all they do and how 
they have worked with the Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. I will deliberately not 
mention any names because to do so would imply some are better than others. In 
my opinion everyone in the Department is giving their all in very challenging times 
with only limited resources. I thank every single one of them. I would also like to 
thanks the staff supporting the scrutiny function.   
 
I am no longer the Chair of the Regeneration Scrutiny Committee and would like to 
extend my best wishes to my successor: Councillor Gareth Lewis. 

 
7.3 Work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee during the 2019/2020 Municipal Year 
 

The role and remit of the Regeneration & Public Protection Committee scrutiny 
committee focuses on areas such as economic development; tourism heritage and 

Page 149



culture; housing and homelessness; and community safety and public protection 
services.   
 
Over the 2019-20 municipal year; the Committee has received reports on the 
following topics: 

 

 Cyfarthfa Heritage Area; 

 Refocus of CCTV service area; 

 Anti-social Behaviour; 

 Corporate self-evaluation – specific to Community Regeneration; Public 
Protection & Housing; 

 Destination Development; 

 Findings of a Welsh Audit Office (now Audit Wales) examination visit; 

 Substance Misuse; 

 The Council’s Homelessness Strategy; 

 Continued Development of the Town Centre and the Night-time Economy; 
and 

 The Town Centre Master Plan. 
 
 

7.4 Additional work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee during the 2019/2020 
Municipal Year 

 
On 30th October 2018, the Committee had agreed to create a task and finish group 
to undertake an independent review focusing on the issue of homelessness.  During 
2019-2020, a number of meetings have taken place between task and finish group 
members; with focused sessions also taking place with young people from Merthyr 
Tydfil Borough-Wide Youth Forum to discuss this issue with a view to securing their 
views on this topic and to identify possible solutions which would deal with this in the 
longer-term.     
 

7.5  Chairpersons Comments:  
 

I became Chair of the Regeneration and Public Protection 
Scrutiny just prior to the Covid-19 pandemic lockdown in 
March 2020 and therefore, to date, have not had an 
opportunity to Chair a meeting of this Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Moving forward, my intention for the committee is to scrutinise 
services where Covid-19 has impacted those most. This 
includes services that provide assistance to those affected by 
homelessness, domestic violence and mental health. Covid 
has resulted in Welsh Government policy changes in these 
areas and this has increased the need for its effective 
scrutiny. 

 
I look forward to Chairing the committee for the remainder of the Municipal year and 
to working alongside committee members in ensuring we provide a beneficial and 
productive challenge to the decisions of the local authority. 

 
 

Chair:   

Cllr. Gareth Lewis 
Mar 2020 – May 2021 

 

Page 150



7.6 Looking forward to 2020 / 2021 
 

In terms of regeneration, two specific projects have the potential to transform the 
long term socio-economic picture of the County Borough and the wider South Wales 
Valleys area. The South Wales Metro can radically overhaul public transport and 
finally provide a fully integrated transport system, which should in turn catalyse 
investment to the Merthyr Tydfil CBC area. Whilst, the proposed Cyfarthfa 
Foundation is capable of ensuring that Merthyr Tydfil becomes a world renowned 
cultural destination that capitalises on our historic industrial heritage. Both projects 
are exciting and ambitious and it is my intention that the Regeneration and Public 
Protection Scrutiny Committee will provide constructive scrutiny in the progression of 
both initiatives. 
 
 

8.0 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:  SOCIAL SERVICES  
 
8.1 The Social Services Committee consists six Councillors plus four co-opted members 

(1 voluntary sector Member; 1 Merthyr Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum Member; 2 
public, non-voting Members). 

 
8.2 Chairpersons comments 
 

 
The Social Services Scrutiny Committee 2019/20 Forward Work 
Programme was developed to focus and scrutinise the services 
provided to the community by the Social Services in these times 
of austerity. The committee recognised that the services and 
officers are under more and more pressure to accomplish their 
aims and objectives with every year that passes and it is 
becoming more and more challenging due to the continued 
austerity. Therefore, we have strived to be a more robust and 
focused scrutiny committee to get the best outcomes from the 
services. 

 
In 2019/20 the Social Services Scrutiny Committee formed part of the self-evaluation 
cycle and acted as a critical friend for the Social Services area. The members 
welcomed this new integrated approach to the self-evaluation process and the 
opportunity to make suggestions, observations and challenge services judgements 
when necessary.   
 
As the Social Services teams work regionally on a number of strategies such as: the 
Cwm Taf Youth Offending Service (YOS); Safeguarding Board; and Vale, Valleys 
and Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC), the scrutiny committee has also welcomed 
a number of regional reports from collaborative organisations. The members 
recognise that partnership working is critical for successful outcomes for our 
communities during these times of austerity and will continue to encourage, monitor 
and support this way of working. However, there is still a distance to be travelled to 
improve the reporting processes between the Public Service Board (PSB) and the 
scrutiny members with regards to Social Services issues.   
 

 
 

Chair:   
Cllr. Bill Smith 

Page 151



During 2019/20 the scrutiny members have highlighted a number of reports 
presented to the committee do not have specific information required by the 
members to effectively scrutinise their areas and performance. This has led to the 
members and officers working together to improve the quality of the reports and the 
information presented. 
 
Unfortunately, Merthyr Tydfil has witnessed a number of unprecedented events in 
2020, such as Storm Dennis and Storm Jorge in February, that caused untold 
damage to many areas within the borough, and the global pandemic (Covid-19), 
which resulted in the country being locked down from March. All of these events has 
had an immediate impact on the Social Services area and its resources. These 
unprecedented events have also impacted on the Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee as I had to take the decision to cancel several scheduled committees and 
workshops during this period to enable key officers to prioritise their commitments 
and resources in order to provide critical support to the communities and its 
residents. However, the committee intends to prioritise any key reports that were 
scheduled to be presented during this period for the next municipal year. 
   
I would like to take this opportunity to thank my scrutiny colleagues and Cabinet 
Members, Officers of the Local Authority and partners for their continued support. 

 
8.3 Work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee during the 2019/2020 Municipal Year 
 
 Some of the topics that have been scrutinised and challenged as part of the 
 Forward Work Programme are: 
 

 Reconfiguration of Homes 

 Corporate Self-Evaluation Re: Living Well 

 Young Carers Annual Report (2018/19) 

 Safeguarding Board (Annual Report and Plan (2018/19) and progress in 2019/20) 

 Mental Health Inspection – Feedback and Action Plan 

 Cwm Taf Youth Offending Service (YOS) Annual Report  2018/19 

 Children’s Services Strategies  

 Adult Social Care Strategies 

 Annual Report on Social Services (ACRF) 2018 / 2019 

 Budget Position Statements 

 Mid-year Update on Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments Report. 

 Progress on SS&WB Regional Plan (2019/20) 

 Mid-year Update on Young Carers 

 Vale, Valleys And Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC) Annual Report 2018/19 
and 2019/20 progress to date 

 Progress on Corporate Parenting Board  

 Adult Services Accommodation Strategy For Older People And Adults With A 
Learning Disability 2020-2030 

 
 
 
 

Page 152



8.4 Additional work undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee for the 2019/2020 Municipal 
Year 

 
During 2019/20, the Social Services Scrutiny Committee worked together with the 
Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee to adopt a different approach to training and 
awareness session and introduced joint workshop style training sessions. During 
these workshop sessions, officers from both Social Services and the Learning 
department were able to demonstrate and explain what their particular service 
provided to areas that impacted both Social Services and Learning and LGES 
Scrutiny Committees, such as ‘Children Looked After’.  This integrated approach to 
training allowed the members to develop and strengthen and broaden their 
knowledge in both the Social Services and Learning areas, whereby this opportunity 
may not have presented itself previously. These workshops were also extended and 
opened up to all elected members. 
 

8.5 Looking forward to 2020 / 2021 
 

The Social Services department has successfully embraced more collaborative 
working practices with other public bodies to effectively deliver services (e.g. 
Safeguarding Board Annual Report and Plan, Cwm Taf Youth Offending Service, 
SS&WB Regional Plan etc.) since the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
came into force in April 2016. However, it has been identified by the Assurance and 
Improvement Board (who was appointed by Welsh Government) that the Social 
Services department needs to increase its resilience. This has been especially 
challenging for the Social Services department in 2020 having to deliver services to 
our residents, whilst responding firstly to major flooding and then a global pandemic. 
The service is having to find new ways to deliver more for less, due to severe 
constraints on funding and there are likely to be additional pressures from new 
caseloads being reported following a release from the Covid-19 lockdown. Therefore 
going forward, the committee has requested specific details on all regional priorities 
to ensure there is effective alignment and synergy between MTCBC strategies and 
regional strategies. In addition to this, the Social Services Scrutiny Committee 
Members will continue to offer challenge as a critical friend and support the service 
as best as we can in order to provide the residents of Merthyr Tydfil with sustainable 
services for the future. 
 
The Social Services Scrutiny Committee is also very aware that as a result of the 
Covid-19 global pandemic, the ‘new normal’ and the landscape of the scrutiny 
function will have to change and adapt to become more agile with its working 
processes. Therefore, the Committee Members will work together to ensure that this 
new way of working will be a success for the Council and the Community.    

 
 

10.0 CWM TAF JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
10.1 In accordance with the requirement of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 

Act, 2015 and having taken into consideration the requirements of Section 58 of the 
Local Government (Wales) Measure, 2011 and associated statutory guidance a Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been established comprising Elected 

Page 153



Members of both Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Councils to scrutinise Cwm Taf Public Services Board. 

 
10.2   The Cwm Taf Public Service Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) 

membership comprises 10 elected Members (5 from Rhondda Cynon Taf and 5 from 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Councils) plus a number of co-opted members.  In 
2019/2020, the co-opted members represented the local Health Board; Community 
Health Council; the Ambulance Service as well as a citizen representative from the 
County Boroughs of both RCT and Merthyr Tydfil. 

 
10.3    The Terms of Reference for this Committee outlines that support requirements linked 

to Cwm Taf PSB JOSC would be jointly shared by RCT and Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Councils. The role of Chair and Vice Chair for the Committee would also be 
shared on a cyclical basis e.g. during 2019-2020, Councillor Jill Bonetto (RCT 
Council) assumed the Chair, with Councillor Skinner taking the role of Vice Chair; 
with RCT providing all relevant scrutiny support.   

 
10.4   For the period 2019/2020; the responsibility for providing support to the Cwm Taf 

PSB JOSC was assumed by RCT County Borough Council, as per the agreed cycle.   
 

10.5  During 2019-20, fours JOSC meetings were scheduled and three held.  The 
Committee reviewed, scrutinised and discussed a number of topics during 
2019/2020; these are listed below: 

 

 Progress updates from Cwm Taf Public Services Board (at every meeting); 

 Progress updates from Cwm Taf Strategic Partnership Board (at every meeting); 

 Live Lab Update; 

 Social Prescribing Update; and 

 Ferndale Community Hub Update 
 
10.6   As the 2019/2020 municipal year ended, the country entered into a state of lockdown 

as a result of the coronavirus pandemic.  A decision was taken that to ensure the 
requirements of this lockdown were adhered to, responsibility for provision of the 
support function for the Cwm Taf PSB JOSC would remain with RCT Council for the 
municipal year 2020/2021. 

 
 

11.0 CARDIFF CAPITAL REGIONAL CITY DEAL JOINT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
11.1 MTCBC has Elected Member representation on the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The Performance and Scrutiny Team 
supports our contribution to this committee. 

 
 

12.0 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT SCRUTINY  
 
12.1 Whilst Scrutiny Members, Cabinet Members and Council Officers contribute regularly 

to scrutiny activities, we also welcome public attendance and input at our meetings. 

Page 154



If someone is interested in becoming a Co-opted Member of a Scrutiny Committee, 
they can register interest on the Council’s website - 
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/scrutiny-
committees/.  There is also a Scrutiny Guide, which provides detail about the how, 
what, and why Scrutiny Committees take place. 

 
12.2 The involvement of local residents, youth voice (MTBWYF), community 

organisations and partners is an important part of the scrutiny process and scrutiny 
committees are committed to responding to the views and concerns of residents. We 
encourage residents and organisations to attend and contribute to scrutiny work in 
securing the best possible public services. The intention is to make sure that we are 
dealing with the matters that are most important to the community and are delivering 
quality services.  

 
12.3 The Constitution allows for members of the public to attend and speak at scrutiny 
 meetings. With this in mind a guide as to how this can work in practice has been 
 produced. The guide provides details on how to for example submit a written 
 representation on an agenda item and the time limit for the member of public to put 
 their case. This hopefully will allow members of the public the opportunity to tell 
 Councillors directly about the things that concern them. 
 
12.4   If members of the public feel that there is a topic that scrutiny should look at, they can 

let us know by completing a Scrutiny Request Form or email 
scrutiny@merthyr.gov.uk  

 
 

13.0 LOOKING FORWARD TO THE 2020/2021 MUNICIPAL YEAR 
 
13.1 In order to further strengthen the arrangements in relation to the scrutiny function, 

Committee Members, Cabinet Members and Officers that have attended Scrutiny 
Committee meetings over the past 12-months will take part in an evaluation/self-
assessment exercise.  The findings of this will help to identify good practice and 
enable Committees to consider areas for further development, enabling them to set 
their own priorities for improvement.   

 
13.2 When the priorities have been set the Committees will develop their own strategy on 

a page.  This will enable them to more effectively monitor their impact, whilst also 
securing a source of evidence to support future review, with a view to continuously 
improving the Council’s governance arrangements. 

 
 

14.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
14.1 There are no financial implications as a result of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155

https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/scrutiny-committees/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/scrutiny-committees/
mailto:scrutiny@merthyr.gov.uk


15.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The Report (Annual Scrutiny Report 2019 / 2020) is for information only and does not 
contain any recommendations for approval by Council. 
 
Any developments or proposals made reference to in the Chairpersons comments would 
have already been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) or Integrated 
Impact Assessment (IIA) that includes an EqIA on an individual basis as appropriate. 
 

 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 

Page 156



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL – INFORMATION REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Consultation Responses - Amendment of opening 
times of Day Service Provision 

 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report outlines the outcome of the consultation undertaken in respect of the 

proposal to amend the operating times for Adult Day Services as part of the overall 
efficiency program. 

 
1.2 The report included the key areas that have been identified as opposed to individual 

comments however some of these have been included to illustrate the comments 
made. 

 
1.3 The majority of the comments made indicate that people consulted on this proposal 

would not support any reduction in the operating times. 
 
1.4 There has been a delay in the presentation of the outcome of the consultation due to 

the COVID pandemic. 
 
 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 As part of the efficiency process the option of reducing the hours that Day Services 

operate and closure of the service was presented to Council in September 2019. 
 
2.2 In order to determine the full impact of these proposals Council requested that a 2-

week Public Consultation be undertaken to support their decision making. This was 

Date Written February 2020* 

Report Author Angela Edevane 

Service Area Adult Social Care 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 157

Agenda Item 11



due to be undertaken during autumn 2019 however this was delayed due to the 
announcement of the General Election and was deferred until December 2019. 

 
2.3 The consultation period took place between 16th December 2019 and 14th February 

2020. 
 
2.4 This report accompanies the information provided in respect of all the public 

consultations that have taken place as part of the efficiency proposals. 
 
2.5 There has been a delay in presenting the outcome of the consultation due to the 

COVID 19 pandemic. 
 

3.0 CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
3.1 As the proposed amendments to operating times would have a significant impact on 

vulnerable adults and their carers in addition to the questionnaire available on 
Merthyr Tydfil CBC website, additional consultation methods were utilised to obtain 
the views of people that use the day service and their carers to ensure that they 
were fully engaged in the consultation process. 

 
3.2 The following additional methods were used: 

 Questionnaires 

 Meetings with carers  

 Use of peer advocates. 
 
3.3 In addition to eliciting the views of the people who use the service and their carers 

further consultation was undertaken with stake holders which included: 

 Care Managers 

 Staff working at the day centres 

 Transport providers 

 Supported living providers. 
 
3.4 To ensure that the views of the people who access the day service were included as 

much as possible additional support was commissioned from “People First” which 
provides peer advocacy for people with a learning disability and “Age Connects 
Morgannwg” which supports older people. 

 
3.5 All of the views have been collated and the key findings have been collated in this 

report with additional information collected through the peer advocate consultation 
this is available via the background papers link. 

 
 

4.0 CONSULTATION OUTCOME KEY POINTS 
 
4.1 Whilst there were a significant number of comments during the consultation process 

for ease of reference these have been combined into themes. 
 

Page 158



4.2 Carers - From the comments received people felt that the proposal to reduce the 
number of hours the day service operates would have the following impact on 
informal carers: 

 Increased reliance on carers. 

 Carers would not have any respite from their caring role. 

 Increased demand on carers would have an adverse effect on their own health 
needs especially as many of them are older people. 

 The impact on the whole family as carers often provide support to other family 
members including parents and siblings. 

 The reduced time would not allow them to continue to work. 

 The reduced time would not enable them to undertake all the other 
responsibilities that they now undertake when the person they care for is at day 
centre. 
 
Examples of comments made by carers are: 
 “It will cost the Council more as people will need to go into care because the 

carer will not be able to cope.” 
 “We are already broken and this will break us more.” 
 “The break when they are at day services keeps me sane.” 
 “This is the only time I have for me to do things like shopping and hospital 

appointments.” 
 
4.3 People who attend day service - the impact the proposal would have on people 

that use the service was commented on by the people who use the service, their 
carers, social workers, and staff.  The comments indicated that the proposal would 
have the following impact on people who use the service: 

 People who attend day services have a routine and when this is altered it causes 
them distress. 

 If the day is shortened they will not be able to participate in activities as there will 
be insufficient time. 

 May loose staff which will mean that the new staff will not know them as well as 
the existing staff. 

 Change to routine will increase behavioural issues.  

 Limited time to access health needs such as physiotherapy.  

 May result in them being unable to continue to live at home and require a 
specialist placement. 
 
Examples of comments made: 
 “I will miss my friends.” 
 “My daughter won’t be able to cope with the change.” 
 “My relative won’t be able to receive their physiotherapy.” 

 
 
4.4 Staff who work in the Day Service - Comments were made by both staff and 

carers in regard to the impact of the proposal on the staff who work in day services. 
The views of the staff were sought however this did not form part of any formal 
employment consultation.  The comments indicated that the proposal would have the 
following impact on staff: 

 There would be a considerable financial Impact on staff. 

Page 159



 Unions have indicated that they will not discuss this option as it involves 
amendments to staff terms and conditions of staff. 

 Staff may seek alternative employment due to the reduction in hours. 
 
4.5 Transport Providers - The impact and availability of the providers who support 

people to and from day services would be dependent on the amendments to time. 
They have advised that any amendment to times that day service transport operate 
would need to take into consideration the times of school transport as many of the 
providers operate in the two areas. 

 
4.6 Supported Living and Residential services - A number of people that attend Adult 

Day Services live in supported accommodation such as supported living placements 
and residential homes. The comments indicate that this would have the following 
impact: 

 

 Additional staff resources would need to be commissioned as not all the 
accommodation is staffed when people are in day services. 

 

5.0 PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
 
6.1  Overall the response from the Public Consultation indicate that 72% of the 

respondents do not support the proposal.  The table below indicates the responses 
of the public consultation.  Comments included in the response reflect the comments 
outlined above and the full details are available via the background papers link. 

 

Do you agree with the proposal to change the opening times of the Day Services?  

  
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

28.04% 380 

2 No   
 

71.96% 975 

  answered 1355 

 

6.0 CURRENT SITUATION 
 
7.1 It is worth noting that this consultation took place pre COVID 19 and the situation 

within day services has changed as a result of the pandemic in recent months.  We 
have had to reduce numbers attending due to social distancing and the public’s own 
fear about attending day services.  The public continue to want a service and are 
vocal about ‘a return to normal delivery’.  

 
 
 

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The financial implications have been outlined in the previous efficiency program and 

the financial implications will be dependent on the outcome of the Councils decision.  

Page 160



 

8.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
8.1 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
0 of 4  1 of 4 3 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

2 of 5 1 of 5 2 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 2 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that services are provided to the most vulnerable. 
 
The main negative impacts are that people have had their level of support reduced to 
maintain services. 
 

 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
               CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) 

Date 
Document Location 

Public Consultation report    

Page 161



Consultation report “People First” 
Consultation Report “Age 
Connects Morganwg” 
 
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 162



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Annual Report on Social Services 2019-2020 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is to provide information in respect of the Social Services Annual Report 

for 2019-2020. 
 
1.2 In April 2016 we saw the implementation of the Social Services and Well-being 

(Wales) Act 2014.  This was a significant piece of legislation designed to change the 
relationship between the Local Authority, its partner organisations and the public.  As 
part of the Act, a new Performance Framework was introduced.  The new framework 
resulted in a change to the data and information we collect and the way in which we 
collect it.  We will now be required to gather additional information and report on the 
difference we are making on peoples’ lives. 

 
1.3 The report would normally be presented to Scrutiny for consultation and discussion.  

However due to COVID this has not happened this year.  Welsh Government 
advised some months ago that there was no formal expectation to provide the 
Annual report this year in the same format as previous years.  

 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Local Authority is required to report annually to Welsh Government on 

performance across its Social Services.  However due to COVID 19 Welsh 
Government advised some months ago that there was no formal expectation to 
provide the Annual report this year in the same format as previous years. 

 
 

Date Written 21st August 2020 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Service Area Social Services 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 163

Agenda Item 12



2.2 The Chief Officer (Social Services) in her role as Statutory Director of Social 
Services is responsible for publishing an annual report on performance and the 
effectiveness of social care services across the County Borough.  The Annual Report 
on Social Services 2019-2020 has been produced in accordance with the Annual 
Council Reporting Framework (ACRF) and is intended to provide an overview of our 
performance for the period April 2019 to March 2020; highlighting what we are doing 
well, areas for improvement and our priorities for the year ahead (2019-2020). 

 
2.3  The report focuses on wellbeing in line with the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 

(2014).  We are required to provide information on the following: 
 

 Working with people to define and co-produce personal wellbeing outcomes that 
people wish to achieve. 

 Working with people and partners to protect and promote people’s physical and 
mental health and emotional wellbeing. 

 Taking steps to protect and safeguard people from abuse, neglect or harm. 

 Encouraging and supporting people to learn, develop and participate in society. 

 Supporting people to safely develop and maintain healthy domestic, family and 
personal relationships. 

 Working with and supporting people to achieve greater economic wellbeing have 
a social life and live in suitable accommodation that meets their needs. 

 

3.0 CURRENT SITUATION 
 
3.1 In previous years we have carried out consultation in respect of the Annual report.  

The final version will be sent to partners as we have done in previous years, but due 
to COVID 19 no formal consultation has taken place this year.  

 
3.2 This year’s report for 2019-2020 sets out our achievements in promoting and 

improving the wellbeing of those people needing our support.  As part of this report, I 
have set out how we are performing, the developments and challenges we have 
encountered and our priorities for the next 12 months.  

 
3.3 As in previous years, local authorities continue to face significant financial pressures.  

We have continued to work hard to achieve the savings the Council needs to make 
whilst doing our best to ensure that the services we provide are not adversely 
affected.  

 
3.4 We want to help people to achieve a higher level of wellbeing.  It also means helping 

people to help themselves, to make better choices and access different types of 
support.  The Council adopted 5 ways of working which are designed to ensure we 
are in a position to provide sustainable services now and in the future.  These 
principles ensure we take a ‘Long Term’ view to plan for the future, a focus on 
‘Prevention’, ensuring our services are ‘Integrated’ with local communities and other 
partner agencies, that we ‘Collaborate’ with and ‘Involve’ the people who use our 
services and our partners in their development.  These 5 ways of working were 
introduced with the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act.  

 
 

Page 164



3.5 We continue to be committed to implementing the ‘Five Year Welsh Language 
Promotional Strategy for Merthyr Tydfil (July 2017)’ and actively encourage staff to 
attend Welsh Language courses which we provide in order that the residents of 
Merthyr Tydfil have the opportunity to communicate and receive services in Welsh. 

 
3.6 The Annual Report highlights in more detail the priorities we set for ourselves last 

year and what progress we have made against each of these areas. 
 
3.7 As outlined in the Annual Report as Chief Officer Social Services, I play a key role in 

ensuring the successful delivery of the Council’s wellbeing objectives.  This includes 
responsibility for the ‘Living Well’ objective which seeks to ensure ‘people are 
empowered to live independently within their communities, where they are safe and 
enjoy good physical and mental health’. 

 
3.8 Within the Annual Report we have highlighted areas we considered last year and the 

improvements or changes we have made.  We have also outlined key priority areas 
for 2020-2021 in respect of social care services.  

 
3.9 Moving forward the format of this report is likely to change following consultation with 

Directors and Heads of Service.  This work has been delayed due to the current 
situation with COVID 19. 

 
3.10 The Full Annual Report is attached at Appendix 1 for your information.  
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no specific financial implications identified in this report. 
 

5.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
5.1 The Annual Report on Social Services for 2019-2020 links with the theme Living 

Well:  
 

 People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health 

 
This main objective seeks to prioritise activities which focus on early intervention and 
prevention.  The priority is to deliver services that support people to lead healthy 
independent lives in a safe environment.  We want to motivate and support people to 
develop positive physical and mental health behaviours, build resilient communities 
where people live free from harm and have a good quality of life. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1 Positive 

Impacts 
Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
4 of 10 0 of 10 6 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
The main positive impacts are working with all ages of the population and improvement 
in prevention work and working together with partners across adult and children 
services. 
 
No negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)  

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES    
CABINET MEMBER FOR                 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Annual Report on Social 
Services 2019-2020 

August 2020 Unit 5, Pentrebach 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 166



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
FULL COUNCIL - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Update on Young People’s Participation:  Merthyr 
Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum (MTBWYF) and 
Office of Youth Mayor 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
  
1.1 This report highlights the key pieces of work undertaken by Merthyr Tydfil Borough 

Wide Youth Forum (MTBWYF) in relation to the participation agenda during 2019-20 
and the work to be taken forward during 2020-21 in the context of the current 
pandemic. 

 
1.2 Key highlights during the year include participation in the review of young person 

representation on Scrutiny committees;  regional working and the development of the 
child on parent/carer domestic abuse animation, ‘In My House’; continued success of 
the inclusivity and participation in the democratic process of electing a Youth Mayor. 

 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Merthyr Tydfil has a long-standing and successful background in supporting young 

people to participate effectively in the decision-making process.  There are a number 
of areas of good practice to support this assertion, for example, young person 
representation on Scrutiny Committees; development of regional working with 
organisations such as the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board (CTMSB) and 
the Mid Glamorgan High Sheriff and the continued success of young person 
involvement in the Youth Mayor elections. 

Date Written 1st August 2020  

Report Author Samantha Morgan 

Service Area Community Wellbeing 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 7th October 2020 

Page 167

Agenda Item 13



 
2.2 The commissioning of young people’s participation is now in its fourth year and has 

enhanced partnership working with young people.  This independence from the local 
authority has strengthened their voice and enabled them to speak independently and 
challenge the local authority. 
 

2.3 The work supports young people to participate effectively in the decision-making 
process around services at local and national level that affect them.  The contract 
directly supports the office of the Youth Mayor and facilitates the Youth Cabinet and 
MTBWYF. 

 

3.0 KEY SUCCESSES AND IMPACTS DURING 2019-20 
 
3.1 Young people have participated in the review of co-opted membership of local 

authority Scrutiny Committee’s, which has resulted in improvements to the induction, 
training and support for young members.  Although, discussions around the receipt 
of confidential papers is ongoing. 
 

3.2 As a result of involvement in the Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside 
Scrutiny Committee, young people are members of a working group that is looking at 
achieving ‘Green Flag’ status for one of the local parks. 

 
3.3 Membership of MTBWYF continues to increase and currently stands at 175, with 

representation from 23 local organisations.  Improved use of social media platforms 
such as You Tube and Instagram have supported this outcome. 
 

3.4 The improved Youth Mayor election process has seen the number of young people 
voting increasing annually from 37 in 2016 to over 3000 in 2019.  Partnership 
working with Democratic Services and schools has enhanced this process and 
resulted in a more inclusive approach. 
 

3.5 Members of the Youth Cabinet are on the awarding panel for Gwirvol funding and 
have been involved in decisions around allocation of funding to local organisations. 
 

3.6 Members of MTBWYF have been involved in consultations at a local level.  For 
example, the development of the local authority’s Raising Aspirations Raising 
Standards strategy; shaping of the consultation questions for the local authority 
Youth Support Services plan; and the proposed creation of a 3-16 Roman Catholic 
school within the borough. 
 

3.7 Regional working with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board (CTMSB) has 
taken place to develop a safeguarding animation, ‘In My House’, that looks at the 
issue of child on parent/carer domestic abuse.  This has been shared widely and 
endorsed by various national organisations, e.g. Live Fear Free.  
 

3.8 At a national level, members of the Forum have been involved in the design and 
development of Public Health Wales’s (PHW) annual Youth Summit and are also 
active members of the PHW Young Ambassadors scheme. Through Children in 
Wales, two young people have also trained to become ‘Youth Inspectors’, which 
enables them to assess applications for the national Participation Kitemark. 

Page 168



 

3.9 In order to recognise and celebrate young people’s achievement the young people of 
MTBWYF organised and hosted the Academy of Success 2020 in partnership with 
local organisations and also helped to organise the High Sheriff’s regional Musical 
Extravaganza and hosted the local event at the Red House.  
 

3.10 The Youth Forum has also actively raised the profile of the regional Mid Glamorgan 
High Sheriff’s awards.  As a result, local projects and individuals between them won 
in ten out of twelve categories.  A special award was given during the evening to the 
Participation Officer of Safer Merthyr Tydfil for her inspirational work with young 
people. 

 
3.11 Other notable pieces of work include the continued championing of cheaper parking 

for students attending the College Merthyr Tydfil and delivery of ‘Young People Say’ 
training to staff from six local organisations.  

 

4.0 RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
 
4.1 The Covid-19 pandemic and subsequent lockdown has had a significant impact on 

the work of MTBWYF.  However, the young people have re-shaped the way they 
work, with regular on-line planning meetings taking place.  As a result, key pieces of 
work have been identified and will be taken forward during the year. 

 
4.2 Following lockdown, members of the Youth Cabinet submitted a proposal to extend 

the office of the Youth Mayor and Deputy Youth Mayor to May 2021 and to postpone 
the annual hustings and election for a year.  The proposal was approved by the 
Chief Officer for Learning on the understanding that a review into the continued 
viability of the Youth Mayor extension be taken in November 2020. 
 

4.3 During the lockdown period various projects were developed and delivered, for 
example, a recycling project and a competition to name the MYBWYF mascot. 

 

5.0 AREAS FOR DEVELOPMENT 2020-21  
 
5.1 During this period, a longer-term work plan has been developed by the young 

people, with key themes identified for the forthcoming year. 
 

5.2 Work will continue with CTMSB, with the official launch of the ‘In My House’ 
animation planned for Safeguarding Week 2020 and the development of an 
accompanying resource pack. 
 

5.3 With support from the Council Leader and the Cabinet, a documentary film on the 
local impact of the Covid-19 pandemic will be produced. 
 

5.4 Other pieces of work to be taken forward include completion of a homelessness 
financial toolkit; continuation of involvement in the ‘Green Flag Parks’ environmental 
project; promotion of, and involvement in, the ‘Spread the Word’ online literary 
festival; and a consultation with young people on their views on re-usable sanitary 
products. 
 

5.5 In order to promote young people’s participation, further work will be undertaken with 
organisations that have completed ‘Young People Say’ training to sign up to the 
national Participation Charter. 

Page 169



6.0 KEY ISSUES 
 
6.1 The volume of requests from many sources, including local councillors and parents, 

for the involvement of members of the Youth Forum in a variety of projects, 
continues to be high.  The young people themselves recognise that they need to 
manage these demands and balance this alongside other priorities in their lives.  
 

6.2 In order to address this and to improve management and co-ordination of this 
process, the young people are developing a protocol, which outlines  

 how requests should be submitted by partner organisations and individuals; and 

 how work is selected by the young people and followed up.  
 

6.3 This will be shared with all relevant parties with the expectation that the protocol is 
followed and provides for a realistic workload for the Youth Forum to progress 
alongside their own work agenda. 
 

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 

8.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5  0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
The main positive impacts are that young people aged 11–25 are able to influence the 
services and issues that affect them through the work of MTBWYF and the office of 
Youth Mayor. 
 
There are no negative impacts identified in this report. 
 

 
 

Page 170



 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER LEARNING 
  

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR LIFELONG 

LEARNING 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking Plan 2019– 2035
	5a AGM: 09/09/2020
	5b Full Council: 26/02/2020
	5c Full Council: 04/03/2020
	5d Cabinet: 26/02/2020
	5e Cabinet: 04/03/2020
	5f Cabinet: 15/07/2020
	5g Cabinet: 16/09/2020
	5h Licensing Committee: 27/02/2020
	5i Licensing Committee: 24/06/2020
	5j Audit: 09/03/2020
	5k Audit: 03/08/2020
	5l Standards: 24/01/2020
	5m SACRE: 10/03/2020
	5n Scrutiny: Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services: 25/02/2020
	5o Scrutiny: Regeneration and Public Protection: 03/03/2020
	5p Scrutiny: Social Services: 21/01/2020
	5q Scrutiny: Social Services: 10/03/2020
	5r Scrutiny: Learning and LGES: 06/01/2020
	5s Scrutiny : Learning and LGES: 24/02/2020
	6 Agile And Home Working Policy
	Appendix 1

	7 The Cyfarthfa Foundation
	8 Gulley Sucker Business Case
	9 Merthyr Tydfil Adult Community Learning (MTACL) Partnership Future Delivery and Welsh Government Funding 2020/21
	10 MTCBC Annual Scrutiny Report 2019-2020
	11 Consultation Responses - Amendment of Opening Times of Day Service Provision
	12 Annual Report on Social Services 2019-2020
	13 Update on Young People’s Participation:  Merthyr Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum (MTBWYF) and Office of Youth Mayor

